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Daniel Valot,
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Message from the Chairman
Technip attained several of its strategic

On February 23, 2006, the Group announced it

objectives in 2005. We became a first-tier

would exercise the early redemption option

player on two key markets: LNG and ethylene.

on its convertible bonds. This decision, which

We also consolidated our leadership position

took effect on March 23, 2006, will create

on the deep offshore, refining and hydrogen

shareholder value through the elimination of

markets. In non-conventional hydrocarbons,

related financial charges, which amounted to

the Group gained a foothold in the high-

€38 million in 2005.

growth Canadian tar sands market.
Given the size of our backlog, we have every
For the first time in our history, Technip’s

reason to believe that earnings growth, which

backlog surpassed the €10 billion mark at

was interrupted in 2005, will resume in 2006 if

year-end. Our activities should continue to

market conditions remain favorable.

grow, thanks to the robust health of our
markets and our strategic positioning. The

Hand in hand with the Group’s growth, we

Group is steadfastly working to meet the

will continue to reinforce our sustainable

challenges of this growth by continuing to

development policy in all of its dimensions:

strengthen our workforce and naval and

safeguarding the environment, quality of social

industrial assets while adapting our organization

and community relations and workplace safety.

and operating methods to handle the increase
in activity and contract size.

I would like to thank the entire Technip workforce
for their commitment, our clients for their

Income from operations and fully diluted EPS

trust and our shareholders for their support.

were very close to their 2004 levels. Net income
was down €18.5 million mainly due to the
non-cash impact of new accounting standards
relating to convertible bonds.
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Vision and Values

“

Be the most respected
engineering and
construction contractor
in the world
and become by 2010
the best performing
one, by providing to
our clients optimal
solutions through
dedication, expertise
and technological
innovation.

”

Our Vision
We want to be known for:

Our Values
Technip’s professional activities are governed

delivering quality, safety and reliability

by a set of Values, which have been approved

in meeting our clients’ needs,

by its Board of Directors.

valuing honesty and transparency in our people,
achieving the highest standards of corporate

These revolve around 5 main areas:

governance,
encouraging and promoting human rights,

integrity, professional excellence, protection

fostering environmental protection and

of health, safety, and the environment, as

sustainable development.

well as social responsibility are the core
values at Technip,

We want to deliver:

our goal is to achieve the highest level

value to projects through cost and planning

of satisfaction for all our partners and,

optimization and effective risk management,

in particular, for our clients, our shareholders

high returns to our shareholders for the long run,

and our employees,

development opportunities to all members

Technip is committed to supporting and

of our teams,

promoting the principles of the United

technological innovation and cutting-edge

Nations Global Compact regarding human

technologies,

rights, labour, environment and ethics within

value to all of our stakeholders.

its sphere of influence,
built on the know-how and expertise of our
teams, we aim to conduct our business in
line with the principles of sustainable
development,
our core values are set out in our Charters
regarding business ethics, social accountability,
environmental protection, and health and
safety.

2
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Profile

A world leader in engineering,
technologies and project management
for the oil and gas, petrochemical
and other industries.

5.4 billion
euros

Technip ranks among the five major groups

major industrial project from basic engineering

worldwide in its domain and is one of the most

to delivery, in the domain of oil and gas, petroche-

fully-integrated groups in the sector.

micals and other industries.

2005 revenues

The Group’s expertise is drawn from nearly 50

Technip totals 21,000 employees worldwide and

years experience in the design and construction

had 2005 revenues of 5.4 billion euros.

21,000

of major industrial installations. Mastering a wide
range of technologies and with operational

Technip is listed on the Paris and New York stock

employees

centers on five continents, Technip is able to

exchanges.

provide turnkey solutions covering all aspects of a

Offshore SURF
(Subsea, Umbilicals,
Risers & Flowlines)

Offshore
Facilities

Onshore
Downstream

Industries

Within the domain of subsea
hydrocarbon field
development, Technip’s subsea
construction activities cover
the design, manufacture
and installation of rigid
and flexible subsea pipelines
and umbilicals.

This business segment
consolidates the engineering,
development and construction
of platforms for oil and gas
production at sea, whether
in shallow water (fixed platforms)
or deepwater (floating platforms).

Within this business segment,
Technip covers the range
of onshore facilities for the oil
and gas chain (refining, hydrogen,
sulfur, gas treatment and
liquefaction, onshore pipelines)
as well as petrochemicals
(ethylene, aromatics, olefins,
polymers).

The Group is also present in
non-oil activities: the engineering
and construction of
manufacturing units in the sectors
of fertilizers, chemistry,
pyrotechnics, life science, metals,
cement, buildings
and infrastructures.
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Key Figures

“

During 2005,
Technip posted
a 65% increase
in its backlog,
which stood at more
than €11 billion
at year end.
At the same time,
the Group continued
to strengthen its
financial situation,
ending the year with
net cash of more
than €660 million.

”

Order Intake

Revenues

(€ in millions)

(€ in millions)

9,806

5,092

2004

2005
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2004

5,376

The strong upward
trend in new orders
in 2005 enabled the
Group to continue to
boost revenues,
which were up 4.6%
on the previous year.
The SURF segment
posted strong growth
of 26% while the
Group’s three other
business segments
remained relatively
stable as expected.

2005

Operating Income

(€ in millions)

(€ in millions)

6,779

4

5,141

Backlog

11,170

The key figures for 2004 were stated according
to IFRS norms. Following the closure of the
accounts for 2005, certain elements of the IFRS
accounts for 2004 as published in April 2005 were
restated to enable more relevant comparison with
the accounts for 2005.

In line with the upward
trend that began in
the 4th quarter of
2004, orders booked
by Technip during
2005 set a new record
of €9.8 billion, up by
93% on the order
intake for 2004. The
Onshore Downstream
(LNG plants and
high-capacity steam
crackers) and SURF
segments posted
improvements of
129% and 79%,
respectively.

2004

2005
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At the end of 2005,
Technip’s backlog
stood at an
exceptionally high
level. The main
sectors involve gas
treatment and
liquefaction units,
deep offshore,
refining and
petrochemicals.

233.6

2004

231.0

2005

The Group’s operating
income remained fairly
stable compared to 2004,
largely because of the
difficulties encountered
during the execution of
a subsea project, which
reduced the operating
profit for the 4th quarter
of 2005.

Net Income (Group share)
(€ in millions)

111.8

93.3

Net Cash Position

2005 Revenues
Breakdown by Geographical Zone

(€ in millions)

668

Application of IAS 32
and 39 to financial
instruments beginning
January 1, 2005
resulted in an
additional non-cash
charge (€16.6 million)
associated with
convertible bonds.
This is the main
reason for the
decrease in
consolidated net
income for 2005.

The improvement in
operating cash flow
and the strong
improvement of the
working capital
allowed the Group to
regain a positive net
cash position, which
stood at €668
million at the end of
2005.

Europe, Russia, Central Asia

26%

Africa, Middle East

44%

Americas

19%

Asia-Pacific

11%

-167
2004

2005

2004

2005

Earnings Per Share

Dividend Per Share

(in €)

Fo r 2 0 0 5 ( i n € )

1.09

1.11

Earnings per share
(EPS) at December
31, 2005 (calculated
on a fully diluted
basis) was up by
2.4%.

0.920
0.825*

2005 Revenues
Breakdown by Business Segment

Given the Group’s
solid financial
situation and the
positive business
outlook for the
industry, the Board of
Directors decided to
propose an 11.5%
increase in the
dividend per share,
raising it to €0.92.
* After the 4-way split

Offshore SURF

33%

Offshore Facilities

19%

Onshore Downstream

43%

Industries
2004

2005

2004

5%

2005

A N N UA L

A N D

S U S TA I N A B L E

D E V E L O P M E N T

R E P O RT

2 0 0 5

5

Corporate Governance
Technip’s Board of Directors constantly improves its corporate governance practices in order to comply with applicable French and American
regulations as well as the recommendations on corporate governance
of listed companies contained in the report published by France’s AfepMedef in October 2003. As part of this ongoing improvement, the Board
of Directors has drawn up a charter defining the rights and duties of
board members, as well as a set of internal rules and regulations.

Reminder
of 2005
Objectives
Diffusion and promotion
of the Group’s new charters
(Social, Environment,
Health & Safety).
Implementation throughout
the Group of new internal
auditing rules and procedures
in compliance with the US
Sarbanes-Oxley Act.

All Technip’s activities are governed by the

The Board of Directors, which determines the

rules set out in the statement of the Technip’s

Company’s strategic directions and monitors

Values and in the four charters that explain

their implementation, met seven times during

them in more detail, particularly the Ethics

2005. In making decisions, the Board takes into

Charter. A specific charter setting out the rules

account the recommendations of its three

governing the behaviour of Technip directors

specialized committees.

was put in place in April 2003.
At a meeting held on February 22, 2006, the Board

The Board of Directors,
at February 22, 2006
Daniel Valot (Chairman and CEO)
Roger Cairns*

In accordance with its internal rules, the Board

Miguel Caparros*

must evaluate its operating policies at intervals

Jacques Deyirmendjian

of no more than 3 years.

Roger Milgrim*
Rolf-Erik Rolfsen*
Pierre Vaillaud*
Bruno Weymuller*
*Independent directors according to the criteria set out in the Afep-Medef
Report in October 2003.

A N D

S U S TA I N A B L E

and debated in an expedient manner.

Olivier Appert

Daniel Lebègue*

A N N UA L

cluded that it operates in a very satisfactory
manner and that important matters are prepared

Jean-Pierre Lamoure*

6

discussed about its operating practices and con-
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Board of Directors - Specialized
Committees

Nominations and Compensation

Audit Committee

T h e Co m m i t t e e i s m a d e u p o f B r u n o

The Committee comprises four members:

Weymuller (Chairman), Jean-Pierre Lamoure

Daniel Lebègue (Chairman), Miguel Caparros,

a n d Ro l f - E ri k Ro l f s e n , a l l o f wh o m a re

Roger Milgrim and Pierre Vaillaud, all of whom

“independent directors.” The purpose of this

are “independent directors.” The Committee

committee is to make recommendations to

met six times during 2005. The role of this

the Board on the appointment of directors and

committee is to enable the Board to ensure

to examine the policy regarding compensation

the quality of internal controls as well as the

of Executive Committee members and top

integrity of the information disclosed to

management within the Group. The Committee

shareholders and financial markets.

met three times during 2005.

Committee

Ethics Charter
Integrity is one of the core values
of Technip.This Charter defines
the Group's Objectives in this area
and the corresponding
Rules of good conduct.

Our Objectives
To offer opportunities for success to all our
suppliers, partners and subcontractors in a
spirit of fair competition and mutually
rewarding collaboration.
To conduct our business everywhere in the
world with the highest standards of honesty,
integrity and fairness, in accordance with
the Global Compact principles.
To put our staff as at the heart of our
strategic development, and create conditions
for the individual men and women
of Technip to reach their full potential.

To disclose relevant information openly
and transparently with our shareholders
and the financial community.

Our Rules of Good Conduct
In carrying out their professional activities,
the women and men of Technip strive
to achieve our referred Group Objectives,
throughout the world, by complying with
the following rules of good conduct:
Not granting, directly or indirectly, any
kind of benefit to any public official
for the purposes of obtaining a contract.
Not using for their personal profit
or disclosing to a third party any insider
information to which they may have
access through their professional activities,
and in particular, not buying or selling,
or having bought or sold by a third party,

A N N UA L

A N D

any security of Technip until such information has been made public by Technip.
Avoiding any conflict of interest between
their roles in the Group's business
and their private interests, particularly
in their relations with clients, competitors
and suppliers. In this regard, Technip staff
must refrain from offering or accepting
gifts or invitations which would not
be consistent with acceptable practices
or applicable laws. They must also refrain
from investing or acquiring interests
in clients, competitors or suppliers without
the prior written consent of management.
Protecting the confidentiality of the
information to which they have access
through their professional activities.
Informing the Ethics Committee of the Group
about any behaviour which is not compliant
with the rules set forth in this Charter.

S U S TA I N A B L E

D E V E L O P M E N T

R E P O RT

2 0 0 5

7

Corporate Governance

Strategic Committee

Internal Control – Sarbanes-Oxley Act

Members of the Committee are: Jacques

Like the other foreign public issuers listed on

Deyirmendjian (Chairman), Olivier Appert,

the New York Stock Exchange, Technip has been

Roger Cairns and Pierre Vaillaud. The main role

granted a one-year extension by the Securities

of this committee is to examine Technip’s over-

and Exchange Commission (SEC) before the

all strategy (strategic orientations, plans and

Group is required to comply with section 404 of

budgets, investments, acquisitions and disposal

the Sarbanes-Oxley Act relating to Management

of assets) as proposed by the Company’s

Assessment of Internal Controls.

Chairman and CEO. The Committee met three
times during 2005.

This means that by the end of 2006, Technip
must reach a triple objective:

Titular Auditors
> identify and document all risks and

Cabinet Barbier Frinault & Autres – Ernst &
Young network

controls tools currently used to manage

PriceWaterhouseCoopers Audit

them,
> carry out tests to evaluate the effectiveness

Alternate Auditors
Mr Christian Chochon

of these controls tools, and identify areas

Mr Yves Nicolas

for improvement,

Auditors are appointed for a period of six years.
The current term is due to expire at the end of

> consolidate all relevant information with a

the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

view to preparing a response to the Sarbanes-

convened to approve the accounts for the

Oxley requirements, to be presented to the

2009 financial year.

Board of Directors’ Audit Committee.

Corporate Governance Performance (Source DJSI 2005)
70
76
88
0

10

20

Industry average
Technip
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Corporate Governance

To achieve these objectives, a number of

> selection of two external services providers

actions were taken during 2005 (with some

to perform (beginning in the second quarter

c o n t i n u i n g i n 2 0 0 6 ) by t h e d e d i c a t e d

of 2006) the tests of the effectiveness of

Sarbanes-Oxley project team set up at the end

internal controls in all selected entities,

of 2004 within the Internal Audit
> finally, given that information systems are

Department. These actions included:

an important part of the Sarbanes-Oxley
> identification and formalization of the key

assessment, Technip has selected an

operational processes and transactions

external services provider to perform the

flows having an impact on the Group’s

general controls on IT processes as well as

financial statements,

the application controls on each business
process. This work will be overseen by the

> definition of the scope through the selection

Group IT Division.

of the Group entities which represent decisionmaking centers and/or are representative of

In 2006, Technip will focus on finalizing the

Group activities and resources,

documentation in coordination with all the
entities within the project scope, on assessing

> setting up a standardized documentation
structure suitable for risk narrative reports,

the effectiveness of internal controls and
identifying areas of improvement.

matrices of risks and controls and segregation of duties,

Technip is mobilized in the implementation of the
Sarbanes-Oxley assessment and will file a report

> drafting of appropriate documentation
(ongoing),

on its internal control system, as required under
the law, in 2007.

> selection of specialized software for managing
Sarbanes-Oxley documentation,
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Organization

“

Having completed
the integration
of the activities
acquired over the
past years, Technip
rationalized
and simplified its
corporate
structure, in
September 2005,
in order to
respond more
effectively to
its clients’ needs.

draws on the resources of the Divisions detailed

The Executive and Management
Committees

below:

The Chairman and CEO is responsible for the

To operate in its business activities, the Group

general management of the Group and is assisThe Oil and Gas Division handles the

ted by the Executive Committee (EXCOM) and

negotiation and management of contracts

the Management Committee (MANCOM).

related to oil and gas facilities (both offshore
and onshore-downstream).

The Executive Committee includes:

The Industries Division handles the negotiation

Daniel Valot,

and management of contracts for all other

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

facilities (chemical plants, life sciences units,

Daniel Burlin,

metal and mining facilities, etc.).

President, Operations
Anne Decressac,

”

The Oil and Gas Division and the Industries

President, Human Resources

Division manage Group Business Units, which

and Communications

include geographical units (Regional Business

Olivier Dubois,

Units), sectorial units (Sectorial Business Units)

President, Chief Financial Officer

and product line units (Product Business Units).

Bernard di Tullio,

These units have been created to offer the best

President, Oil and Gas

technical and commercial responses to the needs
of our clients.

The Executive Committee prepares decisions
for submission to Technip’s Board of Directors,

The Operations Division takes care of the

concerning, in particular, the approval of the

management of the project execution resources:

accounts, the definition of the objectives and

operations and engineering centers and

budgets, the strategic orientations and the

offshore asset centers (vessels, yards, factories,

acquisitions or sales of assets and companies. It

etc.).

is also consulted on plans and recommendations
for internal auditing, IT and telecommunications,

The Group’s functional divisions – Finance and
Control, Human Resources and Communications,
Legal, Corporate Secretary – support the operational divisions and centers.

10
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human resources and asset management issues.

Three other specialized
Committees report
directly to General
Management:
The Ethics Committee
ensures the application of the
Group’s Ethics Charter,
The Sustainable
Development Committee
encourages and tracks the
Group’s progress in its
Sustainable Development
Strategy,
The Disclosure Committee
assists the Chairman and
the Chief Financial Officer in
their responsibility to ensure
that the legislation relating to
accounting disclosure methods
of listed companies is
respected.

The Management Committee

The Management Committee monitors business

In addition to the EXCOM members, the MAN-

development, progress on projects, and financial

COM includes:
Samson Alev,
Chairman, Paris Operations and Engineering
Center

performance. It also analyzes the Group’s

Knut Boe,
Senior Executive Vice President, Operations
Nicola Greco,
Managing Director, Rome Operations and
Engineering Center
Jérôme Illouz,
Executive Vice President, Industries
Luc Messier,
Managing Director, Houston Operations and
Engineering Center
Dominique de Soras,
Senior Executive Vice President, Oil and Gas

issues such as strategic orientations, technological

performances in terms of HSE, quality and client
satisfaction, and makes recommendations on key
options, human resources policy, and decisions
on partnerships.

Chairman and CEO
D. Valot
Ethics Committee
J.L. Rostaing

Sustainable Development Committee
D. Noël

Legal Division
M. Bouzols-Breton

Corporate Secretary
P. Picard

Executive Committee (EXCOM):
D. Valot, D. Burlin, A. Decressac,
O. Dubois, B. di Tullio

Finance and Control
Division
O. Dubois

Management Committee (MANCOM):
COMEX, S. Alev, K. Boe, N. Greco,
J. Illouz, L. Messier, D. de Soras

Oil and Gas
Division
B. di Tullio Pres.
D. de Soras SEVP

Industries
Division
J. Illouz

Operations
Division
D. Burlin
Pres.
K. Boe
SEVP

Oil & Gas
Business Units

Industries
Business Units

Operations & Engineering
Centers (OEC) +
Offshore Asset Centers (OAC)

Organization Chart at March 31, 2006.
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Committee
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HR & Communication
Division
A. Decressac
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The Oil and Gas Division handles negotiation and management of
Technip’s contracts in the Offshore SURF, Offshore Facilities and
Onshore Downstream segments, ensuring client satisfaction in terms
of safety, security and performance standards.

Oil and Gas Activities
2005 revenues

€ 5,129
million

Breakdown of sales
by business segment

Offshore SURF
Offshore Facilities
Onshore Dowstream

12

35%
20%
45%

SURF

Refining

The award of the Kikeh contract to provide a

In 2005,Technip, as lead partner of a joint venture,

subsea flowline system for the deepest offshore

won the contract to build Vietnam’s first oil

field ever developed in Asia, and the strength-

refinery. The Group was also awarded two

ening of the Group’s deepwater presence in

contracts to process the extra-heavy crude

Africa with the Agbami contract, are further

produced on a very large Canadian tar-sand

illustrations of Technip’s leading position in the

field. These contracts underline the Group’s

SURF segment.

strong position in this fast-growing business
segment.

Floating Platforms
Technip was awarded a contract to construct

Petrochemicals

the first Spar production platform ever to be

The award of three contracts for very large

used outside the Gulf of Mexico. A contract to

capacity ethylene projects in the Middle East

build another Spar platform for Chevron in the

confirmed Technip’s position as a leading world

Gulf of Mexico and a contract in consortium

player in this segment.

with Hyundai to build an FPSO for Total in
Nigeria confirm the Group’s recognized

All in all, 2005 was a year of strong growth for

abilities in this field.

Technip in order intake in the segments of gas
treatment, refining, petrochemicals, offshore

Gas Treatment

facilities and deepwater developments.

After a first mega contract, in late 2004, to

Geographically speaking, these new contracts

build a giant gas liquefaction complex in a joint

also underlined the steady expansion of the

venture with Chiyoda, Technip confirmed its

Group’s presence in North America, Asia and

growing role in this business segment with a

Africa.

contract to build two new LNG trains in Qatar,
as well as a contract, signed in association with
two partners, for Yemen’s first liquefaction
plant. In addition, Technip – currently building
a liquefied natural gas (LNG) receiving terminal
in Texas – won a contract to design another
terminal in the United States.
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Technip is moving to strengthen is position in industries such as
chemicals, pyrotechnics, fertilizers, life sciences, metallurgy, cement,
building construction and infrastructure.

Industries Activities
2005 revenues

€ 247
million

Breakdown of sales
by region

Europe, Russia,
Central Asia
Africa
Middle East
Americas
Asia-Pacific

14

60%
7%
2%
13%
18%

Biofuels and Innovative Processes

Strategic Project in New Caledonia

In the chemicals sector, Technip won two new

Technip and its joint-venture partner Hatch

contracts in 2005 to build plants in Sète and

were awarded the engineering and project

Compiègne (both in France) for Diester Industrie

management contract for the new

for the manufacture of biodiesel from vegetable

€2 billion-plus Koniambo nickel plant in the

oils. Technip had already been awarded a

north of New Caledonia, confirming the Group’s

contract for a similar plant in Rouen for the

reputation and experience as an industrial

same company in 1996.

contractor in the mining and metallurgy sector.

Thanks to Technip’s expertise in process

The new plant, expected to come on stream in

engineering and its know-how, which permit it

early 2010, will have an annual production

to come up with innovative solutions to meet

capacity of 60,000 metric tons of nickel.

client requirements, the Group won a turnkeydelivery contract from Total Petrochemicals in

Diverse Industrial Projects

Belgium to build a new modular pilot plant

After making a significant contribution to the

designed to produce olefins from methanol.

design and construction of the Airbus 380

This will be the first semi-industrial application

assembly building in Toulouse (France), Technip

of a promising new process.

was awarded a contract for the feasibility study
for the new Airbus 350 assembly facilities. The

Life Sciences

Group was also awarded project management

2005 also saw Technip bolster its position in

and engineering services contracts for a number

life sciences, winning a number of contracts in

of other major industrial projects, including

t h e f i n e c h e m i c a l s , b i o t e c h n o l og y a n d

new mail sorting/distribution centers in the

active ingredient markets. Clients here include

Loire Valley for the French Post Office, and a

Sanofi Pasteur in China and France, as well as

new National Theatre complex on the outskirts

Leo, Guerbet and Janssen in Belgium. The year

of Lyon in association with the architectural

also saw the coming into force of a contract

firm Fabre & Speller.

with L’Oréal to build a cosmetics production
complex in China. After completing a project
for Oril at the company’s Baclair (France) site,
Technip won another Oril project management
and engineering services contract for an active
ingredient plant at Bolbec in Normandy.
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Whichever particular business segment is involved in a project,
Technip has only one core activity: the design and construction of
industrial facilities. The Operations Division, set up in 2005, is
responsible for all operations and engineering centers as well as naval
and industrial asset management.

Operations
29

operations
and engineering centers

13
6
5
3

vessels

production plants

spool bases
yards

Investments from 2003 to 2005
(in € millions)

171
122

2003

16

119

2004

2005

Gearing up for further business
growth

Strengthening production capacity

The Operations Division is responsible for 29

which manufacture flexible pipes. The facility

operations and engineering centers in all parts

at Le Trait (France) produces flexibles for deep

of the world. These centers are the base for

and very deepwater projects in West Africa,

the engineers and technicians who handle the

deepwater developments in Asia-Pacific and

engineering and project management tasks.

conventional offshore projects in the North

The Operations Division also manages all the

Sea. This plant’s capacity is currently being

Group’s offshore asset centers: 13 diving support

increased by 20%. The other plant, at Vitoria

and subsea construction vessels, 6 plants

(Brazil), originally produced flexibles only for

producing flexible pipes and umbilicals, 3 yards

deep and very deepwater projects in that

(including Pori in Finland specializing in the

country, but the unit’s capacity is now being

construction of Spar platforms), and 5 assembly

boosted by 50%, enabling it to strengthen its

bases.

position in the local market while also helping

Thanks to the Group’s dedicated IT and

Le Trait meet demand elsewhere. This enhanced

telecom infrastructures, all these centers are

flexible pipe production capacity will help

networked, enhancing Technip’s ability to

Technip consolidate its leading position in the

handle variations in workload and making the

offshore construction market.

The present focus here is on two plants

Group more competitive. Furthermore, the
Operations Division develops and standardizes

Expanding the fleet

the procedures, tools and methods used by

Technip has also ordered a new diving support

Technip, enhancing the quality, safety and

and subsea construction vessel, a decision that

cost-effectiveness of the services offered to

was motivated by the award of two 5-year

clients. The different departments responsible

subsea service contracts for projects in the

for Quality, Purchasing, Information Systems

Norwegian North Sea, beginning in 2007. The

and Health-Safety-Environment work closely

vessel, due to be delivered in 2008, is the latest

together to achieve the very highest standards

addition to a fleet of 13 vessels, including

in all these areas.

9 dedicated to subsea construction.

The strong growth in the backlog (up 65% in
2005) and the increased projected investment

Strenghthened tools and procedures

by the world’s 12 largest oil and gas groups,

This strengthening has resulted in ISO 14001

have led Technip to expand its production

certification for most of the Group’s production

capability.

facilities, comprising 80% of Group employees
in 2005.
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Technip Worldwide

Orkanger
Pori

Evanton

St-John’s

Aberdeen
Newcastle
London
Le Trait

Oslo
St. Petersburg

The Hague
Düsseldorf

Paris

Lyon

Rome

Barcelona
Los Angeles
Mobile

Houston

Jupiter

Caracas
Port Harcourt

Bogota

Dande
Luanda
Lobito

Operations and Engineering Centers

Rio de Janeiro

Spoolbases
Yards
Production plants

18
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Barra do Riacho
Vitoria

The Group’s Fleet
Alliance

Apache

Constructor

Deep Blue
Baku
Deep Pioneer
Shanghai

Doha

Abu Dhabi
Mumbai

Normand Pioneer*

New Delhi
Bangkok

Orelia

Chennai

Kuala Lumpur
Singapore

Seamec 1
Balikpapan

Djakarta

Seamec 2

Seamec 3

Sunrise 2000
Perth
Venturer

Wellservicer
* Owned by Solstad
(under long-term charter to Technip)
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2005 in Review
January

March
£7 million (€10 million) requires
the J4 production well to be tied

Algeria’s National Oil Refining

a contract to the consortium

installation contract by

back to the existing Johnston

Company, an engineering

of Technip and Bechtel for a

Kerr-McGee Oil & Gas Corp.,

subsea manifold, which is located

consultancy contract worth

grassroots gas plant as part of

a wholly-owned affiliate

400km South East of Aberdeen.

approximately €14 million

the Khursaniyah, Fadhli and Abu

for the revamping and expansion

Hadiyah hydrocarbon field

of their refinery in Arzew (Algeria).

development program located
in Saudi Arabia.

of Kerr-McGee Corp.
The Ticonderoga production

Technip is awarded a contract

Technip is awarded by NAFTEC,

will be tied back

by Murphy Oil Corporation,

Refinery modernization covers

to the Constitution Spar.

for the engineering, construction

the overall instrumentation

and installation of a Spar floating

and electrical systems.

production platform complete

The expansion aims at improving

Hovensa, a lump sum turnkey

venture with Zachry Construction

with topsides facilities, hull,

fuel specification in line with

contract for a new hydrotreating

Corporation and Saipem,

mooring system and

2009 European regulations.

unit to be located at its refinery

is awarded by Freeport LNG

riser/wellhead systems for the

Development an engineering,

Kikeh Area Development located

Technip, in association with

procurement and construction

in 1,330m water depth offshore

Subsea 7, is awarded by Petroleo

(EPC) contract for a new

Sabah, Malaysia. Kikeh will be

Brasileiro SA (Petrobras)

Liquefied Natural Gas receiving

the first deepwater development

an engineering, procurement,

terminal to be located in

in Malaysia.

installation and construction

Hydro two engineering,

contract worth around US $500

procurement, installation and

million (Technip share:

commissioning (EPIC) contracts

Canadian Natural Resources

approximately US $350 million).

worth around €147 million (NOK

Limited (Canadian Natural) two

The contract is for the deepwater

1.2 billion) combined, for tie-ins

contracts worth approximately

Roncador subsea field

from Fram East field to Troll C

CAD 1,070 million (€700 million)

development offshore Brazil.

and from Vilje to Alvheim, on the

Technip, leader in a joint

Quintana Island near Freeport,
Technip is awarded by

Texas (USA).

February
Technip is awarded

20

Saudi Aramco awards

Technip is awarded the
Ticonderoga subsea flowline

Technip is awarded, by

in St. Croix, US Virgin Islands.

April
Technip is awarded by Norsk

an engineering, procurement,

for upgrading facilities and

Norwegian Continental Shelf.

installation and commissioning

a hydrogen unit for the Horizon

The contracts include engineering,

(EPCI) contract by Caledonia

Oil Sands Project located 75km

fabrication, installation and

E.U. Limited for the development

northwest of Fort McMurray,

pre-commissioning of subsea

of the Johnston field in the

in Northern Alberta, Canada.

umbilicals, risers and flowlines,

Southern part of the North Sea.

tie-ins, manifold installation and

The contract, valued at around

subsea equipment protection work.
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May

June
Technip signs a Letter

Technip signs a Letter of

Technip is awarded three

Intent with Qatar Petroleum,

contracts worth approximately

of Intent – effective May 11,

with J P Kenny Pty Ltd (Perth),

ChevronPhillips Chemical

Technip Oceania Pty Ltd

£66 million (€92 million)

2005 – with Saudi Basic

in a 50/50 joint venture,

Company LLC, Qatar

for subsea developments

Industries Corporation (SABIC)

is selected as the front end

Petrochemical Company

on the UK and Republic of

for the construction

engineering and design (FEED)

and Total Petrochemicals

Ireland Continental Shelves.

of a large-scale ethylene and

and engineering, procurement,

for an engineering,

The developments concerned

propylene production plant

construction management

procurement and construction

are Corrib, Tweedsmuir and

at the Yansab complex in Yanbu

(EPCM) contractor with respect

(EPC) contract worth above

Gryphon, operated by Shell,

Industrial City, on the Red Sea

to the upstream facilities for the

US $800 million for

Talisman and Kerr-McGee

coast of Saudi Arabia.

Greater Gorgon development.

the realization of an ethylene

respectively.

The development is located
Technip, leader in a consortium

cracker located at Ras Laffan

approximately 70 -140km

with JGC and Tecnicas Reunidas,

offshore Western Australia at

in consortium with Hyundai

is awarded by Vietnam Oil &

the North West Shelf in

Heavy Industries, is awarded,

Gas Corporation (Petrovietnam)

220 -1,300m water depth

by Gulf LNG Energy LLC,

by Total Upstream Nigeria

a lump sum turnkey contract for

and includes both the Gorgon

a design-phase contract for

Limited, a lump sum turnkey

the engineering, procurement

and Jansz fields.

a new liquefied natural gas

contract worth approximately

and construction of Vietnam’s

(LNG) import terminal.

in Qatar.
Technip is awarded,

Technip as leader,

US $1.08 billion (Technip share:

first crude oil refinery, to be

The contract covers the front

roughly 50%), for the

located in Dung Quat, south of

Chevron an engineering,

end engineering (FEED)

engineering, procurement,

Da Nang in central Vietnam.

procurement, installation and

of the terminal, which

supply, construction

commissioning (EPIC) contract

is to be located in Pascagoula,

and offshore commissioning

for the development of the

Mississippi, USA.

of the Floating Production

Captain ‘C’ oil project in the UK

Storage and Offloading unit

North Sea. The contract, valued

(FPSO) of the Akpo field

at around £15.5 million

development, offshore Nigeria.

(€23 million), requires

Technip is awarded by

the Captain ‘C’ facilities (two
productions wells) to be tied
back to existing Captain field
infrastructure.
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2005 in Review

July
• The first contract includes

and capacity expansion of three

a new jet fuel sweetening unit,

by Murphy Sabah Oil Company

diving, pipeline repair, contingency

existing ethylene plants at Kazan.

the revamping of two existing

Ltd for the engineering, design,

and modification services in

The combined capacity of the

hydro-desulfurization units

supply and installation of the

Norway. Its total value

three plants will be increased

(HDS) and some associated

Kikeh Area Development subsea

is estimated to be €515 million

from the present 400,000 to

utilities and offsites.

pipeline and riser system. Located

(NOK 4 billion) including options.

605,000 metric tons per year by

in 1,330m water depth offshore

The actual value will depend

debottlenecking, modernization

Sabah, Kikeh will be the first

upon the client’s subsea

and the installation in one

announce they have signed a

deepwater development in

requirements.

of the plants of a new double-cell

Memorandum of Understanding

Malaysia and will include

• The second contract,

ethane cracking furnace.

whereby their respective

the deepest installation of a

valued at around €52 million

Technip is awarded a contract

subsea production system

(NOK 400 million), options

in Asia to date.

included, comprises maintenance
and preparation of equipment

Technip signs a Memorandum

utilized for pipeline repair services.

of Understanding, effective

affiliates Technip Oceania

September

Pty Ltd and Subsea 7 Singapore
Pte Ltd express their intention

YEMGAS, a joint venture

to form a jointly operated

shared equally between Technip,

company for subsea offshore

JGC (Japan) and KBR (USA) –

activities in the Asia Pacific

signs a major lump sum turnkey

region (excluding India and

Kuwait Olefins Company (TKOC),

Limited (an affiliate of Chevron

contract with Yemen LNG

Middle-East).

a joint venture between The

Corporation) awards Technip

Company Ltd (YLNG) for the

Dow Chemical Company (Dow),

an engineering, procurement,

country’s first LNG (Liquefied

Petrochemical Industries

construction and installation

Natural Gas) plant. The value of

an important engineering,

Company, Kuwait (PIC) and

(EPCI) contract of approximately

the contract is over US $2 billion.

procurement and construction

Kuwaiti private companies, for

US $800 million, for the Agbami

the construction of an ethylene

field development, located

plant at their new Olefins-2

offshore Nigeria in approximately

Innovene Manufacturing France

systems for the deepwater

Petrochemical Complex

1,550m water depth.

SAS an engineering, procurement,

Tahiti Field Development

construction management

Project. Chevron has also

(EPCM) services contract

awarded Technip a contract

as of June 17, 2005, with The

Star Deep Water Petroleum

in Shuaiba, Kuwait.
Technip is awarded an ethylene

22

Technip and Subsea 7

Technip is awarded

contract by Chevron for delivery
Technip is awarded by

of the Spar hull and mooring

Technip is awarded two

capacity expansion project by

to implement the Clean Fuels

for the fabrication

contracts by Statoil for subsea

Kazanorgsintez in Kazan in the

Project in the Innovene Refinery

of the topsides modules.

services in the Norwegian part

Russian Federation. The project

located in Lavéra (France).

of the North Sea.

involves the modernization

The project scope includes
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2005 in Review

October
Company’s (TKOC) new Olefins-2

Technip sells to Gulf Island

integration of the activities

Having completed the

Petroleo Brasileiro S.A. (Petrobras)

Petrochemical Complex in Shuaiba,

Fabrication, Inc. (NASDAQ: GIFI)

acquired over the past years,

Technip is awarded by
an EPCI contract valued around

Kuwait. This contract covers the

the facilities, machinery

Technip decides to rationalize

US $210 million for a subsea

detail engineering, procurement

and equipment of Gulf Marine

and simplify its Corporate

pipeline and a free standing hybrid

and supply of equipment and

Fabricators, a Technip affiliate

structure in order to further

riser for deepwater oil export

materials, construction and

located near Corpus Christi,

improve its efficiency in meeting

in the Campos Basin,

pre-commissioning and follows

Texas. The parties have also

its customers’ needs

offshore Rio de Janeiro.

the signing in June 2005 of a

entered into a cooperation

Memorandum of Understanding

agreement to work together

between Technip and TKOC,

on mutually agreed-upon EPC

Laffan Liquefied Natural Gas

a joint venture between The Dow

(engineering, procurement

Company Limited (3) (“RasGas

Technip, in association with

Chemical Company (Dow),

and construction) projects.

(3)”) a contract for engineering,

Innovene as licensor, is awarded

Petrochemical Industries

The cooperation agreement

procurement and construction

by Petrochina International

Company, Kuwait (PIC) and

will allow Technip to continue

(EPC) of the RasGas Onshore

a contract for two lines of

Kuwaiti private companies.

to have access to the services

Expansion Project Trains 6 & 7

polypropylene for Petrochina

for two of the world’s largest

Dushanzi Petrochemical

LNG trains. This contract will be

Company’s new complex in

Saudi Basic Industries Corporation

executed by a joint venture of

the Xinjiang Province, China.

(SABIC) for the construction

Liquefied Gas Company Limited

of a large-scale ethylene

(3) (Qatargas 3) and the sponsors

and propylene production plant

of the Qatargas 4 Project

Technip signs with the Ras

December

Technip and Chiyoda. Each train
is designed to produce

Technip is awarded by BP

of this fabrication facility.
Technip signs a contract with
Technip signs with Qatar

7.8 million tons per annum

Norge AS a contract worth around

at the Yansab Complex in Yanbu

(Qatargas 4) a contract for two

of LNG, with Train 6 scheduled

€23 million (NOK 178 million)

Industrial City, on the Red Sea

of the world’s largest liquefied

for start up in late 2008, and

for the installation of the Tambar

coast of Saudi Arabia.This contract,

natural gas (LNG) trains.

Train 7 approximately a year

Production Pipeline Phase 2,

effective as of May 11, 2005, the

This contract will be executed

later. The value of the contract

including tie-ins of both ends to

execution date of the relevant

by a joint venture created

is in the range of typical values

the Tambar and Ula platforms on

Letter of Intent, covers basic and

by Technip and Chiyoda.

the Norwegian Continental Shelf.

detail engineering, procurement

The value of the contract

and supply of materials,

is around US $4 billion.

for such large projects,
i.e. approximately US $4 billion.

Technip signs a contract for

construction, pre-commissioning,

the construction of an ethylene

commissioning and training

plant at The Kuwait Olefins

of the owner’s personnel.
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Stock Exchange Listing
Eurolist
by Euronext TM
The new indexes
Technip was selected in 2004
as member of CAC NEXT20
index, made of the twenty
most representative stocks
after the CAC40, measured
by free-float market
capitalization and liquidity.
As of December 31, 2005,
Technip ranked third within
the index in term of weighting
(6.36%).

Stock Price Evolution
Paris (Eurolist by Euronext TM - A compartment)
Evolution of Technip Share Price compared to the CAC 40 Index
(from 01/03/2005 to 12/31/2005)
60%

Technip = + 49%

50%
40%
30%
20%
10%

CAC 40 = + 23%
0%
-10%
-20%
January

February

March

April

May

June

July

August

September

October November December

Technip’s share outperformed the CAC40 index, ending 2005 at almost its highest price, increasing
49% year on year, which represents more than twice the CAC40 performance along the year.

New York (NYSE)
Evolution of Technip ADS Price compared to the Dow Jones Industrial Index
(from 01/03/2005 to 12/31/2005)
40%

Technip = + 34%

30%
20%
10%
0%
-10%

Dow Jones = -1%

-20%
January

February

March

April

May

June

July

August

September

October November December

While the Dow Jones reference index remain relatively stable throughout the year and ended at
breakeven, Technip ADS listed on the NYSE, grew significantly starting in May to close the year on a
34% increase.
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Shareholding structure
at December 31, 2005

Stock Market Data and Share Price Performance as of December 31, 2005
TEC FP(1)

2005

2004

Highest Price (€)

51.90

34.28

Lowest Price (€)

30.45

20.11

Last Price of the Year (€)

50.80

34.00

Yearly Average Price (€)

39.72

28.67

49%

57%

636,663

628,359

Annual Variation
Individual shareholders
Oppenheimer Funds Inc.
Lehman Brothers
International
ADS Holders
Institut Français du Pétrole
Employees
Treasury Shares
Other Shareholders

8.0%
5.9%
4.7%
5.0%
3.1%
2.0%
1.6%
69.7%

2006 Financial Timetable
(Provisional calendar subject to change)

April 19: Annual General Meeting
(1rst notice)
April 28: Annual General Meeting
(2nd notice)

Average number of shares traded daily
Outstanding shares (in millions)

97.3

95.1

4,943

3,233
1.09

Dividend per share (€)

1.11
0.920*

0.825

Pay out ratio

82.9%

62.7%

Net yield (3)

2.32%

2.88%

Market capitalization in millions of euros
Fully diluted earning per share (€) (2)

TKP US

2005

2004

Highest Price ($)

61.93

46.73

Lowest Price ($)

39.60

25.94

Last price of the year ($)

60.78

46.68

34%

71%

Annual Variation
(1)

Value after the 4-for-1 share split dated May 13, 2005.
(2)
Assuming that the convertible bonds are fully converted into new shares, that all of the stock options are exercised, and
excluding treasury stock. Earning per share 2005 and 2004 are calculated as per IFRS.
(3)
Based on 2005 average share price.
* Subject to the vote by shareholders at the Combined Annual General Meeting.

May 18: 2006 First Quarter Results
July 27: 2006 First Half Results
November 16: 2006 Nine-Month
Results

Shareholder and Investor
Contacts
Individual shareholders, institutional
investors and financial analysts can
contact the Technip Investor Relations
team who can answer their questions.
Technip Investor Relations
Tour Technip
92973 Paris La Defense Cedex
France
Tel : + 33 (0)1 47 78 66 75
Fax : + 33 (0)1 47 78 67 58
e-mail : investor-relations@technip.com

Share split

DJSI

As per the 2005 shareholder general meeting

(Dow Jones Sustainability Indexes)

votes, Technip’s share nominal value was

Sustainable development concerns are integrated

divided by 4 and the number of outstanding

into the Group's approach to executing its

shares multiplied by 4, after closing of Paris

projects and defining its own values. Thanks to

Stock Market on May 13, 2005. This split was to

it realizations in sustainable development

enlarge the individual shareholding base,

Technip has been reselected in 2006 as a

increase liquidity of the share and equal the

member of the Dow Jones Sustainability

Paris Technip share and the NYSE Technip ADS.

STOXX (member since 2003) and World
(member since 2004) Indexes

Registered Shareholder

in recognition of the Group's

Every shareholder has the possibility to be listed

longstanding commitment to

as a registered shareholder. To do so contact:

sustainable development.

BNP Paribas Securities Services
GCT Emetteurs
Actionnariat Technip
Immeuble Tolbiac 75450 Paris Cedex 09 - France
Tel : + 33 (0) 826 109 119
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Human Resources
In 2005, the Group continued to strengthen its workforce in order
to deal with the growth of its activities.The Group is multicultural, with
employees from more than 60 nationalities working in more than
50 countries worldwide.

Breakdown of Workforce
by Region

France
United Kingdom
Italy
Finland
Other European
Countries
Asia-Pacific
South America
North America
Middle East
Russia
& Central Asia
Africa

26

20%
14%
6%
3%
6%
18%
11%
9%
6%
6%
1%

Total Workforce
(at December 31, 2005)

20,898
employees

+ 9.5% in one year

89%

of employees
have permanent
contracts

An Expanding Workforce

During the year, the Group received some

During 2005, the overall number of Group

46,000 unsolicited job applications, a significant

e m p l oye e s g rew f ro m 1 9 , 0 8 6 ( a t e n d -

increase over the previous year. Technip’s

December 2004) to 20,898 (at end-December

strong attraction in the employment market

More than

2005). Technip’s workforce increased in all

enabled the Group to overcome the skills

46,000

regions where the Group is present with the

shortage in the industry and recruit the

highest recruitment levels in the Asia-Pacific,

additional qualified personnel needed to

the Middle East and Europe.

deal with its business growth. This market

job applications

pressure could increase in the coming months
In 2005,Technip increased the number of recruit-

due to the growing activity in the oil and gas

ments, mainly through permanent contracts

industry.

under which 3,420 people were hired.

Social Charter
Social responsibility is one of the core
values of Technip. This Charter defines
the Group's Objectives in this area
and the corresponding guidelines.

Our Objectives
To have employment relationships guided
by the Group's values.
To implement this Charter to all entities
of the Technip Group which will adapt
this Charter to local legislations, cultural
differences and local specificities of the
countries in which they operate.

Our Guidelines
In order to reach the above mentioned
objectives in terms of social responsibility,
Technip:

Will not, as a principle, practice any
discrimination among its employees
or applicants on the basis of sex, age,
race, religion, political or trade union
affiliations, nationality or disability.
Is committed to providing the necessary
training for the Group's skill base
and its advancement, as well
as for the professional development
of its employees.
Promotes and facilitates mobility within
the Group.
Will not employ children under the
minimum working age for completing
compulsory schooling in the countries
where we do business, and in any event,
not under the age of 15 years old.
Is committed to not using forced or
compulsory labor.
Will continue to maintain a positive work
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environment in which employees and
management work together to strengthen
its business.
Respects the freedom of association,
which includes the right of each
employee to join or refuse to join a trade
union in accordance with the applicable
legislation in the relevant country.
Endeavors to develop an open
dialogue with its employees and their
representatives, if any, concerning
significant decisions that will directly
affect them.
Encourages its suppliers and sub-contractors
to implement the values set forth
in the present Charter in their own
business policies.
Endeavors to distribute this Charter
to all employees within the Technip
Group through our local entities.
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Human Resources

Mobility

1,004
Group employees
from

25 different

- wherever possible, favor internal recruitment,

international assignments in 20 countries.

- expand the possibilities for internal promotion,

Technip runs an active international mobility

- encourage geographical and professional mobility,

policy, adapted to the needs of projects under

- foster development of a strong Group culture

vector for sharing best practices and fostering a

as expatriates

20

basic principles:

More than 1,000 Group employees are on

Technip’s internal mobility policy is guided by six

way. In addition, this mobility is an excellent

countries, work

in

An Active International Mobility
Policy

based on shared values,
- promote the career development of individual

strong Group culture based on its values.

countries

Technip’s scope of activities means that

employees,
- encourage the sharing of best practices.

employees may be assigned either to project
sites or the Group’s local subsidiaries.

The Intranet site “Technip Mobility”, which is

Conditions for overseas assignments are

dedicated to internal employment offers, is

governed by a Group policy that is adapted to

designed to keep Group employees informed of

the particular project or country.

the opportunities for local and international
mobility.

Number of expatriates/impatriates in 2005
Africa
2
97

Americas
67
80

Asia-Pacific
236
348

Europe
647
279

Middle East
48
162

Russia & Central Asia
4
38
0

100

200

Number of employees posted to units
or worksites in another geographical zone

28

A N N UA L

A N D

S U S TA I N A B L E

D E V E L O P M E N T

R E P O RT

2 0 0 5

300

400

500

600

Number of employees working in the units
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Human Resources

Employee Innovation and Creativity
Jacques Franquelin Award

> Technological innovations

This award was introduced by the
Group in 2000 in memory of Jacques
Franquelin, who died unexpectedly
in May of that year and who was widely
respected for his professional values and
the number of successful innovations he
introduced during his career.
The prize is a vector for rewarding
and encouraging those who, like
Jacques Franquelin, use their creativity
to contribute to Technip’s dynamism
and development.
The prize is open to any Group
employee and may be awarded for
individual or team achievements.
Innovations in any area of business –
technical, commercial or administrative
– will be considered. In 2005, 106
projects were submitted for prizes;
17 projects were selected and 47
employees were awarded prizes.

In this category, awards are made for the
creation or development of any innovative
system, device or process that allows
Technip to make technological advances
in terms of reliability, reduction in
investment costs and operating costs,
safety and environmental protection.

These prizes are awarded in four
different categories:
> Taking initiatives
In this category, initiatives are rewarded
when they have resulted directly in:
improvement in the quality, reliability and
safety of the services and work provided
by the Group, its entities or by its suppliers
and subcontractors; simplification of our
procedures and methods, reduction in
costs and schedules, and, more generally,
improvement in our productivity and
competitiveness.

> Cooperation within the Group
In this category, initiatives are rewarded
when they have resulted in the
development of the synergies within
the Group, the harmonization of work
methods, the concretization of achieving
common goals and, more generally,
the development of Group spirit.
> Sustainable development

This last category will be included for the
first time in 2006. In this category, initiatives are rewarded concerning sustainable
development, whether in social, civic or
environmental matters. Suggested areas
may include: new technologies, offering
improved safety for people and increasing
the preservation of the planet’s resources;
new actions in term of social responsibility;
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actions supporting local communities,
especially at project sites.

Chéreau-Lavet Prize
Backed by the French Academy of
Technologies and the Arts & Métiers
Foundation, this prize was created
five years ago by the Chéreau-Lavet
Association. It is awarded each year
to a French engineer for the best
invention leading to industrial
implementation. An engineer who
has been with Technip for over twenty
years was among the five finalists
in 2005.

OTC Distinguished
Achievement Award
This prestigious prize, which is presented
each year at the world Offshore
Technology Conference (OTC)
in Houston, USA, was awarded in 2005
to the Technip/Kerr-McGee partnership
for its development of three successive
generations of Spar platforms for
deep-offshore developments.
Technip, a pioneer of this new concept,
has built 10 of the 13 Spar platforms
in use today and is currently building
another, all for use in the Gulf of Mexico.
A new stage in the deployment of this
technology was reached when Technip
won a further contract to build a Spar
platform in Malaysia.
This will be the first Spar facility to be set
up outside the Gulf of Mexico.
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Sustainable Development
Technip has been following a formal policy on
sustainable development for three years now and
strives to communicate regularly on its commitments
and achievements. Most of the targets set for 2005
were reached during the year and the reporting on
initiatives undertaken in the various Group units
was more meaningful and precise than in previous
years. New targets were also set for 2006, and new
indicators are being established to help monitor
future progress.

Technip’s Overall Performance (Source DJSI 2005)
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Challenges and Approach
To meet the challenges of Technip’s business activities and implement
effectively its approach to sustainable development, the Group set up a
dedicated Sustainable Development Committee in late 2004. During 2005,
this steering committee supervised all sustainable development initiatives
and reporting and strengthened its network of correspondents throughout
the Group. Numerous indicators have now been established to help
Technip monitor the progress of its initiatives vis-à-vis all stakeholders.

Reminder
of Objectives
Global Compact
Communicate on action
taken, via the Global Compact
Internet site.

Reporting
Improve the system used
for collecting the data needed
to establish performance
indicators for all three
dimensions of sustainable
development (social,
environmental and economic).
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Technip, a Partner
in the UN Global
Compact
Human Rights
1. Businesses should support
and respect the protection
of internationally proclaimed
human rights within their
sphere of influence
2. Make sure that they are not
complicit in human rights
abuses

The Context

An Approach Driven by Ambition

Technip is an engineering and construction

As explained in the section on “Vision and

company that provides full services to clients

Values,” Technip has set itself ambitious goals:

Labor Standards

carrying out capital investment projects. The

to become the best and most highly regarded

Group is involved in projects in many parts of

engineering and construction services company

3. Businesses should uphold the
freedom of association and the
effective recognition of the
right to collective bargaining
4. The elimination of all forms of
forced and compulsory labor
5. The effective abolition of child
labor
6. The elimination of discrimination
in respect of employment and
occupation

the world, building industrial facilities that are

in the industry by implementing the values

usually complex and often quite large. A large

that underpin its Corporate culture.

part of Technip’s business involves fossil-fuel

Just as the Group had already done in the areas

development, i.e. the oil and gas industry, an

of quality control and workplace health and

area where sustainable development is of vital

safety management, Technip launched very

concern to all of humanity. Furthermore,

early on a drive to obtain ISO 14001 certification

current world economic growth, encouraged by

for the environment management systems of

particularly low interest rates, is generating a

the main Group subsidiaries, as well as publishing

relatively strong increase in world consumption

its corporate values and setting up its Ethics

of oil and gas, which in turn has resulted in

Committee in 2001.

strong investment in hydrocarbon production

Since then, Technip has steadily bolstered its

projects.

initiatives in all these areas. In 2003, the Group

The major decisions regarding the projects on

became a member of the UN Global Compact,

which Technip is likely to be asked to work (i.e.

whose ten principles reflect most aspects of

decisions on the size of the investment, project

Technip’s corporate values. The Group also

location and the resources required to carry

enshrined its commitments in four corporate

out the project) are all taken by the Group’s

charters: the Ethics Charter, the Social Charter,

clients.

the Environment Charter and the Health &

But as the company asked to take charge of

Safety Charter.

executing the client’s project, Technip strives to

Technip is also the only European engineering

assume its responsibilities to all stakeholders.

and construction services company to be

These responsibilities may cover ethics and

included in the Dow Jones Sustainability Index

accountability, commitments related to

World.

Environment
7. Businesses should support a
precautionary approach to
environmental challenges
8. Undertake initiatives to
promote greater environmental
responsibility
9. Encourage the development
and diffusion of environmentally friendly technologies

Anti-Corruption
10. Businesses should work
against all forms of
corruption, including
extortion and bribery.

corporate governance, workplace health and
safety, environmental protection, the quality of
industrial relations, long-term value creation
and support for local development.
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Challenges and Approach

“

The Sustainable
Development
Committee acts
on information
provided by 98
correspondents
based in the
countries
throughout the
world where
Technip does
business.

”

A Dedicated Sustainable
Development Committee

Objectives and Reporting

In 2004, Tec hnip set up its Sustainable

to enhance its efficiency. In line with the state-

Development Committee to supervise all the

ment of objectives for 2005, it has improved

Group’s sustainable development initiatives,

the system used for gathering the data needed

particularly the gathering of data from the

to establish performance indicators, and it has

various Group units and setting of concrete

enlarged its network of correspondents. Two of

and measurable performance targets.

these correspondents have now been appointed

The committee comprises nine members

for each Group entity, one handling HSE issues

drawn from the Group’s various divisions.

and the other responsible for social and civic

During 2005, the committee met eight times.

matters.

In addition to drafting the Sustainable

In addition, the reporting system itself has

Development Report, the committee finalized

been streamlined by redrafting the question-

details of the proposed overhaul of the

naires that are sent to the various Group units.

architecture of the source documents in this

A study was also set in motion to select a software

field, a proposal submitted to the Board of

tool for gathering and processing social and

Directors in December 2004. This overhaul was

employment data. Lastly, as on previous occa-

approved by the Board on 18 May 2005 and

sions, Technip was represented at the 3rd World

details were circulated to all Group units in

Sustainable Development Forum, which was

June 2005. The proposed changes are based on

held in Paris on December 1-3, 2005.

the rules set out in Technip’s Statement of
Corporate Values and the Group’s four charters
covering ethics, environment, health & safety
and social issues.
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The committee has taken a number of initiatives

Challenges and Approach

Construction project sites used to establish performance indicators

DHC

RLC, QGX, RGX

Drafting the Report
The Sustainable Development
Committee has decided to
base Group reporting on the
standards laid down by the
Global Reporting Initiative
(GRI), launched in 1997,
which sets out a framework
for corporate sustainable
development reports. GRI
standards, which are widely
accepted internationally,
enable companies to assess
their sustainable development
performance using numerous
indicators that are defined
very precisely so as to allow
meaningful international
comparisons. Furthermore,
GRI standards are in line
with French legislation – in
particular article 116 of the
New Economic Regulation
Act (15 May 2001) – which
obliges French companies
listed on a regulated stock
exchange to provide in their
annual report details of the
social and environmental
management initiatives
accompanying their business
activities.

Dalia FPSO
Dystar Synthesis
Arkema

Shah Deniz
TGTU
NEB

Beautycos

U250

Amenam

NLNG+, NLNG6
Guamare
BZMU Expansion
Reduc
Solvay
Sasol PP2

Otway Gas Plant

Environmental Reporting:
Scope and Method

Social Reporting: Scope and Method

Evaluation of environmental impacts is based

two sets of data. The first is the monthly figures

on the indicators fixed in 2005 for consumption

on Technip’s workforce worldwide: overall

of water and energy, generation of green-

staffing numbers, new recruitment and resigna-

house gas emissions as well as production and

tions/dismissals, and breakdown by gender and

treatment of waste. The reference perimeter

country.The second is distilled from an in-depth

includes 80% of the Group’s engineering

study and includes indicators analyzed annually.

centers, 95% of manufacturing facilities,

In 2005, reporting included new indicators

100% of naval assets and 45% of construction

involving training and diversity.

project sites (accounting for 20 major projects).

In line with the objectives set for 2005, reporting

Performance ratios combine the figures

software has now been selected and will go

applying to the defined perimeter together

into use during 2006. A measurement and

with the number of manhours worked, thus

reporting protocol has been drawn up so as to

putting the impacts into a Group-wide

obtain homogenous and exhaustive responses.

perspective while also enabling year-on-year

This protocol sets out the procedures for

performance comparisons.

gathering and analyzing social/employment

The Group’s social reporting takes into account

data on the Group as well as definitions and a
methodology for the calculation and input of
indicators. The system also includes links to
the website of the units/worksites boasting
the best sustainable development practices,
thus enabling the various subsidiaries to rectify
any non-compliance in the most appropriate way.
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Sustainable Development
Progress Chart
COMMITMENTS

2005 OBJECTIVES

Corporate Governance

Diffusion and promotion of the Group’s new charters (Social, Ethics,
Environment, Health & Safety).

Deployment within the Group of new internal control procedures
in compliance with the US Sarbanes-Oxley Act.

Global Compact

Communication regarding initiatives undertaken, via the Global Compact website.

Indicators and Reporting /
Methodology

Improve the system used for gathering data necessary for determining
performance indicators in the three areas of sustainable development
(environmental, social, economic).

Sales up 5% to €5,400 million.
Improved operating margin.
Return to zero net debt.

Economic Performance

Environmental Protection

Obtain ISO 14001 certification for 8 new Group units in addition to the
13 already certified.
Raise from 60% to 80% the proportion of units reporting the following
environmental indicators: water consumption, energy consumption, waste
production/treatment.
Set performance targets for the main Group subsidiaries based
on available 2004 data.
Zero major environmental incidents.

Health & Safety

Targets for Technip employees + personnel of partners and sub-contractors:
Lost-Time Injury Rate (LTIR) =/< 0.056*
Total Recordable Injury Rate (TRIR) =/< 0.30*
Severity Rate (SR) =/< 1.17*
Improve reporting of risk situations on Group projects.

* All rates calculated on a basis of 200,000 manhours
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One of the prime objectives and one of the first initiatives of the
Committee was to put in place a progress chart showing how well the
Group’s policy on sustainable development was being applied. For the
second year in a row, this chart sets out the achievements of the previous
year and specifies the next stages in the program.

MAIN ACHIEVEMENTS IN 2005

N E X T S TA G E S

The four charters were distributed in four languages (French, English,
Portuguese and Italian) to Group employees along with a message
from the Chairman, and also posted on the Group’s website
www.technip.com and the Technip Intranet.
Identification and standardized documentation of risks and internal
control procedures in the Group.
Determination of the scope of evaluation.
Selection of dedicated software.
Selection of external partners to carry out testing.
General and applicative verification of the information systems currently in use.

Continue diffusing and promoting the four charters within the
Group and at project sites.
Ensure effective application by Group employees of the principles
set out in the Environment and Health & Safety Charters.
Pursue the implementation in all Group units of the
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act provisions regarding internal control.
Publication during 2007 of a report on the quality of Group
procedures.

In compliance with Global Compact requirements, Technip
forwarded its Report on Progress to the UN website staff,
uploading the Group’s 2004 Sustainable Development Report
on 30 June 2005.

Recurring action.
Request details from Technip’s main suppliers on their observance
of the 10 principles of the Global Compact.

Improvement of the questionnaires sent to the various
Group units.
Enlargement of the network of sustainable development correspondents.
Launch of a study to select an appropriate IT tool for collecting
and processing social data.

Coordinate the network of Sustainable Development correspondents.
Validate the IT tool for social data.
Extend use of the tool to other data
(environment, health, safety).

Consolidated sales: €5,400 million.
Operating margin ratio 4.3%.
Net positive cash flow of €668 million.

Continue to boost sales.
Improve the operating margin.

7 new subsidiaries obtained ISO 14001 certification: Technip Benelux
BV, TPIEL, Technip USA Houston, Technip Thailand, Technip Indonesia,
Technip Finland, Technip Offshore UK OOS. This brought the number
of certified Group subsidiaries to 20, involving 80% of Technip’s workforce.
80% of Group units reported on the various environmental
indicators.
Data collected in 2004 was analyzed, enabling identification
of the main areas for improvement.
Zero major environmental incidents.

Extend ISO 14001 certification to further Group units.
Raise to 100% within 3 years the proportion of Group units
reporting on the various environmental indicators.
Improve Technip’s performance as regards recycling of waste
on construction sites.
Enlarge the scope of reporting so as to set more relevant
performance targets.

No fatal accidents (3 in 2004).
No cases of major material damage.
Lost-Time Injury Rate (LTIR) = 0.06
Total Recordable Injury Rate (TRIR) = 0.30
Severity Rate (SR) = 1.39
More than 220 million manhours worked.
3 new subsidiaries certified OHSAS 18001 or equivalent.
More than 140,000 dangerous situations reported, analyzed
and rectified, compared to only 26,000 in 2004.

Continue to improve performance, aiming for a reduction
of 10% per year in Total Recordable Injury Rate.
Improve reporting of risk situations by 10% per year.

Increase the number of Group units certified OHSAS 18001
or equivalent.
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Sustainable Development Progress Chart

COMMITMENTS

2005 OBJECTIVES

Security

Travel abroad: set up a database to enable all employees overseas to be reached
at any time; prepare information booklets on the local characteristics of the main
countries where Technip employees are sent; set up a security intranet site where
information and procedures can be consulted on an ad hoc basis.
Raise employee awareness of security on board ships.

Set up a network of security correspondents and a group-level 24/7 hotline.

Skills Development

Ongoing reflection on the Group’s core professional disciplines in order
to identify and prepare for future developments.

Implement the 135 measures identified by Technip Think Tanks during 2005.

Corporate Citizenship

38

Launch new solidarity initiatives.
Expand the Group’s existing community-action programs.

Dialogue and Consultation

Finalize and improve on existing information and dialogue processes via
the European Works Council (EWC).

Clients, Partners and Sub-contractors

Work together with clients, partners and sub-contractors on each project
to devise a common health & safety management system and a common
approach to environmental protection.
Encourage suppliers and sub-contactors to integrate the principles
of Technip’s Social Charter into their own social policy.
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Sustainable Development Progress Chart

MAIN ACHIEVEMENTS IN 2005
To enhance employee protection, implementation
of a travel-security database enabling all employees to be contacted
during business travel.
Publication of a booklet on International Ship and Port Security (ISPS)
to raise employee awareness of security on board ships.
Development of a training module designed to raise employee
awareness of the need to protect the Group’s property and know-how.
Establishment of a group-level 24/7 hotline.
A study of the various professional disciplines involved
in Group projects.
Drafting of a “professional discipline” referential applicable
to all Group units.
In April 2005 a plan was drawn up for each of the 135 initiatives,
designating a project manager and fixing a timetable.
A first report was made in July detailing progress in implementing
each initiative.
Promotions to the Technip College of Experts in 2005 included 1 general
expert engineer, 9 principal expert engineers and 39 expert engineers,
bringing total membership of the college (factoring in departures) to 352.

N E X T S TA G E S
Expand the database to cover the whole Group.

Launch training sessions using the new module.

Similar studies focusing on the professional disciplines involved
in the other main Group functions.
Deployment of the “professional discipline” referential
in all Group units.
Finalization of the initiatives yet to be implemented.
Publication of a second progress report during the 2nd quarter of 2006.
Appoint at least 12 new members to the College of Experts
each year.

SA 8000 certification for Technip Italy.
Sponsorship of initiatives focusing on improving health and education
and combating social exclusion in a number of countries. These include the
Play Bus project for orphans in Azerbaijan and a $155,000 donation
by Group units to the American Red Cross following the devastation
wrought by Hurricane Katrina in Louisiana and Mississippi.
Specific programs designed to foster local development: in Nigeria,
training and employment of 1,500 young people from the Bonny
and Finima communities near the NLNG project site; in France,
a partnership agreement with a number of employment organizations,
enabling enabling 800 job-seekers to find employment on a major
petroleum project.

Census of Group practices and deployment of a standard procedure
for analyzing social, economic and environmental impacts prior
to beginning work on major projects.
Launch awareness and prevention programs on infectious
and tropical diseases (AIDS, malaria, dengue fever, Marburg fever)
in relevant countries where Technip operates (Angola, Nigeria,
South Africa).
Launch new community-support programs in the zones around
project sites in countries where Technip has recently begun
to operate (Vietnam, Yemen, Guinea, New Caledonia).

Appointment of the officers of the EWC in April 2005.
First ordinary meeting of the EWC in Paris in May 2005.
Second ordinary meeting of the EWC in Rome in December 2005.

Dialogue with the EWC on setting in place a non-smoking
policy in all the Group’s facilities in Europe.
Organization of inter-cultural training for members of the EWC.
Setting up of a EWC intranet site.
Ongoing dialogue with Group employees and official employee
organizations on ways to foster greater gender diversity.

Setting up, on a number of Technip projects, of HSE programs
designed in conjunction with partners and sub-contractors. Designation
of integrated HSE teams to implement and monitor HSE programs.
Each Group subsidiary now includes in its general procurement
conditions a new article setting out Technip’s core values and stating
its membership in the UN Global Compact, designed to encourage
suppliers to observe the same guidelines.
Development, for all Group activities, of a common process for
assessing the level of satisfaction of Technip clients.

Extend this partnership to even more projects.

Request Technip’s main suppliers to provide details on how these
these values are taken into account.
Implementation of this process on forthcoming projects.
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Environmental
Protection
Environmental protection is one of Technip’s top priorities, and indeed
a large majority of the Group’s units have now obtained ISO 14001
certification. During 2005, Technip fine-tuned its actions in this area,
establishing relevant performance indicators to form the basis of its
program to reduce consumption of water and energy and to sort and
recycle waste.

ISO 14001
certification
20 operational units
in 2005 comprising 80%
of the Group’s workforce

Reminder of
2005 Objectives
Obtain ISO 14001 certification for
the following subsidiaries: Technip
Abu Dhabi, Technip Benelux,
Technip Finland, Technip Indonesia,
Technip Norway, Technip Thailand,
Genesis and Duco.
Increase from 60% to 80% the
proportion of units reporting on
the following environmental
indicators: water consumption,
energy consumption,
production/treatment of waste.
Set performance objectives for the
main Group subsidiaries.
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Technip sites with ISO 14001 certification, 2000-2005
2000
2001

2
3

2002
2003

4
7
13

2004
2005

ISO 14001
Certification for
Technip’s Fleet
Since June 2005, all of the
fleet operating out of Aberdeen,
has been certified ISO 14001.
These nine vessels also comply
with the environmental
specifications laid down by
the International Convention
on the Prevention of Pollution
from Ships (MARPOL Convention).
In a spirit of ongoing improvement, Technip has set specific
environmental objectives for
2006, including lower fuel
consumption, increased training
for seagoing personnel and the
award of DNV CLEAN CLASS
classification for the Group’s
future support ship.

20

Technip’s Approach to Environmental
Protection

of Technip subsidiaries moved ahead during

The Group’s approach to environmental

A total of 20 units are now certified, comprising

p ro t e c t i o n i s u n d e rp i n n e d by c e r t i fi e d

80% of the Group’s workforce.

management systems as well as the

This figure is expected to pass the 90% mark

continuous improvement of all processes,

in 2006 with the certification of three new

products and services. ISO 14001 certification

centers.

2005 with the certification of seven new units.

Environmental Charter
Environmental responsibility is one of the
core values of Technip. This Charter defines
the Group's Objectives in this area and the
corresponding Environmental Guidelines.

Our Objectives
To strive to minimize the impact of our
activities on the environment and risks
to nature and others.
To strive persistently and with determination
to avoid any environmental incidents.
Management’s commitment is a critical
success factor in achieving these goals.

Our Guidelines
In order to achieve our Objectives, we have
established the following guidelines:
To comply with applicable environmental
legislation and our own standards.
To set clear and meaningful objectives
for environmental performance, placing
an emphasis on key indicators.
To measure our performance and
communicate our progress, regularly
and openly.
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To hold managers, supervisors and
employees accountable for compliance with
our environmental management systems.
To implement environmental management
systems which comply with ISO 14001
requirements.
To use and develop our engineering
knowledge to reduce the environmental
impact of the facilities we design, build
or operate together with our clients.
To combine our engineering and technology
know-how with sound assessment principles
in order to minimize environmental impacts
and mitigate, as much as is reasonably
practicable, residual consequences that may
arise.
To promote employees awareness so that
they may integrate environmental
considerations into their daily activity.
To work with our clients, partners and
subcontractors to build a common
environmental management system
on each project.
To strive to continually improve
our environmental performance.
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Environmental Protection

Environmental management performance
(Source DJSI 2005)
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Environmental Achievements

Total waste produced during 2005 came to

During 2005, water consumption for the

50,810 metric tons, of which less than 5% was

perimeter described above stood at 1.83 million

hazardous waste. This waste, from offices,

cubic meters. This figure includes both drinking

project sites, manufacturing facilities and vessels,

water consumed by project personnel and water

is sorted and treated in compliance with Group

used for general services in construction work.

guidelines and with regulations in force in the

Most project sites are equipped with special units

countries concerned. Waste is always recycled

for treating domestic waste water and the

according to the availability of the local disposal

treated water is then used in construction work

facilities.

(preparing concrete, dust management…).

Environmental
indicators
in 2005
per manhour:

Energy consumption
Energy consumption
Natural Gas
Electric energy from public network
Fuel oil
Ratio per manhour

Unit

Offices

MWh
MWh
MWh
kWh/h

11,657
36,379
0
1.90

Unit

Offices

Fabrication Construction
units project sites

13,026
21,688
82,318
18.52

Fleet

Total
2005

0
0
0
1,554
130,198 385,566
56.12
1.58

24,683
59,621
598,082
5.61

Energy: 5.61 kW
Water: 15.03 liters
Waste: 0.42 Kg

Water consumption

CO2 : 1.87 Kg

Water consumption
Water consumption
Ratio per manhour

m3 179,329
liters/h
7.08

Fabrication Construction
units project sites

102,597
16.24

1,455,609
17.50

Fleet

Total
2005

91,513 1,829,048
13.32
15.03

Recycling rate:
85% of office waste
in Europe
56% of construction project
sites, fabrication units and
ship waste
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Unit

Offices

Fabrication
units

Construction
project sites

Fleet

Total
2005

metric ton
metric ton
kg/h

3,110
4
0.12

12,900
1,277
2.24

29,628
466
0.36

2,925
500
0.50

48,562
2,248
0.42

Environmental Protection

Greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions
Direct GHG emissions
(oil & gas combustion)
Indirect GHG emissions
(purchased electricity)
Total emissions
Ratio per manhour

Fabrication Construction
units project sites

Total
2005

Unit

Offices

t eq CO2

2,392

30,826

44,528 131,864 209,609

t eq CO2
t eq CO2
kg eq CO2/h

11,372
13,764
0.54

5,714
36,540
5.78

709
0 17,795
45,236 131,864 227,404
1.87
0.54
19.19

Fleet

In 2005, 56% of paper, packaging, scrap iron,

(HQE) referential, including the university cam-

cable and construction waste was recycled,

puses at Bobigny and Poitiers, the Zenith

along with 85% of waste from offices in

entertainment center in Limoges, the new Nice

Europe.

City Hall, the Airbus Delivery Center in
Toulouse, regional offices in Haute-Savoie, the

Projects certified
“High Environmental Quality and
Sustainable Development” seal

n ew t ra m s y s t e m i n G re n o b l e a n d t h e

Via its French subsidiary Technip TPS, the

the HQE Association, on recommendation of

Group has carried out a number of building

the project owner, and is based on a referential

projects that were subject, either partly or

established by France’s Building Industry

wholly, to France’s High Environmental Quality

Scientific and Technical Center.

National Agricultural Institute in Lyon. The HQE
certification is awarded to building projects by

Waste management at Le Trait manufacturing plant (France)
The activities of the
Group’s Le Trait manufacturing facility generate
waste of several types:
production scrap (metal,
plastic, stainless steel);

special waste (hydraulic
fluids, chemicals, sludge;
packaging waste (drums,
wood, papers), and others.
Waste management
efforts at the plant are
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focused on reducing
waste at source, reducing
consumption of oil by
adjusting machinery,
improving overall waste
traceability and
valorizing waste via re-use,
recycling or energy
production.
A number of initiatives
were launched here,
including a deposit-andreturn system for the
packaging used for some
raw materials and the
recycling of oils and plastic
residues. Studies are now
under way concerning a
machine to chop up steel
cables so that they can be
more easily transported
and monetized.
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Koniambo,
a showcase project

Technip TPS is also applying for “Sustainable

D U R I N G T H E C O N S T RU C T I O N P H A S E ,

Development in the Building Industry”

Technip’s activities are carried out at sites

certification and will be submitting a dossier to

chosen not by the Group but by its clients.

Technip and a partner have
been selected to construct
a $2.2 billion mining and
processing project in the
north of New Caledonia. The
presence in the zone of an
exceptional coral reef as well as
very rich endemic vegetation
including mangroves and the
famous “Coeur de Voh”, within
a few kilometers of the site,
mean that exemplary
environmental management
is required on the project.
A large number of studies
were carried out in order to
understand the ecosystems in
the area, and more than 420
consultations have been
organized since the project
was launched so as to inform
all stakeholders in the territory.
The dossiers prepared by
Technip HSE teams for
submission to the relevant
new Caledonian authorities,
the international experts
appointed by the lenders
financing the project and the
public hearings have been
approved by all stakeholders.
Environmental studies are
continuing during 2006 and
will be reviewed by a panel of
third party experts before the
recommendations contained in
them are implemented during
construction work.

the first sitting of the certification commission

Technip may be involved in numerous activities

in April 2006. Certification is awarded for an

that are likely to interact with the environment.

engineering company’s ability to integrate

Factors that come into play here are: sensitive

sustainable development criteria into project

natural milieus close to the project site, the

execution.

expected duration of project activity, the
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number of people necessary on site and how

Technip and Biodiversity

they will be accommodated; the choice of

The Group’s environmental footprint varies,

route for site-access roads and the need for

depending on the nature of the activities being

measures to prevent erosion that could wash

carried out at manufacturing plants, project

sediment into local watercourses; management

sites or on board ship. It also depends on the

of any dangerous substances used on site;

sensitivity of the local milieu. A large majority of

measures to protect and monitor the

Technip’s production assets are concentrated in

surrounding marine milieu and response

industrial zones, but project sites can be located

procedures in case of emergency situations.

in parts of the world that are often more

These environmental aspects – the potential

sensitive, particularly as regards biodiversity.

impact and the measures needed to manage
them – are systematically identified at the start

DURING THE DESIGN PHASE, the Group’s

of each project, and on-site audits are carried

experience and know-how enable Technip to

out by Technip’s HSE teams to ensure that

offer clients the best technologies currently

environmental measures have been identified,

available. It is at this stage in a project that the

are being implemented and are effective.

most effective solutions can be chosen to
reduce the environmental impact of the future
industrial facility. The choices made here
impact the environmental performance of
t h e f u t u r e f a c i l i t i e s , w h o s e o p e ra t i o n
(emissions/discharge and consumption) will be
the responsibility of Technip’s client company.
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Environmental Responsibility

The East Area Project
One of Technip’s projects in
Nigeria has involved setting
up a new platform on the
East Area field. One of the
platform’s main functions
was recompression and reinjection into the reservoir

Long-standing
involvement
in biofuels
> 1980 – First biofuel project in

Brazil
> 1987 – Start-up, near New

Orleans (USA) of what was one
of the world’s largest biofuel
plants, using alcohol derived
from maize.
> 1990 – Growth in the use of

biofuels thanks to the transesterification of vegetable oils,
mainly derived from rape-seed.
> 1996 – Technip is prime

contractor for construction of
a 250,000 t/y biodiesel plant in
Rouen (France).
> 2004 – Technip is prime

contractor for construction of
a 200,000 t/y biodiesel plant in
Sète (France).

of associated gas, instead of
flaring it, resulting in a
significant reduction in CO2
emissions on the field.
Furthermore, the 18,000
metric ton platform was set
up in a one-off operation

called Unideck®, developed
and implemented by
Technip, a method that
reduces the amount of work
necessary at sea and thus
lowers the risk of accidents.

Innovations to Enhance
Environmental Protection

processes in petrochemical processes and to

Another of the ways Technip is fostering

has developed its own production technology)

sustainable development is by orienting a

as a “clean” combustible.

promote the use of hydrogen (for which Technip

number of research projects towards the
production of natural gas, the reduction of

Technip and Biofuels

greenhouse gas emissions and the development

Technip has been a player in biofuels for 25 years

of new energies.

now, exploring the possibilities of both
methanol and methyl esters derived from

Proprietary Processes and Technologies

vegetable oils (biodiesel). So far, the Group has

In a bid to help meet growing world demand

built some ten biofuel plants using processes

for natural gas, an hydrocarbon energy source

based on the whole range of agricultural and

cleaner than oil, Technip has developed the

biomass substrates.

capability to build gas liquefaction plants using
processes that consume less energy per ton of

Indeed, one of the particularities of biofuels is

LNG produced. Use of patented processes such

that they are produced using plant-based raw

as Cryomax® MRE (Multi Reflux Ethane Recovery)

materials. All plants absorb carbon dioxide

®

and Cryomax DCP (Dual Column Propane

during their growth. One of the particularities

Recovery) allows enhanced extraction of ethane,

of biofuels is that the CO2 produced during

propane and the heavier constituents.

their combustion in an engine is naturally
reabsorbed by plants. Furthermore, when

Carbon Sequestration

biofuels are blended into gasoline and diesel

> 2005 – Technip wins a turnkey

One of the main ways in which modern

motor fuel they raise its oxygen content, thus

contract to build a new
100,000 t/y biodiesel plant in
Compiègne (France).

society can manage greenhouse emissions and

enhancing the efficiency of the engine and

thereby control climate change is to store CO2

reducing pollutant emissions.

instead of releasing it into the atmosphere.
Given Technip’s close involvement with the oil
and gas industry, the Group has naturally
developed the skills necessary to cope with this
major preoccupation. A working group has
now been set up to develop and evaluate
technological solutions for the geological
storage of CO2, to develop processes that are
more energy-efficient and therefore generate
less CO2 emissions, to include “decarburation”
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Social Responsibility
In terms of sustainable development, Technip’s social commitment is
essential. The Group strives to integrate fully all employees, provide
appropriate training, offer them attractive skills-development and career
prospects and foster management-employee dialogue and consultation.
During 2005, Technip increased its actions in favor of employee health,
safety and security.
Yearly performance assessments

72%
of employees interviewed
Training
(worldwide)

283,158
hours,

18%

of which
devoted to HSE

10,757
employees received training
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Reminder
of 2005
Objectives
Skills development
Ongoing reflection on the
Group’s core professional
disciplines in order to
map resources and prepare
for future developments.
Implement the 135 measures
identified by the “2005
Technip Think Tanks”.

Welcoming and integrating

cultural team management was added to

Technip has set up specific processes to ensure
that new employees gain a full working knowl-

the TELP, which was launched in 2003,
> maintenance and development of skills and

edge of their company and to guide them in

expertise via specialized courses organized at

mapping their career path. Immediately after

both subsidiary and Group level. Five different

joining Technip, they attend information

modules of the “Technip Education” course

sessions in the form of meetings or seminars,

are now available to employees:

depending on the size of the entity. Furthermore,

- two modules providing an introduction to

engineers and technicians joining Technip France

subsea and floatover technologies,

have been able to take advantage of a tutorship

- two modules providing in-depth coverage

scheme during the first few years of their

of the technologies used in flexible and

career. This system has now been adopted by
a number of other Group subsidiaries, including
Flexi France and Technip Abu Dhabi, and the

rigid pipes, and
- a module on the manufacturing of flexible
pipes.

gradual introduction of the system throughout

The program is expected to be further expanded

the Group is planned.

during 2006.

Other units, par ticularly in the United
Kingdom, have introduced a two-year program

Skills development

called the GETS Scheme designed to enable

> The “2005 Technip Think Tanks” set up at the

graduate recruits to gain experience in all of

end of 2004 were asked to make concrete

the Group’s main professional disciplines.

proposals to the Executive Committee on
seven transversal development themes.

Training

During 2005, the working groups made 150

Technip employees have access to a number of

proposals, of which 135 were selected to

major training programs that meet several

form the basis for a Group-wide action plan.

important needs:
> training in the techniques and tools used on

Among the focuses of the plan are: to make

most Technip projects; this involves struc-

engineering network, to promote Technip’s

tured training schemes within the Group’s

technological image and to foster a stronger

various operational units,

Group culture among employees, which is an

> management courses; these are intended
for employees with high potential. Every

better use of the Group’s international

essential vector for taking full advantage of
Technip’s skills capital.

year about 30 people are invited to

> Studies of the Group’s main professional disci-

attend the Technip Leading Edge Program

plines were launched so as to optimize manage-

(TLEP). In 2005, a new module on multi-

ment of future human resources requirements.
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Social Responsibility

Reminder
of 2005
Objectives
Dialogue and
consultation
Supplement and enhance
the information and
consultation process by
setting up a European Works
Council.

The first study, carried out in 2005, focused on

replacement plan, updated every year.

project management, which is one of the
continued in 2006 with a study of the profes-

Strengthening dialogue
and consultation within the Group

sional disciplines involved in construction.

Technip strives to maintain effective two-way

Group’s core disciplines. The program will be

communication between management and

Encouraging career development

employees. In addition to the dialogue processes

It is Group policy to foster personnel mobility

set up at subsidiary level, processes aimed at

and internal promotion. There are a number of

information and dialogue have also been put

schemes to enable employees to develop their

in place at national and European levels and

career by valorizing the various competencies

throughout the Group as a whole.

they acquire during training or on the job.
There are two main, but not exclusive, avenues

At Group level:

for career advancement:
> the first is by developing expertise in a

In all, 46 different agreements have been

particular technical field, which is then

remuneration (43%), working conditions (24%)

recognized by nomination to the Network

diversity and equal opportunities, the Works

of Experts, which currently includes 352

Council, training and health benefits. Copies of

engineers throughout the Group,

the various documents relating to the Group’s

signed with labor representatives covering

> the second is by broadening the range of

Values and their application have been circulated

Group disciplines in which skills have been

to all Technip employees and are now included

acquired, thus opening the way to a position

in every new employment contract.

in project management or in the Group’s

Fo r 8 5 % o f G r o u p s u b s i d i a r i e s , s u c h

senior management.

information is diffused via the Intranet and

This broadening of experience implies mobility,

e-mail. Otherwise, it is done via workplace

either functional (i.e. between disciplines) or

notice boards and meetings organized by

geographical.

supervisors.

Mobility is essentially managed at the level of

48
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the local entity, but the Group HR team is

At European level:

responsible for ensuring that policies are

Selection of employee representatives from

coherent and also for monitoring the progress

each country to sit on the European Works

of certain categories of personnel. Career

Council (EWC) was completed in March 2005

development and mobility of the Group’s

and the primary representatives were appointed

s e n i o r exe c u t i ve s a re m a n a ge d by t h e

in April 2005. Under the terms of the initial

Executive Committee on the basis of a staffing

agreement setting up the Council, its 15 members
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were asked to elect three of their number,
of different nationalities, as members of the

> 94% of part-time employees work in
European countries.

executive board. Visits to worksites were
organized for members of the EWC to give

Diversity and equal opportunities

them a better knowledge of overall Group

Technip is a multicultural group employing

activities.

people of more than 60 different nationalities.
About a third of Group companies have signed

In France:

diversity and equal-opportunity agreements or

The Works Council is made up of representatives

else pursue such a policy and include the

of the personnel of all Group companies

appropriate details in their “employee guides”,

registered in France. It is kept informed of the

employment contracts or company rules.

operations, the financial situation, present

Technip is also committed to promoting gender

employment and future prospects, as well as

equality, particularly as regards recruiting,

the economic outlook for the Group as a whole

despite the difficulties related to the small

as well as for its individual companies. Under

number of women graduating from schools

the terms of the agreement signed on 1 July

specializing in the Group’s main professional

2005, eight new representatives were elected

disciplines. Currently, women account for 33%

to the Council during the year. Under article 8

of Group employees less than 29 years old

of that agreement, all members receive a copy

(this age-group includes 23% of Technip’s

of Technip’s Sustainable Development Report.

workforce) and they account for 24% of all
Group employees regardless of age.

Working hours
> The length of the standard working week
varies by country and by socio-professional
category. Some 53% of subsidiaries have
signed agreements covering the number of
hours worked.Two-thirds of those subsidiaries
apply variable working hours to all employees
and one-third applies this regime to only some
employees.
> 89% of employees work normal hours and
11% work shifts (employees in manufacturing
plants and those working on board ship).
> 98% of Group personnel have full-time
contracts.
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Social Responsibility

Health and Safety

Reminder
of 2005
Objectives
For all Technip employees and
personnel of partner companies
Lost Time Injury Rate (LTIR)
for 200,000 hours
equal to or less than 0.056.

In order to achieve health and safety targets,

During 2005, three further subsidiaries – Technip

the Group allots a specific budget to each entity

Benelux, Technip Abu Dhabi and TIPIEL –

and each project. These budgets cover the cost

obtained international OHSAS 18001 or

of dedicated health/safety personnel and

equivalent (VCA, BS 8800,AS 4801) certification

equipment and also awareness initiatives,

for their workplace HSE Management Systems.

training courses, communication and motivation

This brings to 17 the number of Group units cer-

programs. In addition, a budget of €5 million is

tified (comprising 83% of Technip employees).

allocated to the implementation and promotion
of Group-level initiatives decided by the HSE

HSE training

Steering Committee.

Training is regarded as one of the key factors in
maintaining HSE performance, and for several

Total Recordable Injury Rate
(TRIR) for 200,000 hours equal
to or less than 0.30.
Severity Rate (SR*) equal to or
less than 1.17.
* Number of days lost to injury x 200,000
hours / number of hours worked

Health and safety in the workplace

years now Technip has been devoting a constant

More than 300 HSE specialists working in Group

effort to training via programs developed either

project teams, worksites, manufacturing plants

in-house or in conjunction with Du Pont Safety

and aboard Technip ships are responsible for

Resources (HSE Footprint).These programs cover

implementing the overall HSE system.

all situations: offices, manufacturing plants,

The protocol currently in use provides for

project sites and ships. During 2005, Technip

monthly reporting of indicators relating to all

employees underwent a total of more than

accidents and incidents by type and by activity.

50,000 hours of HSE training, which accounted

A study is currently under way on ways of

to almost 20% of all training programs.

integrating this process with the Group’s

On actual worksites, more than 6 million hours

Intranet and implementing a Group-wide

were devoted to HSE training and sensitization

reporting+analysis system similar to the one

programs for Technip employees as well as the

already in use for offshore activities.

personnel of partners and contractor companies

Workplace Health & Safety Performance (Source DJSI 2005)
37
76
76
0
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Industry average
Technip
Top performer in the industry
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Health & Safety training

working on site, accounting for 3% of the total

training program to be implemented in all its

51,248

manhours worked.

units and on all new projects in 2006.

hours

18%

or more than
of all training time

8,497
people received training

The Group also significantly stepped up

Continued strong performance

reporting of dangerous situations and acts by

Despite the growth in its business activity, with

all its operating units. As a result, more than

a record 220 million manhours worked in 2005,

140,000 reports were received and analyzed,

the Group recorded no fatal accidents and no

and then followed up by corrective and/or

cases of tropical or infectious diseases among

preventive action.

employees. As for recordable accidents,

More elaborate protocols were also put in place

performance was similar to the rate posted in

for evaluating risks and managing emergency

the previous year. In order to ensure ongoing

situations, so as to provide better control over

improvement, Technip has decided to set in

incidents and thus reduce potential accident

place a comprehensive HSE awareness and

situations.

Health and Safety Charter
Health and Safety of persons and
property are among the core values
of Technip.This Charter defines
the Group's Objectives in this area
and the corresponding Health & Safety
Guidelines.

Our Objectives
To insist upon and protect the Health
and Safety of persons and property, when
in conflict with other strategic goals.
To strive persistently and with
determination to avoid incidents and losses
in the workplace and elsewhere.
Management's commitment is
a critical success factor in achieving
our Health & Safety goals.

Our Guidelines
In order to achieve our Health and Safety
Objectives, Technip set up the following
guidelines:
To comply with applicable Health & Safety
legislation and Technip's own standards.
To set clear and meaningful objectives
for Health & Safety performance, placing
an emphasis on key indicators.
To measure our performance and
communicate our progress regularly
and openly.
Hold managers, supervisors and
employees accountable for compliance
with our Health & Safety management
systems.
To implement Health & Safety

A N N UA L
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management systems which comply
with internationally recognized industry
standards.
To combine our engineering and technology
know-how with sound assessment
principles in order to minimize risks and
mitigate, as much as is reasonably
practicable, any residual consequences.
To ensure all relevant personnel receive
appropriate training and advice to allow
them to undertake their work safely and
without any detriment to their health.
To work with our clients, partners
and subcontractors to build a common
Health & Safety management system
on each project.
To strive to continually improve
our Health & Safety performance.
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In

2005

220

million manhours

worked

0

Preventive health programs

initiatives were taken in other units of the Group.

During 2005,Technip stepped up its arrangements

The objective for 2006 is to ban smoking in all

for monitoring the health of all expatriate

Group units in Europe.

personnel. For example, the malaria and
HIV/AIDS risk-prevention programs were both

Travel security

improved. Technip was also able to respond

2005 also saw new initiatives designed to

effectively to the spread of Marburg fever in

enhance employee security. For example, a

fatal accidents

Angola and also set up contingency measures

special database was set up to enable all

0.30

to manage the impact on its worldwide

employees to be reached at any time while

operations of any pandemic of avian flu.

traveling. This arrangement, first launched by

TRIR*

* Total Recordable Injury Rate:
number of recordable injuries
x 200,000 hours / number
of actual hours worked

17

units certified
OHSAS 18 001,
VCA, BS 8800, or AS 4801

subsidiaries in Europe, will be gradually extended
In France, the Health, Safety and Working

to cover Group units worldwide.

Conditions Committee, the local Works
Committee and the Medical Department of

The publication of about 20 booklets, together

Technip France were all consulted regarding

with training programs, has heightened our

plans to introduce a “no smoking” rule in all

collaborators’ awareness of the specific

Technip offices in Paris, Lyon and Vaulx en Velin

characteristics and dangers of countries where

from 1 January 2006. Since November 2005,

they are traveling . “Security Managers”,

advice and assistance have been available to

responsible for the ongoing application of

anyone wishing to stop smoking. Similar

security measures and procedures, have also

Improving HSE organization
With the introduction of
Technip’s new HSE organization at Group level,
HSE systems and procedures were completely
overhauled, largely based
on the conclusions of a
seminar bringing together
the HSE managers from
the Group’s main
subsidiaries. One of the
aims of this seminar was
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to define the basic focus,
tools and procedures that
were to make up the
Group’s HSE program,

itself designed to achieve
the objectives defined in
the Environment and
Health & Safety Charters.

Total Recordable Injury Rate / 200,000 h.
0.57
0.54
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0.30
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Social Responsibility

been posted to a number of project sites. The

ERT cells stationed at the operational bases for

extent of the protection and prevention measures

various projects, handle emergency response in

required are determined by the Group-level

conjunction with a number of different players

Security Department, which is also responsible

such as Group General Management, the local

for ensuring follow-up. Security awareness of

authorities, operational support teams, as well

seagoing personnel has been enhanced by

as logistics and communications outside

publication and distribution of a booklet on

Technip. ERT cells can be called in from opera-

International Ship and Port Security (ISPS).

tional centers in Aberdeen, Houston, Paris, Oslo,

Information sessions were organized by a team

Perth and Rio de Janeiro. These squads regularly

of specialists responsible for following up the

undergo refresher training and take part in

measures and procedures related to ISPS in

exercises designed to improve their efficiency.

conjunction with the project teams using

The role of the Contact Unit is to stay abreast

vessels from Technip’s fleet.

of all types of emergency situations that could
arise and to respond to requests for assistance,

Risk prevention and management

either directly, or indirectly by mobilizing the CEC

Three dedicated structures within the Group

or the ERT where necessary. During 2005, the

form the core of Technip’s risk management

main interventions of the Contact Unit involved

system: the Crisis Emergency Committee

support for the Group’s specialist contractor in

(CEC), the Emergency Response Team (ERT)

the rare cases requiring emergency medical

and the Duty Cell.

evacuation.

The role of the CEC is to handle all crisis situations
that could affect the Group’s activities: armed

Protecting know-how and data

conflict, terrorism, disease epidemics and

The need to protect Group property and

pandemics, industrial disputes and natural

technological know-how has led Technip to set

disasters. During 2005, the CEC met several

up appropriate procedures and equipment and

times to deal with the outbreak of Marburg

to provide specialized awareness training for

fever in Angola, conflicts in West Africa and the

several hundred employees and interns in

risk of a pandemic of avian flu.

Technip subsidiaries and project teams. The

The role of the ERT is to deal with any major

latest technologies are now used to bolster

i n c i d e n t s l i ke ly t o i m p a c t t h e G ro u p ’s

protection of Group worksites and equipment.

operations at sea. The ERT coordinates the

Sharing worksite security experience between

actions of several different teams. The first,

projects teams, particularly those working as

based in Aberdeen, is responsible for providing

part of a joint venture, has also been very

technical support for Technip ships. The others,

beneficial.
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Civic Responsibility
Observance of the Group’s four charters is now becoming more
formalized and numerous subsidiaries are complementing their
standing commitment with new initiatives. Many of these actions,
whether collective or individual, oriented towards community
development or charity-based, are already bearing fruit.

Reminder
of 2005
Objectives
Corporate Citizenship
Launch new solidarity
initiatives.
Expand the Group’s local
community-aid programs.

Distinctions
In Indonesia, Technip received
an award from the Ministry
of Labor in January 2005.
In Nigeria, Neptune Maritime
Nigeria was singled out by
the Rumuolumeni Student
Union for its contribution
to education and community
development.
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Technip’s Charters in Action

of equipment and construction of facilities. One

Since June 2005, Technip subsidiaries have been

good example of this is South Africa, where a

encouraged to give a concrete dimension to the

“Black Economic Empowerment Policy” was

Group’s corporate values and the four Technip

included as part of the Sasol PP2 contract at

charters in their everyday activities and in their

Secunda, stipulating that business should go to

dealings with suppliers and contractors.

local companies where at least 25% of the

A number of initiatives have already been launched

senior managers and shareholders come from

at the local level in response to this directive.

the underprivileged segments of society.

Technip’s operations in Italy have been certified

In Nigeria, some 1,500 young people from the

SA 8000, thereby confirming the subsidiary’s

communities around Bonny and Finima have

commitment to all stakeholders as well as its full

been trained and given employment on the

compliance with international conventions, the

NLNG project worksite. To ensure that this

Universal Declaration of Human Rights and the

training has a long-term effect, a technical

declarations of the Rights of the Child. In Brazil,

school has been built at Bonny as well as offices

the local Technip subsidiary has set up a social

and a lecture hall for the Bonny Kingdom

responsibility committee in view to qualifying

Development Committee. In addition, young

for SA 8000 certification.

Nigerian engineers have been integrated into the

Technip’s Social Charter is already being widely

engineering team working on the Akpo FPSO

implemented. Some 35% of Group companies

project, for which the helicopter pad, the flare and

have now formalized their non-discrimination

several modules are to be produced in Nigeria.

policy, with all relevant protocols or procedures

Within France, Technip has given a particularly

in place. And half of these companies have

strong boost to employment in Normandy,

already set up a procedure for receiving

where the Group is carrying out a major oil

complaints and grievances.

project involving numerous sub-contractors in a
wide variety of trades and professions. Technip

Fostering Employment and Training

has signed a partnership agreement with a number

As part of Technip’s commitment to civic

of employment organizations leading to the

responsibility, the Group has launched a number

recruitment (under interim, fixed-term and

of specific local-development programs,

open-ended contracts) of some 800 job seekers.

focusing on training and job creation for local
populations via the award of supply and service

Health Initiatives

contracts to local businesses.

33% of Group companies have made donations,

In many cases, so-called “local content” can

purchased or provided medical equipment, or

account for a significant proportion of the overall

sponsored local hospitals. For example, Technip

contract, including engineering services, supply

made a series of donations to a neonatal hospital
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Civic Responsibility

An SOS Play Bus
in Azerbaijan

run by the MS Society in Australia.

helping to promote awareness of Tamil music

In other cases, donations were made by Technip

and also helping youngsters hone their skills

to provide medical care for orphans and other

at the national sport of cricket. In the United

While carrying out a project
in Azerbaijan, Technip has also
been giving a helping hand
to a local association called
SOS Children Village.
The Group’s support is focused
on an initiative called Play Bus,
which provides leisure
activities and vocational
training for orphans being
cared for by the association.
Technip is continuing its
support throughout 2006.

underprivileged children in Indonesia and to

Kingdom, Technip has now teamed up with a

purchase an ambulance for a hospital in Angola

local charity, Aberdeen Foyer that helps young-

that had no means to transport its patients.

sters acquire skills and find employment. The

Other Group action is focused on prevention

company also works with another local charity

rather than cure.

organization called Cornerstone Community

In parallel with its work on Nigeria’s NLNG+

Care, which specializes in helping young people

project, Technip is involved in a number of

secure apprenticeships.

community aid initiatives alongside the Bonny

Technip is also working to counter the exclusion

Kingdom Development Committee, including an

experienced by people with disabilities. About

AIDS awareness program, a personal hygiene

1% of all Group employees are disabled. Going

drive and an anti-drug campaign in primary

beyond its policy of non-discrimination

schools. In addition, Flexi France played an

concerning recruitment, Technip makes every

active role in collecting funds for the Telethon

effort to employ these people in suitable jobs:

and participated in a hiking day.

subcontracting, answering job applications or
ordering office supplies.

Combating Social Exclusion

In France, Technip employees also took part in

22% of Group companies have contributed to

a relay race as part of the Handicapped Olympics

social integration efforts in some way, helping to

organized by OTIS, as a way of providing support

combat all forms of exclusion: educational,

for the mentally handicapped.

professional and cultural. Technip has for some
Foundation”, which operates under the aegis of

Humanitarian Action,
Focusing on Education

the Fondation de France. The Foundation, which

40% of Group companies, including Technip

has just gained official recognition as a state-

subsidiaries in Venezuela, Indonesia, Thailand,

approved association, was set up to help people

Norway, Angola and Brazil, have either donated

18 to 60 years old experiencing difficulties at

funds or launched their own initiatives to

school, university or in the workplace, by provid-

provide equipment and materials for schools

ing them with the human, technical or financial

or to provide the local children with leisure/

support they need to overcome their difficulties.

sports equipment. More specific humanitarian

In Sri Lanka, Technip Abu Dhabi has helped

action was undertaken in the United States

rebuild a village that was destroyed by the

in the wake of Hurricane Katrina, which

recent tsunami. In India, Technip has been

devastated Louisiana and Mississippi. In this

time provided support for the “Second Chance
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Civic Responsibility

Technip Employees
Join Forces with the
Red Cross

case, Technip committed to donating $2 for

Technip employees in Brazil and the United

every $1 raised from Group employees. In

States have donated significant amounts of money

Nigeria, Technip also helped to renovate a

to ensure that certain underprivileged commu-

building for use by the local Women’s Council

nities, and particularly children, can celebrate

On 13 October 2005, a check
for $232,590 was presented
to the Red Cross Committee
by representatives of
the various Technip units
in the United States.
A third of the total amount
($77,530) was contributed
by individual employees,
with Technip matching that
amount on a two-for-one
basis, with a donation
of $155,060.

on Community Development. The Group is

Christmas. Technip USA employees have set up

also taking part in similar initiatives in India

a social committee with a special budget set

and Australia.

aside for this type of social program. In 2005,
the committee raised some $300,000. A fund-

Employee Initiatives

raising campaign was also organized by Technip

Individual employees have also been personally

employees in the United Arab Emirates to collect

involved in a number of community aid initiatives

donations for the victims of the recent earthquakes

as well as often making private donations.

in India and Pakistan.

A Garden for Young and Old
While carrying out the SMPO
project in Nanhai, China,
Technip launched a number
of community programs for
the former inhabitants of the
village of Bai Gang, involving
intensive English courses,
employment for 60 villagers,
as well as health and safety
training for more than 800
local people. But the most
original element was to give
the villagers back their
“community garden.” While
consulting the villagers
about their specific needs,
Technip teams learned that
the most striking change to
their lifestyle had been the
loss of the garden where the
elders used to sit and talk
and the village children gathered to play. So the Group
offered to help recreate it.
Technip set about designing

a new “community garden”
incorporating some trees
brought in from the former
village site, together with a
temple and a children’s
playground. The village
council approved the plan
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and the construction work
was done by the villagers,
under Technip supervision,
with the exception of the
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designed and built by the
village people themselves.
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Responsibility to Partners
Technip’s commitment to sustainable development integrates the
ability to maintain its sound financial situation. During 2005, the
Group posted numerous business successes, thus strengthening its
ability to create long-term value for its various stakeholders.

Reminder
of 2005
Objectives
Work together with our
clients, partners and
sub-contractors to define
common health & safety rules
as well as an environmental
management system for each
project.
Encourage our suppliers and
sub-contractors to integrate
into their operating guidelines
the rules set out in Technip’s
Social Charter.
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Order backlog
of €
up

11.2

billion,

65%

Positive net cash

668

of €
billion,
at 31 December 2005

Net ROCE
after tax,

10.5%

of

An Economic Responsibility
to All Stakeholders

amount of capital employed, the Group has

At the end of 2005, Technip had a record order

employed (ROCE). Furthermore, the high order

backlog worth €11.2 billion. All in all, the year

intake during 2005 was accompanied by

was very fruitful in business opportunities, with

improved payment conditions accepted by

very strong order intake in all Technip’s core

clients, which contributed to a marked decrea-

markets – deep offshore, gas liquefaction and

se in the working capital required. Although the

treatment plants, high-capacity steam crackers

Group’s adjusted net profit was up only 2.4%

and refining/conversion units for heavy crudes

in 2005, net ROCE after tax improved from

– accounting for 91% of orders booked. The

6.5% in 2004 to 10.5% in 2005. Excluding

Group’s success in winning new business was

goodwill, the Group’s performance is even

largely due to a number of strategic initiatives

better, with net return standing at 13.4%.

that have bolstered Technip’s specific competitive

Today, Technip finds itself in a better financial

advantages in a very buoyant macro-economic

situation than ever before. With shareholders’

and business sector environment.

equity of the parent company standing at

Technip is currently pursuing a growth-oriented

slightly less than €2 billion and with its positive

investment policy. In view of the strong

net cash position,Technip should have no trouble

prospects for the oil and gas industry, the

securing the bank finance and guarantees

Group has decided to increase its capital

necessary for turnkey projects. 2005 saw very

investments by nearly 50% for the next two

strong generation of cash flow amounting to

years, meaning that expenditure should grow

nearly €835 million, so that by the end of the

from €171 million in 2005 to €245 million in

year it boasted a positive net cash position of

2006.

€668 million, compared to negative net cash

Much of the investment increase is due to

of €167 million a year earlier.

helped to enhance its return on capital

Technip’s decision to expand capacity at its
two flexible pipe manufacturing facilities, in

Responsibility to Our Shareholders

France (Le Trait) and Brazil (Vitoria). The Group

Given the Group’s sound financial position and

has also ordered a new diving support vessel

today’s bright business outlook for the

following the award of a multi-year subsea

industry, the Board of Directors has decided to

service contract in the North Sea.

propose at the Shareholders’ Annual General

At the same time, Technip has been refocusing

Meeting an increase of 11.5% in the dividend

its activities by means of several transactions,

payment. Dividends have remained unchanged

such as the sale of an engineering subsidiary in

since 2001.

Portugal and an offshore structure fabrication

The decision, announced on February 23, 2006,

yard in the Gulf of Mexico. By reducing the

to call convertible bonds will also lead to added
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Responsibility to Partners

48,000

value for Technip shareholders. This is because

Responsibility to Our Clients

it will eliminate, starting in the 2nd quarter of

Technip has now modified its organization so

individual shareholders

2006, the heavy non-cash financial charge

as put more emphasis on project execution.

owning 8% of the Group’s shares

associated with these bonds (amounting to

The Group has also bolstered its marketing

€38 million in 2005). Lastly, the Group has also

tools by creating worldwide product lines as

decided to return to shareholders part of the

well as strengthening its management apparatus

surplus cash expected to be freed up over the

and expanding its human resources and

coming months.

manufacturing and construction assets.

858

separate

meetings with investors
and financial analysts

23

road-shows

in Europe, the US, Canada,
Japan and the Middle East

18

conferences

for institutional investors

The Group’s new organization, which effectively
During 2005, the Group continued to step up

integrates the activities acquired over the past

its communication aimed at the financial

few years, will allow Technip to be much more

community, organizing a number of meetings

responsive to the expectations and needs of its

in France and in other countries, in addition

clients. Indeed, processes for measuring client

to the regular conferences held to explain

satisfaction have long been among the Group’s

quarterly financial results. New modes o f

management tools. Following the work of the

contact were also made available to

2005 Technip Think Tanks, the Group decided to

Technip’s individual shareholders, and they

standardize the procedures for collecting and

now have a dedicated contact officer. The

processing data on client satisfaction used by

Shareholders’ Newsletter has also been revised

all subsidiaries worldwide. As part of this move,

(both content and format); it is now aimed at a

a standard questionnaire has now been drawn

wider audience and contains highlights of the

up focusing on the Group’s performance in

Group’s current activities and less technical

nine specific areas: HSE, project execution,

explanations of financial matters. The newsletter

client relations, documentation, schedule,

is published each quarter to accompany the

costs, resources, contracts management, and

release of financial results.

facilities performance. The questionnaire

Technip will take part in a number of one-off

enables each business unit to determine an

investor relations events such as the Salon

overall satisfaction rating at each key stage of

Actionaria, held in Paris on 17-18 November

a project. Ratings can also be consolidated by

2006.

geographical zone, by business unit and by

Finally, full shareholder information is also

product line, and they can also be tracked

ava i l a b l e o n t h e G ro u p ’s I n t e r n e t s i t e

against pre-set objectives.

www.technip.com.
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Responsibility to Partners

“

Technip’s solid
financial position
gives it an
undeniable
competitive
advantage which
creates shareholder
value.
The commercial
successes in 2005
bear witness to
the pertinence
of the Group’s
financial policy
regarding its
clients, shareholders
and suppliers.

”

This process will enable Technip to gain a

Technip seeks to maintain with its suppliers.

better understanding of client expectations

In the same spirit, the Group is keen to share its

and to take remedial action during actual

values. Each Technip subsidiary has now

project execution.

i n c l u d e d i n i t s Te r m s & Co n d i t i o n s o f
Procurement an article concerning Group values,

Relations with Suppliers

asking suppliers to read Technip’s statement of

Technip’s considerable order backlog translates

values (“Our Values”) as well as the four

into very bright prospects for the Group’s

charters that explain those values in more

suppliers, not just in terms of new contracts

detail (all these documents are available on

but also in terms of opportunities to do

www.technip.com/profile/our commitments).

business in new parts of the world thanks to

The same article informs suppliers that Technip

Technip. This notion of partnership in new

is a member of the Global Compact.

endeavors is a key aspect of the relationship

Joint HSE Programs
When executing projects,
Technip devises and
implements HSE
programs that combine
regulatory requirements
and practices with those
of all project partners.
All necessary HSE
elements are brought
together right from the
tendering stage and are
subsequently integrated
as the project advances.
This approach defines
the role of each player
and provides a single
referential setting out
common objectives and

the procedures to be
used to achieve them.
Programs are implemented
by integrated HSE teams
made up of engineers
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and technicians from
Technip, the project
sub-contractors and, in
many cases, the client
company as well.
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2006 Objectives
For several years now, Technip has been building and fine-tuning a
model to form the basis of the Group’s effort to manage and coordinate
its commitment to sustainable development and to track performance.
The Group strives to ensure that all the information published on its
performance is as complete and as clear as possible and that it
reflects its desire for continual improvement. In line with this
approach, Technip has set the following objectives for 2006.

Corporate Governance

- Implement the “Communication for Progress”

- Have Technip’s four charters (Ethics, Environment,

actions recommended by the Global Compact

Social, Health & Safety) translated into the

(make Technip’s 2005 Sustainable Development

main languages used within the Group.

Report available on the UN website).

- Draft and diffuse an “HSE Business Practice
Manual” to help all Group subsidiaries to apply

Reporting

the principles set out in the Environment and

- Adapt to Technip parameters the software

Health & Safety Charters.
- Regarding the American Sarbanes-Oxley Act:

tool selected for collecting and processing
social data.

• finalize all relevant documentation,

- Carry out first testing of the software tool.

• assess internal control mechanisms,

- Begin applying additional GRI indicators.

• identify areas for improvement.

- Organize a seminar bringing together the

- Set up a self-assessment process concerning
the functioning of the Board of Directors and

sustainable development correspondents of
the main Group subsidiaries.

its committees.

Economic Performance
Global Compact

- Increase sales to €6,800 million (+25%).

- Request information from Technip’s 5 main

- Improve the operating margin compared to

suppliers/sub-contractors on how they take the
10 principles of the Global Compact into account.
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2005.
- Return part of surplus cash to shareholders.

Environmental Protection

- Carry out a study of the professional disciplines

- ISO 14001 certification for three more
subsidiaries.

involved in construction.
- Appoint 12 new members to Technip’s

- No major environmental incidents.

College of Experts.

- Boost to 95% the proportion of Group units

- Launch a new 360° assessment operation.

reporting on the various environmental

Corporate Citizenship

indicators.
- Improve the waste recycling rate at Technip

- Add to the Jacques Franquelin Prize an additional award for a contribution to sustainable

construction project sites.
- Raise to 60% the scope of reporting by our

development.
- Expand the Group’s initiatives to help local

construction project sites.

communities.

Health & Safety

- Launch new social solidarity programs.

Regarding Technip employees and personnel of
partners and sub-contractors:

Dialogue and Consultation

- Zero fatal accidents.

- Involve the European Works Council in deciding

- Total Recordable Injury Rate (TRIR) no more

arrangements for implementing a nonsmoking policy and helping employees in

than 0.27.
- OHSAS 18001 or equivalent certification for
three additional subsidiaries.

European subsidiaries to stop smoking.
- Consult Group employees on ways to promote

- Non-smoking policy extended to all Group units.

gender equality and discuss implementation
of appropriate measures with employee

Security

organizations.

- Launch by Technip France of a training
program on protection of Group property and

Clients, Partners and Sub-contractors

technological know-how.

- Implement the Group’s new client-satisfaction

- Definition and diffusion within the Group of
guidelines for selecting airlines for professional

assessment process on projects.
- Request information from Technip’s 5 main
suppliers on how they take the Group’s values

travel by Technip employees.

into account.

Skills Development
- Publication of a second progress report on
implementation of the 135 actions proposed
by the 2005 Technip Think Tanks.
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The Women and Men
of Technip
Breakdown of Employees by Category (World)

Breakdown of Employees by Geographical Area
(World)
Europe
Americas
Asia-Pacific
Middle East
Russia & Central Asia
Africa
Total

10,235
4,069
3,816
1,274
1,217
287
20,898

Salaried Employees
Permanent contracts
Fixed-term contracts
Outside Employees
Total

15,373
13,721
1,652
5,525
20,898

Breakdown of Expatriates by Geographical
of Origin (World)

Employee Arrivals and Departures (World)
Recruitment
Permanent Contracts
Fixed-term Contracts
Departures
Economic Lay-offs (1)
Renewal rate of permanent positions (2)

5,172
3,422
1,750
3,405
60
1.64

(1) The sale of two companies (in Portugal and the US) involved no lay-offs by Technip

Europe
Asia-Pacific
Americas
Middle East
Russia & Central Asia
Africa
Total

647
236
67
48
4
2
1,004

(2) Start/termination of permanent positions

Gender Breakdown of Salaried Employees by Age
Group (world)

Gender Breakdown of Salaried Employees
by Classification (World)
Managerial Staff
Women
Men
Other Personnel
Women
Men
Total
Women
Men
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2,935
13%
87%
12,438
27%
73%
15,373
24%
76%
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Age
< 25
25 to 29
30 to 34
35 to 39
40 to 44
45 to 49
50 to 54
55 to 59
60 to 64
> 64

Women
2%
6%
4%
4%
3%
2%
2%
1%
0%
0%

Men
4%
11%
12%
12%
9%
8%
8%
8%
3%
1%

Working Hours (world)
Persons Working Normal Hours
Persons Working in Shifts
Full-time Work
Part-time Work
Overtime Hours (France only)

Absenteeism
13,682
1,691
15,073
300
23,088

Training (World)
Hours of Training Provided
Number of Employees Trained
Women
Men
Hours of Health Training
Employees Given Health Training
Hours of Safety Training
Employees Given Safety Training
Amount Spent
on Training (France only)

Rate of Absenteeism (France only)
Absence Due to Illness
Workplace/transport Accidents
Other Reasons
Days Lost Due to Strikes (World)

3.49%
2.48%
0.09%
0.92%
467

Performance Assessment (World)
283,158
10,757
2,674
8,083
13,498
3,470
37,750
5,027
3.34% of the wage bill
(est.)

Proportion of Employees Assessed During 2005

72%

Remuneration (in € millions)
Amount Allocated to Performance Incentives
(France, Spain, Italy)
Amount Allocated to Profit Sharing
(France only)
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Financial Information
Consolidated Statement of Income
Euros in millions

2005
5,376.1
558.1
(29.4)
(297.7)
231.0
(88.8)
1.3
143.5
(43.5)
(5.0)
(1.7)
93.3

Revenues
Gross Margin
Research and Development Expenses
S, G & A and Other Costs
Income from Operations
Financial Income (expenses)
Income of Equity Affiliates
Profit before tax
Income Tax
Discontinued Operations
Minority Interests
Net Profit (Group share)

2004*
5,140.9
563.1
(30.2)
(299.3)
233.6
(66.4)
1.2
168.4
(54.2)
(2.4)
111.8
(*) IFRS excluding IAS 32 and 39

Consolidated Balance Sheet
Euros in millions

Fixed Assets
Deferred Taxes (Assets)
Non-current Assets
Construction Contracts
Inventories, Customer and Other Receivables
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Current Assets
Assets held with a view to disposal
TOTAL ASSETS

2005
3,244.5
90.0
3,334.5
585.0
1,146.8
2,187.8
3,919.6
42.9
7,297.0

2004*
3,232.5
105.2
3,337.7
400.6
1,245.3
1,434.0
3,079.9
6,417.6

Shareholders’ Equity (Parent Company)
Minority Interests
Shareholders’ Equity
Convertible Bonds
Other Long-term Debt
Long-term Provisions
Deferred Taxes (liabilities)
Non-current Liabilities
Short-term Debt
Short-term Provisions
Construction Contracts
Accounts Payable and Other Advances Received
Current Liabilities
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1,953.7
13.9
1,967.6
650.1
655.2
106.3
100.4
1,512.0
214.4
133.4
1,672.4
1,797.2
3,817.4
7,297.0

1,851.6
9.8
1,861.4
670.9
737.8
115.3
127.1
1,651.1
192.0
121.5
948.7
1,642.9
2,905.1
6,417.6
(*) IFRS excluding IAS 32 and 39
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
at December 31
Euros in millions

Net Profit
Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment
Provision for Redemption Premium on Convertible Bonds
Charge for Split Accounting of Convertible Bonds
Stock Option Charges
Long-term Provisions (Employee Benefits)
Deferred Income Tax
Minority Interests and Other
Operating Cash Flow
Change in Working Capital

2005
95.0
143.3
13.3
16.6
5.4
0.7
12.5
(11.0)
275.8
618.1

2004*
114.2
142.1
11.4
5.8
(4.8)
31.2
8.0
307.9
89.9

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

893.9

397.8

Capital Expenditures
Proceeds from Asset Sales

(171.4)
26.8

(123.8)
(4.5)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

(144.6)

(128.3)

Increase (Decrease) in Debt
Capital Increase
Dividend Payment
Treasury Shares

(90.1)
63.8
(32.0)
(20.1)

431.0
26.3
(129.8)
(22.7)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(78.4)

304.8

82.9

(8.6)

753.8

565.7

1,434.0
2,187.8

868.3
1,434.0

FOREIGN EXCHANGE TRANSLATION ADJUSTMENTS
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and Cash Equivalents at January 1
Cash and Equivalents at December 31

(*) IFRS excluding IAS 32 and 39

Following the closing of the accounts for 2005, certain elements of

for the 2005 accounts, certain intangible elements on the balance

the IFRS accounts for 2004 as published in April 2005 were restated

sheet and statement of cash flows have been restated compared to

to enable more relevant comparison with the accounts for 2005. As

the version published on February 23, 2006.
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Financial Information

Full Year Order Intake

Backlog at Year End

(euros in millions)

(euros in millions)

9,806

11,170

2,623

2,688

6,779

1,258

5,092

1,207

Offshore SURF

1,860

1,470

944

5,753

954

Offshore Facilities

7,127

Onshore Downstream

3,758

2,510
159

172

2004

217

2005

Industries

148

2004

2005

Backlog Scheduling at December 31, 2005
(euros in millions)

Offshore SURF

Offshore Facilities

Onshore Downstream

Industries

Group

2006

1,797

871

3,000

121

5,789

2007

671

208

3,050

19

3,948

2008 and beyond

220

128

1,077

8

1,433

2,688

1,207

7,127

148

11,170

Total

Regional Split
(euros in millions)

Europe, Russia/Central Asia

Africa

Middle East

Asia-Pacific

Americas

Group

Order Intake 2005

1,258

1,492

3,853

1,120

2,083

9,806

Revenues 2005

1,383

1,258

1,108

583

1,044

5,376

961

2,008

5,100

1,014

2,087

11,170

Backlog at December 31, 2005

Order Intake

Revenues

Europe, Russia, Central Asia
Africa
Middle East
Americas
Asia-Pacific
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15.2%
39.3%
21.2%
11.4%

S U S TA I N A B L E

Backlog

Europe, Russia, Central Asia
Africa
Middle East
Americas
Asia-Pacific
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26%
23%
21%
19%
11%

Europe, Russia, Central Asia
Africa
Middle East
Americas
Asia-Pacific

8%
18%
46%
19%
9%

Global Compact and GRI
Table of Correspondences
Technip – Member of the Global Compact
A certain number of the initiatives outlined in this report directly reflect
the Group’s observance of the principles of the Global Compact. The
corresponding page references are as follows:
Principles

Pages

1 and 2

Human Rights

33-55-56-57-61-62

3, 4, 5 and 6

Labor Standards

7, 8 and 9

Environment

10

Anti-corruption

33-55-56-61-62
33-41-43-45-57-61-62
33-61-62

Global Reporting Initiative (GRI)
The Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) specifies themes or reporting indicators
in the economic, environment, social and civic fields.
The themes listed in this report have been selected for their pertinence to
the company’s business segments and organization. Certain indicators
involve precise data while others are more qualitative. Further information
is available elsewhere in the Group’s Annual Report and Sustainable
Development Report.
A certain number of subjects are not yet covered by a dedicated reporting
process within the Group. These will be covered in the years to come and
are marked by an asterisk (*) that indicates that action is underway here,
in line with Technip’s policy of continuous improvement.
Themes not applicable to the Group’s activity are marked “NA”.
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GRI Correspondences

Global Reporting Initiative
Profile
2.1
2.2
2.3
2.4
2.5
2.6
2.7
2.8
2.9
2.10
2.11
2.12
2.13
2.14
2.15
2.16
2.20
2.21

Name of Group
Major Products and Services
Operational Structure of the Group
Major Divisions and Subsidiaries
Countries in which the Group is Located
Nature of Ownership, Legal Form
Markets Served
Scope of Group Operations
List of Stakeholders
Contact People for the Report
Frequency of Updates
Date of Most Recent Published Report, if Any
Scope of the Report
Significant Changes in Size, Structure, Ownership
Basis for Reporting by Subsidiaries
Explanation of Any Restatements of Information Provided in Earlier Reports
Data Verification Policy and Measures
Explanation for the Use of Any Independent Certification

Governance and Management Systems
3.1
Governance Structure
3.2
Percentage of Independent Supervisory Board Members
3.3
Determination of Scope of Authority of the Board of Directors
3.4
Process of Risk Identification and Management
3.5
Policy of Financial and Sustainable Development Performance Incentives for Management
3.6
Organization Pertaining to Sustainable Development
3.7
Charters, Missions, Values and Codes
3.9
Identification of Major Stakeholders
3.10
Method and Schedule for Consulting Stakeholders
3.11
Type of Information Collected After Consultation
3.12
Use of Collected Information
3.13
Application of Precaution Principle
3.14
Membership in Independent Charters and Adherence to External Principles
3.15
Major Organizations and Associations of Which the Group is a Member
3.16
Operative Management Systems
3.17
Management of Indirect Impacts of Operations
3.18
Key Decisions Relating to Operations and Their Location
3.19
Sustainable Development Program and Procedures
3.20
Certification of Management Systems
Environmental Performance
EN1
Total Consumption of Raw Materials in Metric Tons (Excluding Water and Energy)
EN2
Share of Raw Materials Resulting from Waste (Recycled or Otherwise) from Outside the Group
EN3
Direct Consumption of Energy by Type
EN4
Indirect Consumption of Energy
EN5
Total Water Consumption
EN6
Location and Area of Land Owned, Leased or Developed in a Sensitive Environment
EN7
Description of Principal Impacts on Biodiversity
EN8
Direct and Indirect Emissions of Greenhouse Gases
EN9
Consumption and Emissions of Ozone-depleting Substance
EN10
NOx, SOx and Other Significant Emissions
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pages
1
3
10-11
(1)

18-19
(1)

3-(1)
3-(1)
2
*
25-34
34
35
35
35
NA
*
*

6-8
6
6
8-9-10-17-53
(1)

34
6-7
25-33-46-54-58
44-48-49-60-61
*
*
44
33
33
10-11
42-43-44-54
18-19
32-39
41-50-55

*
NA
42
42
42
18-19-44
44
43
NA
*

GRI Correspondences

NA = not applicable
(1) Annual Report 2005

pages
42
42
42-43-44
42

Environmental Performance (cont.)
EN11
Total Quantity of Waste by Type and Disposal Method
EN12
Significant Aqueous Discharges by Type
EN14
Significant Environmental Impacts of Major Products and Services
EN15
Percentage of Products Recovered after Use (Recycled or Reused)
EN16
Penalties for Non-compliance with International Declarations, Agreements and Treaties
and with National, Regional and Local Regulations Pertaining to the Environment
EN17
Initiatives for Using Renewable Energy Sources and Improving Energy Efficiency

37
45

Social and Civic Performance
LA1
Workforce by Status, Type of Job and Type of Employment Agreement
LA2
Net Job Creation and Average Turnover
LA3
Percentage of Employees Represented by an Independent Labor Organization
LA4
Policy and Procedures for Informing, Consulting and Negotiating with Employees
in the Event of Changes in the Group (e.g. Restructuring)
LA5
Recording and Notification Practices for Work-related Accidents and Illnesses,
and Relation to ILO Principles
LA6
Description of Health and Safety Committees (% of Workforce Covered)
LA7
Rates for Accident Severity, Accident Frequency and Lost Work Days, and Number
of Mortal Accidents (Includes Contractors)
LA8
Description of AIDS-related Policies and Programs (at and outside the Workplace)
LA9
Average Number of Training Hours per Employee by Year and Category of Personnel
LA10
Equal Opportunity Policies and Programs
LA11
Composition of Executive Committees, including Number of Men/Women
and Other Relevant Diversity Indicators (Cultural Context-Specific)
HR1
Existing Policies, Guidelines and Procedures on Human Rights
HR2
Factoring Human Rights into Investment and Contracting Decisions
HR3
Policies and Procedures to Monitor Respect for Human Rights throughout
the Supply Chain
HR4
Policies and Procedures for Combating Discrimination
HR5
Policy and Procedures for Freedom of Association
HR6
Policy and Procedures for Combating Child Labor
HR7
Policy and Procedures for Combating Forced and Compulsory Labor
SO1
Management of Impacts on Local Communities
SO2
Policy and Procedures on Blackmail and Corruption
SO3
Policy and Procedures on Lobbying and Political Contributions
PR1
Policy and Procedures on Protecting Consumer Health and Safety during Use
of the Group’s Products and Services
PR2
Policy and Procedures on Information Relating to Products
PR3
Policy and Procedures on Respecting Customer Privacy

26-27-64
64
*
48
50-52
52
52
52
47-64
49-64
6-7-10-11
33
61
61
27-33
27-33
27-33
27-33
54-55-56-57
33
NA
60-61
60-61
NA

Financial Performance
EC1
Net Sales Revenue
EC2
Geographic Breakdown of Key Sales Markets
EC3
Cost of Purchased Goods and Services
EC4
Percentage of Contracts Paid per Terms and by the Due Date
EC5
Total Salaries and Benefits
EC6
Interest and Dividends
EC7
Change in ROACE over the Year
EC8
Total Taxes Paid
EC9
Subsidies Received
EC10
Gifts to the Community (Financial and In Kind) by Type of Beneficiary
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Glossary

Biodiesel
Diesel produced from biomass
(rape, sunflower, beets etc.).

Debottlenecking
Modifications made to an
installation which increase
the production capacity.

Development (of a gas
or oil field)
All operations associated with
oil and gas field production.

Environmental Impact
Assessment
Study which assesses and
measures impacts for each
major type of pollution (air,
water, noise, waste) for all
industrial installations prior
to start-up.

Flexible Flowline
Flexible pipe laid on the
seabed for the transport of
production or injection fluids.

NRE

Sarbanes-Oxley Act

French law on new economic
regulations, passed on May
15, 2001, regulating three
areas: finance, competition,
and corporate practices.

American law voted in 2002
and applicable to companies
listed on the US stock
exchange aiming to increase
corporate responsibility and
to better protect investors. It
regulates three major areas:
exactness and accessibility of
information, the responsibility
of management and the
independence of auditors.

Offshore Oil and Gas
Installation
Subsea or surface (platform)
oil and gas drilling/production installations.

Umbilical
Carbon Dioxide (CO2)
Co l o r l e s s g a s n a t u r a l l y
produced in the atmosphere.
Human activities, notably
the combustion of fossil
fuels can increase the level
of carbon dioxide. This phenomenon is believed to have
an influence on the climate.
Carbon dioxide is the main
greenhouse gas because of
the large quantities released
into the atmosphere.

DJSI (Dow Jones
Sustainability Index)
Launched in 1999, this index
was the first to track the
financial performances of
the leading sustainabilitydriven companies worldwide.

EPIC (Engineering,
Procurement, Installation,
Commissioning)
An EPIC or “turnkey” contract
integrates responsibility from
the conception to the final
acceptance of one or more
elements of a production
system. It can be awarded
for all, or par t, of a field
development.
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FPSO (Floating,
Production, Storage and
Offloading)
A converted or custom-built
ship-shaped floater, employed
to process oil and gas for a
temporary storage prior to
transhipment.

Liquefied Natural Gas
(LNG)
Natural gas, liquefied by
cooling its temperature to
-162°C , thus reducing its
volume by 600 times, allowing its transport by boat.

An assembly of hydraulic
hoses which can also include
electrical cables or optic
fibres used to control a subsea
structure or ROV from a
platform or a vessel.

Polypropylene
Plastic material with exceptional shock resistance
qualities, used in a wide
range of industries including
automobile parts, household
appliances, fibres and films.

All of the companies selected
by the Dow Jones Sustainability Index in the gas and
oil equipment and services
sector.

Natural Gas
Liquefaction

ROV (Remotely
Operated Vehicle)

Transformation of natural gas
into liquid gas to facilitate its
transport by boat.

Unmanned subsea vehicle
remotely controlled from
a vessel or an offshore
platform. It is equipped with
manipulator arms that
enable it to perform simple
operations.
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Dynamic and static undersea
pipes and umbilicals.

Environmental
Management System
Management system allowing
an organization to establish
an environmental policy and
to achieve objectives relating
to the impact of its activities
on the environment in
respect to regulations in
force.

Riser
Pipe or assembly of pipes
used to transfer produced
fluids from the seabed to the
surface facilities or to transfer
injection fluids, control fluids
o r ga s f ro m t h e s u r fa c e
facilities to the seabed.

Industry (DJSI)

SURF (Subsea,
Umbilicals, Risers &
Flowlines)

Stream Cracker
Petrochemical cracking unit
using hydrocarbon steam
molecules to produce
ethylene and propylene.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Part I

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS (Amounts in millions of Euro, except as otherwise stated)
Notes
Revenues
3
Cost of Sales
Gross Margin
Research and Development Expenses
Selling Costs
Administrative Costs
Other Operating Income
Other Operating Expenses
Income / (Loss) from Operations
4
Financial Income
5
Financial Expenses
5
Share of Income / (Loss) of Associates Accounted for using the Equity Method
Income / (Loss) before Tax
Income Tax Expense
6
Income / (Loss) from Continuing Operations
Income / (Loss) from Discontinued Operations
7
Net Income / (Loss) for the Year
Attributable to:
Shareholders of the Parent Company
Minority Interests
Number of Shares Considered for Net Earnings per Share Computation (2)
Number of Shares Considered for Net Diluted Earnings per Share Computation (3)
Number of Shares Considered for Net Fully Diluted Earnings per Share (4)
Net Earnings per Share (in Euros) (2)
Net Diluted Earnings per Share (in Euros) (3)
Net Fully Diluted Earnings per Share (in Euros) (4)

8
8
8
8
8
8

For the years ended
December 31,
2005
2004
5,376.1
5,140.9
(4,818.0)
(4,577.8)
558.1
563.1
(29.4)
(30.2)
(84.0)
(99.1)
(224.2)
(189.3)
32.6
26.0
(22.1)
(36.9)
231.0
233.6
20.0
14.3
(108.8)
(80.7)
1.3
1.2
143.5
168.4
(43.5)
(54.2)
100.0
114.2
(5.0)
95.0
114.2
93.3
1.7
95.0
95,687,456
97,217,686
115,349,102
0.98
0.96
1.11

111.8
2.4
114.2
94,454,277 (1)
110,843,694 (1)
115,544,936 (1)
1.18
1.13
1.09

(1) The number of shares have been adjusted to take into account the 4-for-1 share split on May 13, 2005 and to enable the comparison.
(2) Net earnings per share are based on the weighted average number of outstanding shares over the period, after deducting the treasury shares.
(3) The net diluted earnings per share include the possible dilutive effects that may be generated by equity instruments (stock options) and compound
financial instruments (convertible bonds OCEANE). Over the year, the Group has not issued any other financial instruments that might create an
additional dilution on net earnings per share. Net diluted earning per share does not include convertible bonds in accordance with IAS 33 since they have
no dilutive effect on the net income as of December 31, 2005, as per application of IAS 32 and IAS 39 (see Note 8 – Net Diluted Earnings per Share).
(4) Net fully diluted earnings per share include the impact of all equity and compound financial instruments. The number of shares on a fully diluted basis
comprises shares that would result from the convertible bond conversion into newly issued shares and from the exercise of subscription options, after
deducting treasury shares. The number of fully diluted shares for 2004 has been adjusted to include the 4-for-1 share split on May 13, 2005. Earnings used
as basis of this computation are restated to exclude net costs of income tax related to convertible bonds (see Note 8 – Net Diluted Earnings per Share).

Following the analyses performed for the 2005 IFRS closing, some items of the 2004 IFRS accounts released in April 2005 have
been restated to enable comparison with 2005 accounts. These immaterial reclassifications essentially relate to the disclosure
of deferred taxes in the balance sheet; regarding the income statement of 2004, income from discontinued operations has been
reclassified in other operating income and expenses. Additionally in 2005, some reclassifications have been made on certain
immaterial items of the balance sheet and the cash flow statement since the release on February 23, 2006.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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2. CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (Amounts in millions of Euro, except as otherwise stated)
Notes
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net
Intangible Assets, Net
Investments in Associates Accounted for Using the Equity Method
Other Financial Assets
Deferred Tax Assets
Available-for-Sale Financial Assets
Current Assets
Inventories
Construction Contracts - Amounts Due from Clients
Advances Paid to Suppliers
Derivatives
Trade Receivables
Current Income Tax Receivables
Other Current Receivables
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Assets of Disposal Group Classified as Held for Sale
TOTAL ASSETS

As of December 31,
2005
2004

11
12
13
14
6
15

771.3
2,451.9
9.7
11.6
90.0
3,334.5

736.5
2,472.7
19.9
3.4
105.2
3,337.7

16
17

101.0
585.0
266.9
3.5
440.0
51.8
283.6
2,187.8
3,919.6
42.9
7,297.0

87.2
400.6
249.3
349.0
98.5
461.3
1,434.0
3,079.9
6,417.6

28
18
19
20
7

Following the analyses performed for the 2005 IFRS closing, some items of the 2004 IFRS accounts released in April 2005 have
been restated to enable comparison with 2005 accounts. These immaterial reclassifications essentially relate to the disclosure
of deferred taxes in the balance sheet; regarding the income statement of 2004, income from discontinued operations has been
reclassified in other operating income and expenses. Additionally in 2005, some reclassifications have been made on certain
immaterial items of the balance sheet and the cash flow statement since the release on February 23, 2006.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (Amounts in millions of Euro, except as otherwise stated)
Notes
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common Stock : 0.7625 Euro Nominal Share Value,
98,874,172 Shares as of December 31, 2005 (1)
24,110,654 Shares as of December 31, 2004
23,738,331 Shares as of December 31, 2003
Paid-in-Surplus
Retained Earnings
Treasury Shares (2)
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
Fair Value Reserve
Net Income

75.4

73.5

1,336.7
522.7
(52.4)
4.5
(26.5)
93.3
1,953.7
13.9
1,967.6

1,275.6
445.8
(32.4)
(34.3)
11.6
111.8
1,851.6
9.8
1,861.4

23
22
25
6

650.1
655.2
106.3
100.4
1,512.0

670.9
737.8
115.3
127.1
1,651.1

22
26
17

214.4
978.1
35.5
1,636.9
77.1
133.4
34.9
707.1
3,817.4
5,329.4
7,297.0

192.0
852.5
33.1
915.6
121.5
18.7
771.7
2,905.1
4,556.2
6,417.6

21
Minority Interests
TOTAL EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
Convertible Bonds OCEANE (3)
Other Non-Current Financial Debts
Provisions
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Current Financial Debt
Trade Payables
Construction Contracts - Amounts Due to Clients
Advances Received
Derivatives
Provisions
Current Income Tax Payables
Other Current Payables

As of December 31,
2005
2004

28
25
27

TOTAL LIABILITIES
Liabilities Directly Associated with the Assets Classified as Held for Sale
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

(1) On May 13, 2005, Technip’s ordinary shares were split 4-for-1 on the decision of the Combined Shareholders’ Meeting of April 29, 2005.
(2) As of December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004, Technip held respectively 1,580,548 and 340,242 shares (after the split 4-for-1). These treasury shares
have been deducted from shareholders’ equity in the consolidated accounts.
(3) Convertible bonds (OCEANE) whose maturity was set on January 1, 2007, were subject to early conversion in March 2006 (see Note 34 – Subsequent Events).

Following the analyses performed for the 2005 IFRS closing, some items of the 2004 IFRS accounts released in April 2005 have
been restated to enable comparison with 2005 accounts. These immaterial reclassifications essentially relate to the disclosure of
deferred taxes in the balance sheet; regarding the income statement of 2004, income from discontinued operations has been
reclassified in other operating income and expenses. Additionally in 2005, some reclassifications have been made on certain
immaterial items of the balance sheet and the cash flow statement since the release on February 23, 2006.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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3. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Amounts in millions of Euro, except as otherwise stated)

Notes
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Income for the Year
Adjustments for :
Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment
and Amortization of Intangible Assets
Amortization of Convertible Bond Loan Redemption Premium
Charge related to Convertible Bond Split Accounting
Stock Option Charge
Non-Current Provisions (including Employee Benefits)
Share of Income / (Loss) of Associates
Accounted for Using the Equity Method
Net (Gains) / Losses on Disposal of Assets and Investments
Deferred Tax
Changes in Working Capital
Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of Property, Plant and Equipment
Proceeds from Sales of Property, Plant and Equipment
Purchases of Intangible Assets
Acquisitions of Investments, Net of Cash Acquired
Proceeds from Sales of Investments
Changes in Scope of Consolidation
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase in Borrowings
Decrease in Borrowings
Capital Increase
Share Buy-Back
Dividends Paid
Net Cash (Used in) / Generated from Financing Activities
Effects of Foreign Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents as of January 1
Cash and Cash Equivalents as of December 31

For the years ended
December 31,
2005
2004
95.0

114.2

143.3
13.3
16.6
5.4
0.7

142.1
11.4
5.8
(4.8)

(0.6)
(10.4)
12.5
275.8
618.1
893.9

(1.2)
9.2
31.2
307.9
89.9
397.8

(167.4)
19.4
(3.1)
(0.9)
2.6
4.8
(144.6)

(118.6)
5.7
(5.2)
17.2
(27.4)
(128.3)

51.1
(141.2)
63.8
(20.1)
(32.0)
(78.4)
82.9
753.8
1 434.0
2 187.8
753.8

673.1
(242.1)
26.3
(22.7)
(129.8)
304.8
(8.6)
565.7
868.3 (1)
1 434.0
565.7

(1) As a result of the IFRS transition, discontinued activities were restated on the opening balance as of January 1, 2004. The adjustment decreased the cash balance
for an amount of €24,1 million. Interests paid for years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 respectively amount to €50.2 million and €19.3 million.

Following the analyses performed for the 2005 IFRS closing, some items of the 2004 IFRS accounts released in April 2005 have
been restated to enable comparison with 2005 accounts. These immaterial reclassifications essentially relate to the disclosure
of deferred taxes in the balance sheet; regarding the income statement of 2004, income from discontinued operations has been
reclassified in other operating income and expenses. Additionally in 2005, some reclassifications have been made on certain
immaterial items of the balance sheet and the cash flow statement since the release on February 23, 2006.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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4. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(Amounts in millions of Euro, except as otherwise stated)
Stock issued
Number Common Paid-in- Retained Treasury Foreign
Fair
Net Shareholders's Minority Total
of Shares Stock Surplus Earnings Shares Currency
Value Income
Equity
Interests Equity
Issued
Translation Reserve (Parent
(Parent
Reserve
Company) Company)
As of January 1, 2004
23,738,331
Total Income and Expense
Recognized Directly in Equity
Net Income 2004
Total Recognized Income 2004
Capital Increase
372,323
Appropriation of Net Income
(1)
2003 and Prepaid Dividends
Treasury Shares
Foreign Currency
Translation Reserves
Stock Option Charge
Others
As of December 31, 2004 24,110,654
First-time Application
IAS 32 / IAS 39
as of January 1, 2005:
- Foreign Currency
Translation Reserve
- Valuation of Derivative
Instruments
IAS 32 / IAS 39 Cash Flow Hedging (2)
Total Income and Expense
Recognized Directly in Equity
Net Income 2005
Total Recognized Income 2005
Capital Increase
2,465,664
Appropriation of Net Income 2004
(3)
and Prepaid Dividend
Split 4-for-1 Shares (4)
72,331,962
Treasury Shares
(34,108)
Foreign Currency
Translation Reserves
Stock Option Charge
Convertible Bonds Split Accounting (5)
Others
As of December 31, 2005 98,874,172

72.4

1,250.4

588.4

(9.7)

-

5.8

(19.7)

1,887.6

9.5

1,897.1

-

-

-

-

-

-

1.1

25.2

-

-

-

-

111.8
111.8
-

111.8
111.8
26.3

2.4
2.4
-

114.2
114.2
26.3

-

-

(149.5)
-

(22.7)

-

-

19.7
-

(129.8)
(22.7)

-

(129.8)
(22.7)

-

-

-

(34.3)
-

5.8

-

1,275.6

(32.4)

(34.3)

11.6

111.8

(34.3)
5.8
6.9
1,851.6

(2.1)
-

73.5

6.9
445.8

9.8

(36.4)
5.8
6.9
1,861.4

-

-

-

-

-

11.2

-

11.2

-

11.2

-

-

-

-

-

30.0

-

30.0

-

30.0

-

-

-

-

-

(117.5)

-

(117.5)

-

(117.5)

-

-

-

-

-

(76.3)

1.9

61.9

-

-

-

(76.3)
-

93.3
93.3
-

(76.3)
93.3
17.0
63.8

1.7
1.7
-

(76.3)
95.0
18.7
63.8

-

(0.8)

79.8
-

(20.0)

-

-

(111.8)
-

(32.0)
(20.8)

-

(32.0)
(20.8)

-

-

-

-

38.8
-

5.4

-

38.8
5.4

2.4
-

41.2
5.4

75.4

1,336.7

(2.9)
522.7

(52.4)

4.5

32.8
(26.5)

93.3

32.8
(2.9)
1,953.7

13.9

32.8
(2.9)
1,967.6

(1) Includes the payment of 2003 dividends, of the precept for €82.3 million and of the 2004 interim dividend for €47.5 million.
(2) First-time application of the IAS 32 and 39 as of January 1, 2005, regarding the foreign exchange hedging financial instruments.
(3) Includes the payment of 2004 dividends for €32.0 million, after the payment of the 2004 interim dividend for €47.5 million.
(4) On May 13, 2005, Technip’s ordinary shares were split 4-for-1 on the decision of the Combined Shareholders’ Meeting of April 29, 2005.
(5) First-time application of the IAS 32 and 39 as of January 1, 2005, regarding the OCEANE convertible bonds: split accounting into a separate financial debt
component and a shareholders’ equity component (see Note 23 – Convertible Bonds).

Following the analyses performed for the 2005 IFRS closing, some items of the 2004 IFRS accounts released in April 2005 have
been restated to enable comparison with 2005 accounts. These immaterial reclassifications essentially relate to the disclosure
of deferred taxes in the balance sheet; regarding the income statement of 2004, income from discontinued operations has been
reclassified in other operating income and expenses. Additionally in 2005, some reclassifications have been made on certain
immaterial items of the balance sheet and the cash flow statement since the release on February 23, 2006.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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5. NOTES TO THE
CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Technip’s principal business includes
the following:
• Lump sum or cost-to-costs engineering service contracts performed over
a short period;
• Engineering, manufacturing, installation and commissioning service
contract lasting approximately 12
months;
• Turnkey projects related to complex
industrial facilities with engineering,
procurement, construction and
start-up, in respect of industrial
performances and a contractual
schedule. The average duration of
these contracts is three years but
can vary depending on the contract.

Note 1 – Summary of Significant
Accounting Principles

A. Accounting Framework
(a) Terms of IFRS First-Time
Application
In application of European regulation
no. 1606/2002 of July 19, 2002 on the
application of international accounting standards, Technip’s consolidated
financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2005 have
been prepared, for the first time, in
accordance with the IFRS (IFRS International Financial Reporting
Standards) published by IASB, applicable for the 2005 financial year and as
endorsed by the European Union. The
balance sheet at the transition date of
January 1, 2004 and the 2004 comparative financial information have been
prepared using the same standards
and interpretations, excepting IAS 32
and IAS 39. Indeed, Technip has chosen
to apply both of these standards starting January 1, 2005.
Following the analyses performed for
the 2005 IFRS closing, some items of
the 2004 IFRS accounts released in
April 2005 have been restated to enable

10
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comparison with 2005 accounts. These
immaterial reclassifications essentially
relate to the disclosure of deferred
taxes in the balance sheet; regarding
the income statement of 2004, income
from discontinued operations has
been reclassified in other operating
income and expenses. Additionally in
2005, some reclassifications have
been made on certain immaterial
items of the balance sheet and the
cash flow statement since the release
on February 23, 2006.
These consolidated accounts have
been prepared in accordance with
IFRS 1. This standard provides for the
retrospective application of standards,
with the exception of certain obligatory provisions and some limited
exemptions. Technip has made the
following elections:
Business Combinations:
Technip has elected not to restate, as
provided by IFRS 3, business combinations prior to January 1, 2004.
Property, Plant and Equipment, and
Intangible Assets:
Technip has elected not to record the
fair value or the revaluation of its
assets as assumed cost. However, the
Group performed a review of useful
lives of amortization and residual
values of main assets.
Translation Gains and Losses in
relation to Foreign Entity:
Technip has elected to reclassify
cumulative translation gains and losses
at January 1, 2004 under consolidated
reserves. If a subsidiary is disposed of,
the disposal gain or loss will only
include the translation gains and
losses recognized after January 1, 2004.
Retirement Benefit Obligations:
Technip has elected to account for
residual cumulated actuarial gains and
losses in equity for post-employment
benefits, not recognized as of January 1,
2004, and to use the “corridor” method
for the future actuarial gains and
losses. As per this method, actuarial

gains and losses that exceed 10% of
the greater of the present value of the
defined obligation and the fair value of
the plan assets are recognized on a
straight-line basis over the remaining
working lives of the employees participating in that plan.
Share-based Payments:
Technip has elected to apply IFRS 2
retrospectively in respect of share
option plans granted since November 7,
2002.
Insurance Contracts:
Technip has elected to apply IFRS 4 as
of January 1, 2004 in respect of insurance
contracts. This standard had no impact
as of January 1, 2004, December 31,
2004 nor December 31, 2005.
Financial Instruments:
Technip has elected to apply IAS 32
and IAS 39 as from January 1, 2005.
Following are the impacts of these
standards in 2005:
• Split accounting of compound
financial instruments applied to the
OCEANE convertible bonds. It generated an increase in equity and a
reduction in convertible bonds
(non-current financial debt) for
€32.8 million as of January 1, 2005.
• Accounting in the balance sheet of
the fair value in respect of financial
instruments and mainly foreign
exchange hedging instruments.
(b) Ongoing IFRS Texts or Projects
whose Anticipated Application is
Allowed Starting 2005
Technip’s financial statements at
December 31, 2005, do not include
the possible impact of standards
published at December 31, 2005 of
which application is only mandatory
for periods starting after December 31,
2005, with the exception of abovementioned IFRS 4.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IFRS 7: Disclosures on Financial
Instruments.

exceed 50% or when the Group controls
financial or operating policies.

This standard is required to be applied
for annual period as from January 1,
2007.

Proportionate consolidation is used for
jointly controlled entities.
The equity method is used for investments over which the Group exercises
a significant influence on operating
and financial policies. Unless otherwise
indicated, such influence is presumed
to exist for investments in companies
in which the Group’s direct or indirect
ownership is between 20% and 50%.

Amendments to IAS 19: Employee
Benefits – Actuarial Gains and
Losses, Group Plans and Disclosures.
The amendment to IAS 19 concerning
actuarial gains and losses is applicable
as from January 1, 2006, earlier application being encouraged. Technip has not
yet decided to opt for this standard, in
particular as regards the possibility of
recording all actuarial gains and losses
directly in equity.
Amendments to IAS 39 Revised:
Financial Instruments, Accounting
and Valuation, as regards Cash Flow
Hedge Accounting Related to
Forecast Intragroup Transactions
This amendment is required to be
applied for annual periods as from
January 1, 2006.
IFRIC 4: “Determining whether an
Arrangement Contains a Lease”
This interpretation is required to be
applied for annual periods as from
January 1, 2006.
IFRIC 5: Rights to Interests arising
from Decommissioning, Restoration
and Environmental Rehabilitation
Funds
This interpretation is required to be
applied for annual periods as from
January 1, 2006.
The Group is in the process of analyzing the possible effects of these new
standards on its financial statements.
B. Consolidation Principles
Companies over which the Group has
significant control are fully consolidated,
in particular when the voting rights

Investments in which the Group’s
ownership is less than 20% or for
non-significant investee or subsidiaries
(such as empty entities) are recorded
under “Other Financial Assets (NonCurrent)” line item and only impact net
income through dividends received.
When fair value cannot be estimated
reliably, these investments are maintained at historical cost, net of depreciation.
The list of the main Group’s consolidated companies and their respective
method of consolidation are provided
in Note 35 – Main Consolidated
Companies and Equity Associates.
The financial statements of main affiliates
are prepared for the same reporting
period as the parent company, using
consistent accounting policies.
All balances and intercompany transactions, as well as internal income and
expenses, are entirely eliminated.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date of acquisition, being the date
when the Group obtains control and
continue to be consolidated until the
date when such control ceases.
The classification between current
assets and liabilities, and non-current
assets and liabilities is based on
contracts’ operating cycle and if not
related to contracts, on their maturity
classified as less or greater than 12
months.

C. Rules and Estimates
Consolidated financial statements
have been prepared in accordance
with the IFRS: fair presentation,
consistency, going concern, relative
extent and business combinations.
The consolidated assets have been
evaluated under the historical cost
convention, except for financial assets
and derivative financial instruments,
which have been measured at fair
value. The Group consolidated financial
statements are presented in millions
of euros and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand, except when
otherwise indicated.
The preparation of financial statements
in compliance with IFRS requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgment or complexity or
areas where assumptions and estimates are material are disclosed in the
paragraphs below.
(a) Use of Estimates
The preparation of the consolidated
financial statements requires estimates to be used and assumptions to be
made that may affect the assessment
and disclosure of assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements,
as well as the income and the reported
expenses regarding this financial
year. Estimates may be revised if
the circumstances and the assumptions on which they were based alter,
if new information becomes available,
o r t h ro u g h g re a t e r ex p e ri e n c e .
Consequently, actual result from
these operations may differ from
these estimates.
The main assessments and accounting
assumptions made in the Group’s
financial statements relate to the
construction contracts, to the valuation
of Group exposure to litigations
and to residual goodwill valuation.
Regarding construction contracts, the
Group policy is described in Note 1 C.
(b) Construction Contracts. In terms
of legal proceedings and claims, the
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Group regularly draws up lists and
performs analyses of main litigations
i n p rog re s s , s o a s t o re c o rd t h e
adequate provisions when necessary.
Possible uncertainties related to
ongoing litigations are described in
Note 32(c) - Off-balance sheet commitments and contingencies.
Goodwill is no longer amortized but is
tested for impairment at least annually
and whenever there is an indication
that it may be impaired. This impairment test enables to determine
whether its carrying amount does
not exceed its recoverable amount.
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units (CGU) for the purpose of
impairment testing. Each of these CGU
corresponds to the Group’s businesses,
representing independent cashgenerating flows. The recoverable
amount is the higher of selling prices
and values in use related to CGU.
The latter corresponds to the discounted future cash flows forecasted for
these CGU.
Technip also performs sensitivity
analyses on main assumptions with
regards to impairments tests, in order
to make sure that no reasonable
change of an hypothesis on which
the Group has determined its CGU’s
recoverable value, jeopardizes the
conclusions of these impairment tests.
(b) Construction Contracts
In compliance with IAS 11, construction
contract gross margins at completion
are measured in using the percentageof-completion method. As soon as the
estimate of the final outcome of a
contract indicates a loss, a provision is
made for the entire loss.
The percentage-of-completion ratio is
computed consistently for each and
every homogenous type of contracts
as follows:
• For all contracts, which include construction services subjected to performance commitments (lump-sum
turnkey contracts), the percentage

12
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of completion is based on technical
milestones defined for the main
components of the contracts, once
their progress is deemed sufficient;
• For other construction contracts, the
percentage of completion is recognized based on the ratio between costs
incurred to date and estimated total
costs at completion.
Construction contract gross margin is
based on an analysis of total costs
and income at completion, which are
reviewed periodically and regularly
throughout the life of the contract.
Co s t s i n c u r re d o n c o n s t ru c t i o n
contracts at completion include the
following:
• The purchase of material, the subcontracting cost of engineering, the cost
of markets, and every other related
cost directly linked to the contract.
• The labor cost and its related social
charges which are directly connected with contracts. The man-hour
rates taken into account are based
on standard level of activity. Selling
costs, research and development
costs and financial costs are excluded
from those evaluations.
Costs on construction contracts do not
include financial expenses.
Income at completion includes gains
on claims from clients only if it is very
likely that the latter will accept them.
Revenues on contracts are measured
on the basis of costs incurred and of
margin recognized at the percentage
of completion, in accordance with the
above-mentioned method.
A lump-sum turnkey contract is considered as completed when the last
milestone, represented by the contractual transfer of ownership regarding
the facilities built or by its provisional
acceptance (even though minor conditions are outstanding) is passed.

Construction contracts are presented
in the balance sheet as follows:
• Progress payments made by customers related to unrealized works are
recognized under the “Advances
Received” liability item.
• For each construction contract, the
accumulated costs incurred, as well
as the gross margin recognized at
the contract’s percentage of completion (plus accruals for foreseeable
losses if needed), after deducting the
progress payments invoiced to the
client, are shown on the asset side
under the “Construction Contracts –
Amounts Due from Clients” if the
balance of those combined components is a debit; if the balance is a
credit, these ones are shown on the
liability side under the “Construction
Contracts – Amounts Due to Clients”
line item.
Upon completion of the contract:
• The balance of “Construction
Contracts – Due from Clients” (which
at that time amounts to the total
contract’s sale price), less accumulated progress payments received
under this contract at this date,
is invoiced to the customer and
recorded as current receivables on
contracts (see Note 18 – Trade
Receivables).
• To get the acceptance certificate
from the client, if necessary, accrued
liabilities may be recorded to cover
pending expenses and are recorded
as other current payables in the
balance sheet.
For the purpose of cash flow statements,
those line items above-mentioned
are considered as current for the
measurement of changes in working
capital.
Costs directly attributable to obtaining
future turnkey engineering/construction contracts (“bid costs”), the
signature of which can be reasonably
expected, are capitalized in the balance
s h e e t u n d e r t h e “ Co n s t r u c t i o n
Contracts – Due from Clients” line
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item (see Note 17 – Construction
Contracts), then transferred to
contract costs upon final contract
award. The costs incurred by bids with
insufficient probability of success are
expensed immediately.
(c) Foreign Currency Transactions and
Financial Instruments
Foreign Currency Transactions
Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the presentation currency at the exchange rate applicable
at the transaction date.
At the closing date, monetary assets
and liabilities stated in foreign currencies are translated into the presentation
currency at the exchange rate prevailing at that date. Resulting exchange
gains or losses are directly recorded
in the income statement, excepting
exchange gains or losses on cash
accounts eligible for future cash flow
hedging and for hedging on net foreign
currency investments.
Translation of Financial Statements
for Foreign Companies
The income statements of foreign
subsidiaries are translated into Euro
at the average rate of exchange
prevailing during the year. Balance
sheets are translated at the exchange
ra t e a t t h e b a l a n c e s h e e t d a t e .
Differences arising in the translation
of financial statements of foreign
subsidiaries are recorded in shareholders’ equity as foreign currency
translation reserve. The functional
currency of the foreign subsidiaries is
the local currency. However some
African subsidiaries report in U.S. $ as
their main commercial transaction
currency is the U.S. $.
Derivatives and Hedging Processing
Technip has applied the IAS 32-39 for
the first time as of January 1, 2005.
Every derivative financial instrument
held by the Group is aimed at hedging
future inflows or outflows against
exchange rate fluctuations during the

period of performance of the
contracts. Derivative instruments and
in particular forward exchange transactions are aimed at hedging future
inflows or outflows against exchange
rate fluctuations in relation with
awarded commercial contracts.
In addition, foreign currency treasury
accounts designed for a contract and
used to finance its future expenses in
foreign currencies may qualify for
foreign currency cash flow hedge.
Finally, an economic hedging may
occasionally be obtained by offsetting
cash inflows and outflows on a same
contract (natural hedging).
When implementing hedging transactions, each Group’s subsidiary enters
into forward exchange contracts with
banks or with the Group treasury company, Technip Eurocash SNC (a general
partnership). However, only instruments
that involve a third party to the Group
are designated as hedging instruments.
A derivative instrument qualifies for
hedge accounting (fair value hedge or
cash flow hedge) when there is a formal designation and documentation
of the hedging relationship, and of the
effectiveness of the hedge all along
the life of the contract. A fair value
hedge aims at reducing risks incurred
by the changes in market value of
some assets, liabilities or firm commitments. A cash flow hedge aims at
reducing risks incurred by the variations
of value of future cash flows that may
impact net income.
All derivative instruments are recorded
and disclosed in the balance sheet at
fair value.
• Derivatives qualified for hedging are
classified as current assets and liabilities, as they follow the operating cycle.
• Derivatives not qualified for hedging
are classified as current assets and
liabilities.

Changes in fair value are recognized as
follows:
• Regarding cash flow hedge, the portion of the gain or loss corresponding
to the effectiveness of the hedging
instrument is recognized directly in
equity, and the ineffective portion
of the gain or loss on the hedging
instrument is posted on the profit
and loss account. The exchange gain
or loss on derivative cash flow hedging instruments, deferred in equity,
is reclassified in the net income of
the period(s) whenever the forecast
hedged transaction affects the profit
or loss.
• The variations of fair value hedge
incurred by derivative instruments
are posted as financial income or
expenses. The ineffective portion of
the gain or loss immediately impacts
net income. The carrying amount of
a hedged item is adjusted by the
gain or loss on this hedged item
allocable to the hedged risk and is
recorded in the income statement.
• The changes in fair value of derivative
financial instruments that do not qualify for hedging are directly recognized
a financial income or expenses.
The fair value of derivative financial
instruments is estimated on the basis
of valuations provided by bank counterparties or financial models commonly
used in financial markets, using market
data at the balance sheet date.
Bid Contracts in Foreign Currency
To hedge its exposure to exchange rate
fluctuations during the bid-period of
construction contracts, Technip occasionally enters into insurance contracts,
upon which foreign currencies are
exchanged at a specified rate and at a
specified future date only if the
contemplated new contract is awarded.
A premium paid at the outset by the
Group to enter into such insurance
contract is charged to the income statement when paid. If the commercial bid
is not successful, the insurance contract
is automatically terminated without
any cash settlements or penalties.
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In some cases, Technip may enter into
foreign currency options for some
proposals during the bid-period.
(d) Business Combinations
From January 1, 2004, assets and liabilities acquired within business combinations are valued using the purchase
method. Assets and liabilities are
valued at their fair value. The residual
value is posted on the “Goodwill” line
item when significant, under the
“Intangible Assets” category. Since
January 1, 2004, goodwill is no longer
amortized as per IFRS 3.
The net value of intangible assets is
subject to impairment tests performed
on a regular basis, using the d i s counted cash flow method on the
basis of the most likely assumptions
considered by the Board of Directors.
Impairment tests are based on estimates in terms of growth rates,
discount rates and corporate tax
rates. A pproved by the Board of
Directors, those assumptions come
from the business plan covering
the years 2006 to 2008 for each
business segment.
The goodwill as well as the related
assets and liabilities are allocated to
the appropriate segment of activity.
Goodwill impairment analysis is performed annually during the fourth
quarter or whenever there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
Actual figures may differ from projections. If calculations show that an asset
is impaired, an impairment charge is
recognized.
(e) Property, Plant and Equipment
In compliance with IAS 16 “Property,
Plant and Equipment”, an asset is
recognized only if the cost can be
measured reliably and if future economic benefits are expected from its use.
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Property, plant and equipment are
carried at their historical cost or at
their fair value in case of business
combinations.
As per IAS 16, Technip depreciates
separately components of property,
plant and equipment, when the useful
life differs from the main asset.
Every material residual value of an
asset is taken into account to define
its depreciable amount.
Following are the main useful lives
applied by the Group:
Buildings
Vessels
Machinery and Equipment
Office Fixtures and Furniture
Vehicles
EDP Equipment

indicate that there may be impairment. In that case, an impairment loss
is recognized.
(f) Intangible Assets
Research and Development Costs
Generated Internally
Research costs are expensed when
incurred. In compliance with IAS 38,
development costs are capitalized as
long as criteria mentioned hereunder
are simultaneously fulfilled:
• The projects are clearly identified;
• The Group is able to measure reliably
the expenditure incurred by each
10 to 50 years
10 to 25 years
6 to 10 years
5 to 10 years
3 to 7 years
3 to 5 years

As per IAS 17, assets at the Group’s
disposal through lease contracts are
capitalized when all risks and benefits
related to the asset property have
been transferred to the Group.

project during its development;
• The Group is able to demonstrate the
technical feasibility of the project;
• The Group has the financial and
technical resources available to
achieve the project;
• The Group can demonstrate its
intention to complete, to use or to
commercialize products resulting
from the project;
• The Group is able to demonstrate
the existence of a market for the
output of the intangible asset, or, if
it is used internally, the usefulness of
the intangible asset.

As per IAS 16, dry dock expenses are
capitalized as a distinct component of
the main related asset. They are amortized over a period of 3 to 5 years.

At the closing date of these financial
statements, all conditions were not
fulfilled, and therefore no development
expense was capitalized.

Amortization costs are classified by
function of the expenses. Therefore
amortization costs are classified as cost
of sales, research and development
costs, general administrative costs.

Other Intangible Assets
Patents are amortized over their useful
life, on average 10 years. Costs related
to software rights are capitalized, as
well as those attached to material
i n d u s t ri a l p ro j e c t s , s u c h a s t h e
E-procurement platform or group
management projects. Those projects
costs are amortized over their useful
life, 5 years on average.

On a regular basis, the Group reviews
the useful lives of the assets. That
review is based on the effective use of
the assets.
As per IAS 23, borrowing costs may be
capitalized in the carrying cost of property, plant and equipment. Technip
has elected not to apply this option.

In accordance with IAS 36, the carrying value of property, plant and
equipment is reviewed for impairment
whenever internal or external events

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(g) Other Financial Assets (NonCurrent)
Other financial assets are recorded at
their fair value, or at their original cost if
there is no way to evaluate them reliably.
Impairment is recorded if its recoverable
amount is lower than its historical cost.
The estimated recoverable amount is
computed by type of financial asset
based on the future profitability or the
market value of the company considered,
as well as its net equity if needed.
Non-Consolidated Investments
Non-consolidated investments are recognized at their acquisition cost including
directly attributable transaction costs.
At each balance sheet date, these
investments are measured at their fair
value. As investments under this category relate to unlisted securities, fair
value is determined on the basis of
discounted cash flows or failing that,
based on the Group’s share in the
company’s equity.
These companies are mainly entities
w i t h o u t a ny b u s i n e s s a c t i v i t y.
Therefore, their investments are fully
depreciated.
Receivables related to Investments
This category comprises loans and
advances through current accounts
granted to unconsolidated companies
or associates accounted for using the
equity method.
Security Deposits and Others
This category essentially includes
guarantee security deposits and
escrow accounts related to litigations
or arbitration.
(h) Inventories
Inventories are recognized at the
lower of cost or market value with
cost being determined on the weighted-average cost basis. Every year, the
inventories are subject to impairment
tests, based on market data and their
likely use within the framework of
Group’s activities.

(i) Advances Paid to Suppliers
Advance payments made to suppliers
under long-term contracts are shown
under the “Advances to Suppliers” line
item, on the asset side of the balance
sheet.

Restructuring: When a restructuring
plan has been decided and that interested parties have been informed,
the latter is scheduled and valued.
Restructuring provisions are recognized
in compliance with the IAS 37.

(j) Trade Receivables
Trade receivables are measured at
their nominal value. A provision for
doubtful accounts is recorded when
receivables are highly expected to be
uncollectible.

Non-Current Provisions
Employee benefits: The Group is committed in various long-term employee
benefit plans. Those obligations will be
settled either at the employee departure dates or later on.The main defined
benefit plans can be, depending on
the affiliates:
• End-of-career indemnities, which are
to be paid at retirement date;
• Deferred wages indemnities, which
are to be paid when employees leave
the company;
• Retirement indemnities, which are to
be paid as annuities.

Trade receivables only relate to
delivered contracts, ongoing contract
assets being disclosed in the
“Construction Contracts – Amounts
Due from Clients” line item.
(k) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of
cash in bank and in hands, as well as
marketable securities fulfilling the
following criteria: a maturity usually
less than three months, a strong
liquidity, a fixed exchange value and
an insignificant risk of value loss.
Marketable securities are measured
at their market value at period end.
Any change in fair value is booked in
income statement.
(l) Provisions
Accrued liabilities are recognized if
and only if the following criteria are
simultaneously met:
• The Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event;
• The settlement of the obligation will
likely require an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits;
• The amount of the obligation can
be reliably estimated; provisions
are measured according to the
risk assessment or the exposed
charge, based upon the best-known
elements.
Current Provisions
Contingencies related to contracts:
These provisions relate to litigation on
contracts.

In accordance with IAS 19, independent
actuaries using the projected unit
credit method determine charges
related to those defined benefit plans.
The actuarial assumptions used to
determine the obligations may vary
depending on the country.The actuarial
estimation is based on usual parameters such as future wage and salary
increases, life expectancy, turnover of
staff, inflation rate and rate of return
on investment.
(m) Deferred Income Tax
Deferred income taxes are recognized
in accordance with IAS 12, using the
liability method (use of the last forecast
tax rate voted at the closing date), on
all temporary differences at the
balance sheet date, between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for each Group’s
company.
Deferred income taxes are reviewed at
each balance sheet date to take into
account any effect of changes in tax
law and in the prospects of recovery.
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Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary
differences, carry-forward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses, to
the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available.
To estimate properly the ability for a
subsidiary to recover the deferred tax
assets, the following items are taken
into account:
• Taxable results forecasts;
• Analysis of the past taxable results;
• Existence of significant and nonrecurrent income and expenses,
included in the past tax results, which
should not repeat in the future.
Deferred income tax liabilities are
recognized for all taxable temporary
differences, except particular circumstances that may justify the nonrecognition of this potential debt.
When a fiscal integration mechanism
is in place in a given country, the
deferred tax calculation takes into
account the individual tax situation of
each subsidiary located in that country
as well as the global situation of all
subsidiaries of that country.
Assets and liabilities are not discounted.
(n) Financial Result on Contracts
The financial result realized on treasury
related to construction contracts is
recorded together with the revenues.
Only financial result on treasury not
related to construction contracts is
separately disclosed in the consolidated
statement of income under the
“Financial Income” and “Financial
Expenses” line items.
(o) Income / (Loss) from
Discontinued Operations
In compliance with IFRS 5, the result
incurred by the discontinued operations
through sales or disposals is recorded
under this line item.
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(p) Net Earnings per Share
Net earnings per share are based on
the average number of outstanding
shares over the period, after deducting
the treasury shares.
The net diluted earnings per share
include the possible dilutive effects
that may be generated by equity
instruments (stock options) and
compound financial instruments
(convertible bonds OCEANE). Over the
year, the Group has not issued any
other financial instruments that might
create an additional dilution on net
earnings per share.
Net fully diluted earnings per share
always include effects of all equity
(stock options) and compound financial
instruments (OCEANE convertible
bonds).
(q) Treasury Shares
Treasury shares are booked as a
deduction to equity at their cost of
acquisition. Any gain or loss connected
with the sale of treasury shares are
recognized directly in equity without
affecting the income statement.
(r) Stock Options
In accordance with IFRS 2, stock
options correspond to services granted
to holders and represent an additional
benefit given by the Group. This supplementary benefit is recognized as
follows: the fair value of the granted
stock options – corresponding to the
services rendered by the employees
against the options received – is estimated at the grant date and recorded
under the equity line item.
The fair value of the stock options
is evaluated as per the Cox Ross
Rubinstein binomial model.That model
takes into account the features of the
stock option plan (net price, period of
exercise), the market data at the grant
date (risk-free rate, volatility, share
price) and behavioral assumptions on
stock options’ holders.

The IFRS 2 applies to share based
payment that were granted after
November 7, 2002 and not vested
before January 1, 2005.
(s) Financial Debts (Current and
Non-Current)
Current and non-current financial
debts include bond loans and other
borrowings.
Issuance fees and redemption premium
on convertible bonds are included in
the cost of debt on the liability side of
the balance sheet, as an adjustment
to the nominal amount of the debt.
The difference between the initial
debt and the redemption at maturity
is amortized at the effective interest
rate.
This line item comprises the debt
component of the OCEANE convertible
bond. This OCEANE offer is a compound financial instrument, which
breaks down into a separate debt
component and an equity component
representing the bondholder’s option
of conversion into a fixed number of
Technip shares. The conversion may
occur at maturity or at any moment,
if certain conditions, especially on
share price, are met. The debt component is measured at the amortized
cost (amortization of the difference
with the redemption amount at
maturity as per the effective interest
rate method).
As per IAS 32, the part accounted for
in equity corresponds to the difference
between the fair value of the debt
(without option of conversion) that
the Group would have initially issued
on the market, and the debt measured
at its price of issue (split accounting).
The initial value allocated to the
option of conversion does not change
during the loan lifetime, excepting in
case of early redemption.
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Note 2 – Changes in Scope of
Consolidation

Year Ended December 31, 2005
In 2005, no significant change in
scope of consolidation has occurred.
Only three entities entered the
consolidation scope, Technip South
Africa (subsidiary controlled at 51%),
Technip Marine Sdn. Bhd (subsidiary
controlled at 90%) and Technipetrol
Hellas (subsidiary controlled at 99%).
2005 has also been characterized by
the closure of pharmaceutical activities
in U.S.A. through the liquidation in
progress of Technip BioPharm at the
end of July 2005, the disposal of
Te c h n i p E n gi n e e ri n g B ru n e i o n
September 30, 2005 and the sale of
Technip Portugal to its management
at the end of December 2005, without
any significant impact on net income
from continuing operations.

2004 for € 2.0 million. The net
consolidated gain on IG Spa disposal
was of €0.7 million. As per each
disposal agreement, the companies
EHR and IG Spa have been considered
as sold as of January 1, 2004.
• The disposal of 75% of KTI Spa shares
to KTI employees in November 2004,
with a retrospective effect as of
January 1, 2004. No gain has been
generated by this transaction.
Following this part disposal, the
remaining 25% still under Company
control is consolidated using the
equity method for the year ended
December 31, 2004.
• As the Group transferred its unstrategic operations, it also sold assets
of Technip Offshore Moorings Inc.
Company at their book value, at the
end of the year 2004.

Note 3 – Segment Information

Over the year 2005, new legal entities
have been created to support
contracts in joint ventures: CTJV and
CTEP (Qatargas 2) in Qatar, CTJV and
CTEP (Rasgas 3) also in Qatar, Yemgas
FZCO in Yemen, Technip Consortium
(Dung Quat) in Vietnam, HT JV
(Koniambo) in New Caledonia and
TPVI (Hovensa) in the U.S. Virgin
Islands.
Year Ended December 31, 2004
The following events occurred in 2004:
• The disposals of EHR and IG Spa. The
German company, EHR, was sold on
April 7, 2004 for €12.2 million. The
net consolidated gain on EHR disposal was of €2.3 million. The Italian
company, IG Spa, was sold on April 3,

The primary segment-reporting format
of the Group Technip is determined to
be business segment. Secondary information is reported geographically.
(a) Information by Business Segment
Business Segments
In order to improve the follow-up of its
operating performances, the Group
organized the reporting of its operations into five segments:
• The SURF segment (Subsea Umbilicals,
Risers and Flowlines), which includes
the manufacturing, the supply and the
installation of sub-marine equipments.

• The Facilities segment, which includes
the fabrication of floaters, fixed platforms and topsides.
• The Onshore Downstream segment,
which comprises all business units in
charge of engineering and construction
of petrochemical and refining units as
well as upstream facilities, including
gas treatment units LNG facilities and
onshore pipelines.
• The Industries segment, which is
devoted to engineering and construction of non-oil related facilities, such
as pharmaceutical or chemical units,
power plants, cement factories, industrial buildings and infrastructures.
• The Corporate segment, which
comprises the Holding activities,
the reinvoicing of group services,
management fees, EDP services and
reinsurance activities.
The segment result disclosed by Technip
in its business segment information is
the “Income / (Loss) from Operations”.
Consequently, the segment result
does not include financial income and
expenses (except financial result on
contracts), income tax expense and
the share of income / (loss) of associates accounted for using the equity
method. Segment assets do not include asset items related to the latter,
such as income tax assets. Similarly,
segment liabilities do not include liability items that are not connected to
segment result, such as current and
deferred income tax liabilities.
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Year ended December 31, 2005 (In millions of Euro)
SURF Facilities

Revenues
Sales to External Customers
1,797.6
Total Revenues
1,797.6
Gross Margin
243.7
Income / (Loss) From Operations 118.8
Financial Income / (Expenses)
Share of Income / (Loss)
of Associates Accounted for
Using the Equity Method
Income Tax Expense
Discontinued Operations
Net Income / (Loss) for the Year
Assets and Liabilities
Segment Assets
3,427.5
Investments in Associates
Accounted for Using
the Equity Method
Unallocated Assets
Total Assets
Segment Liabilities (2)
936.0
Unallocated Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Other Segment Information
Backlog (3)
2,687.9
Capital Expenditure: (4)
Propertyi, Plant and Equipment 138.6
Intangible Assets
0.1
Depreciation of Property,
Plant and Equipment
101.7
Amortization of Intangible Assets
6.0
Impairment of Goodwill
Impairment of Intangible Assets
Reversals of Impairment Losses
Restructuring Costs
Non-Cash Expenses:
Amortization of Convertible Bond
Redemption Premium
Charge related to Convertible Bond
Split Accounting
Stock Option Charge
Non-Current Provisions
(including Employee Benefits)
6.2
Fair Value (Gains) / Losses on
Derivatives through Profit and Loss 4.8

1,013.4
1,013.4
91.3
27.1

Onshore Industries Corporate Not Allocable
Total Discontinued
(1)
Downstream
Continuing
Operations
Operations
2,318.2
2,318.2
195.1
88.3

246.9
246.9
28.0
6.0

(9.2)
(88.8)

1.3
(43.5)

1,112.2

2,091.3

216.2

158.4

-

9.7

-

281.7

239.9

404.2

1,914.3

1,708.8
2,093.8

5,376.1
5,376.1
558.1
231.0
(88.8)
1.3
(43.5)
100.0

-

(5.0)
(5.0)

Total

5,376.1
5,376.1
558.1
231.0
(88.8)
1.3
(43.5)
(5.0)
95.0

7,005.6

7,005.6

9.7
281.7
7,297.0
5,203.2
2,093.8
7,297.0

9.7
281.7
- 7,297.0
5,203.2
2,093.8
- 7,297.0

1,206.7

7,126.9

148.0

-

11,169.5

11,169.5

10.8
1.0

16.7
1.1

1.3
0.1

0.8

167.4
3.1

167.4
3.1

11.4
3.5
-

9.0
2.2
0.9

2.0
0.4
-

2.1
5.0
-

126.2
17.1
0.9

126.2
17.1
0.9

-

-

-

-

13.3

13.3

13.3

-

-

-

5.4

16.6

16.6
5.4

16.6
5.4

0.8

8.9

1.5

2.1

19.5

19.5

0.1

(1.7)

-

-

3.2

3.2

(1) Reinvoicing performed by the Corporate segment regarding group services provided to other segments are not presented in the section “Segment
Information”, as they are not related to the activity of Technip.
(2) The segment liabilities of the Corporate segment include financial debts such as convertible bonds OCEANE, bond loan and other borrowings. Financial
charges related to these debts are not allocated.
(3) The backlog is defined as the difference between the total contractual sale prices of all contracts in force and the cumulated revenues recognized at that
date on these contracts.
(4) Assets under construction are not included in capital expenditures on intangible and tangible assets.
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Year ended December 31, 2004 (In millions of Euro)
SURF Facilities

Revenues
Sales to External Customers
1,422.1
Total Revenues
1,422.1
Gross Margin
256.6
Income / (Loss) From Operations 146.5
Financial Income / (Expenses)
Share of Income / (Loss)
of Associates Accounted for
Using the Equity Method
Income Tax Expense
Discontinued Operations
Net Income / (Loss) for the Year
Assets and Liabilities
Segment Assets
3,448.1
Investments in Associates
Accounted for Using
the Equity Method
Unallocated Assets
Total Assets
Segment Liabilities (2)
882.9
Unallocated Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Other Segment Information
Backlog (3)
1,859.9
Capital Expenditure: (4)
Property, Plant and Equipment 108.4
Intangible Assets
Depreciation of Property,
Plant and Equipment
91.0
Amortization of Intangible Assets
6.0
Impairment of Goodwill
Impairment of Intangible Assets
Reversals of Impairment Losses
Restructuring Costs
Non-Cash Expenses:
Amortization of Convertible Bond
Redemption Premium
Charge related to Convertible Bond
Split Accounting
Stock Option Charge
Non-Current Provisions
(including Employee Benefits)
0.3
Fair Value (Gains) / Losses on
Derivatives through Profit and Loss -

1,066.6
1,066.6
81.4
17.5

Onshore Industries Corporate Not Allocable
Total Discontinued
(1)
Downstream
Continuing
Operations
Operations
2,384.1
2,384.1
204.2
92.1

268.1
268.1
20.4
(7.1)

0.5
(15.4)
(66.4)

1.2
(54.2)

927.7

1,581.2

182.5

155.1

-

19.9

-

103.1

513.1

1,347.8

165.9

1,492.5
2,015.4

5,140.9
5,140.9
563.1
233.6
(66.4)
1.2
(54.2)
114.2

-

-

Total

5,140.9
5,140.9
563.1
233.6
(66.4)
1.2
(54.2)
114.2

6,294.6

6,294.6

19.9
103.1
6,417.6
4,402.2
2,015.4
6,417.6

19.9
103.1
- 6,417.6
4,402.2
2,015.4
- 6,417.6

944.4

3,758.4

216.3

-

6,779.0

6,779.0

8.7
0.6

16.1
1.0

1.4
0.1

5.0

134.6
6.7

134.6
6.7

13.3
3.8
-

11.3
1.1
8.3

1.6
0.1
3.7

0.5
6.7
-

117.7
17.7
12.0
-

117.7
17.7
12.0

-

-

-

-

13.1

13.1

-

-

-

5.8

5.8

5.8

0.3

4.2

0.7

-

5.5

5.5

-

-

-

-

-

-

13.1

(1) Reinvoicing performed by the Corporate segment regarding group services provided to other segments are not presented in the section “Segment
Information”, as they are not related to the activity of Technip.
(2) The segment liabilities of the Corporate segment include financial debts such as convertible bonds OCEANE, bond loan and other borrowings. Financial
charges related to these debts are not allocated.
(3) The backlog is defined as the difference between the total contractual sale prices of all contracts in force and the cumulated revenues recognized at that
date on these contracts.
(4) Assets under construction are not included in capital expenditures on intangible and tangible assets.
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(b) Information by Geographical Segment
Geographical Segments
From a geographical standpoint, operating activities and performances of Technip are reported on the basis of five regions:
• Europe, Russia, Central Asia;
• Africa;
• Middle-East;
• Asia-Pacific;
• Americas.
The segment result disclosed by Technip in its geographical segment information is the “Income / (Loss) from Operations”.
Consequently, the segment result does not include financial income and expenses (except financial result on contracts),
income tax expense and the share of income / (loss) of associates accounted for using the equity method. Segment assets
do not include asset items related to the latter, such as income tax assets.
Considering the growing weight of the region “Africa and Middle-East” previously disclosed (essentially on account of newly
awarded contracts), the Group has decided to divide this segment in two: an Africa region and a Middle-East region.
Segment information for 2004 in relation to these two new regions has therefore been restated accordingly.

Year ended December 31, 2005 (In millions of Euro)
Europe, Russia,
Central Asia (1)
Revenues
Sales to External Customers
1,382.9
Less Sales Attributable
to Discontinued Operations
Revenues by Region
1,382.9
Income / (Loss)
from Operations
162.2
Assets
Segment Assets (2)
601.0
Investments in Associates
Accounted for Using
the Equity Method
1.4
Unallocated Assets (3)
Total Assets
602.4
Other Segment Information
Backlog (4)
961.3
Capital Expenditures: (5)
Property, Plant and Equipment
39.7
Intangible Assets
0.6

Africa

Middle-East

AsiaPacific

Americas

Not
Allocable

Total

1,258.4

1,108.1

583.4

1,044.5

5,377.3

1,258.4

1,108.1

583.4

(1.2)
1,043.3

(1.2)
5,376.1

(42.5)

50.5

27.2

33.6

231.0

168.5

493.1

210.5

582.3

2,864.2

4,919.6

-

8.3

-

-

168.5

501.4

210.5

582.3

2,367.7
5,231.9

9.7
2,367.7
7,297.0

2,007.9

5,099.4

1,014.2

2,086.7

49.6
-

6.0
0.4

4.2
0.1

12.7
0.6

11,169.5
55.2
167.4
1.4
3.1

(1) Of which revenues performed in France: €256.7 million.
(2) The segment “Not Allocable” corresponds to goodwill for €2,376.9 million and to vessels for €386.7 million that are meant to operate in different
geographical regions and therefore cannot be allocated to a specific segment.
(3) Unallocated assets mainly include cash and cash equivalents. Regarding the specificities of Technip business, cash is managed centrally.
(4) The backlog is defined as the difference between the total contractual sale prices of all contracts in force and the cumulated revenues recognized at that
date on these contracts.
(5) Assets under construction are not included in capital expenditures on intangible and tangible assets.
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Year ended December 31, 2004 (In millions of Euro)
Europe, Russia,
Central Asia (1)
Revenues
Sales to External Customers
1,278.9
Less Sales Attributable
to Discontinued Operations
Revenues by Region
1,278.9
Income / (Loss)
from Operations
84.5
Assets
Segment Assets (2)
647.8
Investments in Associates
Accounted for Using
the Equity Method
12.3
Unallocated Assets (3)
Total Assets
660.1
Other Segment Information
Backlog (4)
1,077.1
Capital Expenditures: (5)
Property, Plant and Equipment
26.7
Intangible Assets
1.0

Africa

Middle-East

AsiaPacific

Americas

Not
Allocable

Total

1,285.1

1,268.6

378.9

929.4

5,140.9

1,285.1

1,268.6

378.9

929.4

5,140.9

79.3

17.9

38.8

13.1

233.6

253.4

404.0

145.1

383.8

2,902.2

4,736.3

-

7.6

-

-

253.4

411.6

145.1

383.8

1,661.4
4,563.6

19.9
1,661.4
6,417.6

1,742.8

2,403.5

459.9

1,095.7

13.0
-

4.2
0.2

1.3
0.1

11.4
0.4

78.0
5.0

6,779.0
134.6
6.7

(1) Of which revenues performed in France: €159.0 million.
(2) The segment “Not Allocable” corresponds to goodwill for €2,394.9 million and to vessels for €408.5 million that are meant to operate in different
geographical regions and therefore cannot be allocated to a specific segment.
(3) Unallocated assets mainly include cash and cash equivalents. Regarding the particularities of Technip business, cash is managed centrally.
(4) The backlog is defined as the difference between the total contractual sale prices of all contracts in force and the cumulated revenues recognized at that
date on these contracts.
(5) Assets under construction are not included in capital expenditures on intangible and tangible assets.

(c) Major Customers
For the year ended December 31, 2005, one customer accounted for 11.6% if the Group revenues. Other customers individually represent less than 10% of the Group revenues in 2005.
For the year 2004, no single customer accounts for more than 10% of the Group revenues.
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Note 4 – Income / (Loss) from Operations

The breakdown of the different items of “Income / (Loss) from Operations” per nature can be analyzed as follows:
(a) Financial Result on Contracts in Progress
As described in Note 1 C.(n) Financial Result on Contracts, financial income and expenses arising from ongoing turnkey
contracts are included in revenues for €31.4 million as of December 31, 2005 and €9.9 million as of December 31, 2004.
This increase results from significant contracts recently awarded to the Group.
(b) Expenses by Nature within Cost of Sales and in Administrative Expenses
The cost of sales by nature of expenses breaks down as follows:
(In millions of Euro)

Cost of Sales by Nature
Total
Including Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment
Including Amortization of Licenses, Patents and Trademarks
Including Amortization of Other Intangible Assets
Including Employee Benefit Expenses

2005

2004

(4,818.0)
(108.2)
(4.7)
(2.6)
(666.4)

(4,577.8)
(92.8)
(2.7)
(2.6)
(629.2)

2005

2004

(224.2)
(11.2)
(81.7)
(5.4)

(189.3)
(13.8)
(76.1)
(5.8)

Administrative costs by nature can be analyzed as follows:
(In millions of Euro)

Administrative Costs by Nature
Total
Including Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment
Including Employee Benefit Expenses
Including Stock Option Charge (1)

(1) The stock option charge amounted to €5.8 million in 2004 and was classified as other operating expense. In order to be compliant with the 2005
accounts, the Group has restated this amount in 2004 in administrative costs.

(c) Other Operating Income
(In millions of Euro)

Other Operating Income
Proceeds from Sales of Assets
Reinsurance Income
Others

2005

2004

22.0
6.4
4.2
32.6

22.9
3.1
26.0

2005

2004

(9.6)
(0.9)
(5.8)
(5.8)
(22.1)

(15.2)
(12.0)
(0.3)
(0.7)
(8.7)
(36.9)

(d) Other Operating Expenses
(In millions of Euro)

Other Operating Expenses
Net Book Value of Disposed Assets
Restructuring Costs (1)
Reinsurance Costs
Fair Value Losses
Others
(1) Corresponds in 2004 to the restructuring costs of a German subsidiary.
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(e) Employee Benefit Expenses
(In millions of Euro)

Employee Benefit Expenses
Wages and Salaries
Social Security Costs
Pension Costs - Defined Contribution Plans
Pension Costs - Defined Benefit Plans
Others
Employee Benefit Expenses excluding Stock Options
Stock Options Granted to Directors and Employees
Employee Benefit Expenses

2005

2004

810.3
167.4
6.5
14.1
19.6
1,017.9
5.4
1,023.3

733.8
145.0
5.5
18.5
17.4
920.2
5.8
926.0

(f) Research and Development Expenses
Research and development expenses amounted to €29.4 million and €30.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2005
and 2004 respectively. As the projects did not meet the requirements for capitalization, no development costs were
capitalized during the period.

Note 5 – Financial Income and Expenses

The financial result is a charge of (€88.8) million as of December 31, 2005, to be compared with (€66.4) million as of
December 31, 2004. The breakdown is as follows:
(a) Financial Income
(In millions of Euro)

Financial Income
Interest Income from Treasury Management (1)
Dividends from Non-Consolidated Investments
Financial Income related to Employee Benefits
Changes in Derivative Fair Value (excluding Hedging) (2)
Others

2005

2004

14.3
3.8
1.9
20.0

9.4
0.5
3.5
0.9
14.3

(1) Mainly resulting from gains on disposals of marketable securities for €12.8 million in 2005 and €9.2 million in 2004.
(2) Arising from the application of IAS 32 and IAS 39 as of January 1, 2005, related to foreign exchange hedging financial instruments used by the Group.

(b) Financial Expenses
(In millions of Euro)

Financial Expenses
Convertible Bonds : Financial Charges (1)
Convertible Bonds : Loss on Buy Out
Bond Interest Expense (2)
Fees Related to Credit Facilities
Financial Expenses related to Employee Benefits
Interest Expenses on Bank Borrowings and Overdrafts
Net Foreign Currency Translation Losses
Inefficient Part of Hedging Instruments
Others

2005

2004

(38.0)
(1.6)
(30.1)
(1.4)
(9.2)
(12.4)
(9.5)
(1.2)
(5.4)
(108.8)

(21.4)
(4.9)
(18.4)
(3.8)
(8.4)
(9.4)
(6.5)
(7.9)
(80.7)

(1) Financial charges on convertible bonds OCEANE include €16.6 million of additional non-cash charges related to IAS 32 and IAS 39 as of January 1, 2005.
(2) The interest expenses on bond loan issued in May 2004 increased from €18.4 million in 2004 to €30.1 million in 2005, year-end for which interests are
due for one full year.
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Note 6 – Income Tax

(a) Income Tax Expense
The income tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2005 comprises the current income tax expense of (€31.0)
million and the deferred income tax of (€12.5) million (respectively (€22.3) million and (€31.2) million in 2004). The
amount of income tax expense related to items directly booked to equity was €24.0 million.
(In millions of Euro)

Consolidated Income Statement
Current Income Tax
Income Tax Expense
Deferred Income Tax
Tax on Net Gains related to Investment Disposals
Income Tax Expense as reported in the Consolidated Income Statement
Consolidated Statement of Change in Equity
Deferred Income Tax related to Items Booked Directly to Opening Equity
Deferred Income Tax related to Items Booked to Equity during the Year
Other Equity Operations
Income Tax Expense as reported in the Consolidated Equity
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2005

2004

(31.0)
(12.5)
(43.5)
(43.5)

(22.3)
(31.2)
(53.5)
(0.7)
(54.2)

(11.9)
35.9
24.0

-

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(b) Income Tax Reconciliation
The reconciliation between the tax calculated using the standard tax rate applicable in France and the amount of tax
effectively recognized in the accounts for year-ends 2004 and 2005 can be detailed as follows:
(In millions of Euro)

Income Tax Reconciliation
Net Income from Continuing Operations
Income / (Loss) from Discontinued Operations
Income Tax Expense on Continuing Operations
Income before Tax
Adjustments on Income before Tax
Share of Income / (Loss) of Associates Accounted for Using the Equity Method
Stock Option Charge
Charge related to Convertible Bond Split Accounting
Adjusted Income before Tax
At Parent Company Statutory Income Tax Rate of 34.93% (2004: 35.43%)
Territoriality and Local Taxes
Other Non-Deductible Expenses
Allowance / Reversals of Taxes and Tax Losses
Dividends not Taxable in Parent Company
Share of General Fees on Dividends
Seamec (Tonnage Scheme)
Difference between Parent Company and Foreign Income Tax Rates
Tax Savings / (Expenses) due to Tax Integration
Convertible Bond Redemption Premium
Others
At the Effective Income Tax Rate of 31.41% (2004: 32.19%)
Income Tax Expense as reported in the Consolidated Income Statement

2005

2004

100.0
(5.0)
43.5
138.5

114.2
54.2
168.4

(1.3)
5.6
16.3
159.1
(55.6)
(2.3)
(3.0)
9.3
(1.5)
(1.1)
1.1
5.1
2.4
(4.7)
6.8
(43.5)
(43.5)

(1.2)
5.8
173.0
(61.3)
1.1
(1.4)
6.9
(2.7)
(2.0)
0.5
1.1
1.1
2.5
(54.2)
(54.2)
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(c) Deferred Income Tax
Principles described in Note 1 C.(m) Deferred Income Tax result in the following:
(In millions of Euro)

Deferred Income Tax
Deferred Income Tax Assets
Employee Benefits
Fair Value Adjustments on Financial Instruments
Deferred Gains and Losses on Foreign Exchange Contracts
Differences between Taxable and Accounting Depreciation
Margin Recognition on Construction Contracts
Capital Leases
Tax Paid in Y and Deductible in Y-1
Changes in Tax Rates
Tax Loss Carry-Forwards
Convertible Bond Redemption Premium
Others
Depreciation / Impairment of Deferred Tax Assets
Deferred Income Tax Liabilities
Fair Value Adjustments on Financial Instruments
Deferred Gains and Losses on Foreign Exchange Contracts
Differences between Taxable and Accounting Depreciation (1)
Margin Recognition on Construction Contracts
Capital Leases
Tax Accruals
Capitalized Acquisition Costs of Tangible and Intangible Assets
Differences from Changes in Functional Currency
Fair Value Adjustments on Acquisitions
Others
Net Deferred Income Tax Assets / (Liabilities)

Consolidated
Balance Sheet
2005

2004

22.2
26.1
1.5
50.3
25.1
8.1
15.4
0.4
59.7
15.8
29.5
254.1
(73.1)
181.0

27.9
2.5
44.9
25.7
7.8
14.3
37.9
15.8
54.5
231.3
(65.5)
165.8

2.1
0.9
117.7
37.4
1.4
4.1
0.2
3.3
25.9
(1.6)
191.4
(10.4)

2.0
103.7
42.9
1.6
2.2
3.7
32.6
(1.0)
187.7
(21.9)

(1) Differences between taxable and accounting depreciation arise from vessel depreciation and particularly from the Deep Blue.

In order to disclose the detail of deferred tax assets and liabilities per nature of temporary differences, the offsetting of
deferred tax assets and liabilities was reversed. Thus, the net deferred tax liability as of December 31, 2005 breaks down in
a deferred tax asset of €90.0 million and a deferred tax liability of €100.4 million, as recorded in the balance sheet.
Similarly, in 2004, the net deferred tax liability breaks down in a deferred tax asset of €105.2 million and a deferred tax
liability of €127.1 million, as recorded in the balance sheet.
The changes in deferred tax in the balance sheet (up by €11.5 million) break down in (€12.5) million recorded in the 2005
income statement and €24.0 million recorded in equity (essentially in relation with the fair value revaluation of financial
instruments).
(d) Tax Loss Carry-Forwards and Tax Credits
Tax loss carry-forwards not yet utilized amount to €232.6 million. They mainly come from Technip Seiffert for €25.5 million,
Technip Germany for €18.3 million, Technip Engenharia for €44.4 million and American subsidiaries belonging to the SURF
and Facilities segments for €130.9 million. Consequently, a total amount of €74.4 million of deferred income tax related to
these tax loss carry-forwards has not been recorded. Most of these tax loss carry-forwards will expire after 2009.
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Note 7 – Income / (Loss) from Discontinued Operations

(a) Discontinued Operations
(In millions of Euro)

Gains / (Losses) on Consolidated Investment Disposals
Income / (Loss) from Discontinued Operations

2005
(5.0)
(5.0)

2004
-

As per IAS 1, has been disclosed under this category the result from operations sold or closed during the year.
As of December 31, 2005, the loss of (€5.0) million accounted for the discontinued operations stems from the decision of
closing the company Technip BioPharm, subsidiary of the Group located in the U.S.A.
The breakdown of income / (loss) from discontinued operations can be analyzed as follows:
Revenues
Cost of Sales
Gross Margin
Other Operating Income and Expenses
Income / (Loss) from Operations
Financial Income
Financial Expenses
Result Recognized on the Re-Measurement to Fair Value
Result before Tax from Discontinued Operations
Income Tax Expense:
related to Income / (Loss) before Tax
related to Re-Measurement to Fair Value
Income / (loss) from Discontinued Operations

2005
1.2
(5.3)
(4.1)
(0.9)
(5.0)
(5.0)
(5.0)

2004
-

(In Euro)

2005

2004

(0.05)
(0.05)
(0.04)

-

(In millions of Euro)

Net Earnings per Share
Basic, for Discontinued Operations
Net Diluted, for Discontinued Operations
Net Fully Diluted, for Discontinued Operations
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(b) Assets Held for Sale
Assets held for sale amount to €42.9 million at year-end 2005. They relate to the assets of the consolidated affiliate Gulf
Marine Fabricators, offshore fabrication yard located in Corpus Christi, U.S.A. and belonging to the Facilities segment. The
goodwill allocated to the assets of this subsidiary classified as held for sale is €18.3 million.
(In millions of Euro)

Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Intangible Assets
Other Debtors
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Assets of Disposal Group Classified as Held for Sale
Liabilities
Creditors
Interest-Bearing Liabilities
Liabilities Directly Associated with the Assets Classified as Held for Sale
Net Assets of Disposal Group Classified as Held for Sale
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2005

2004

24.0
18.3
0.6
42.9

-

42.9

-
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Note 8 – Net Diluted Earnings per Share

Net diluted earnings per share were computed in accordance with Note 1 C.(p) Net Earnings per Share. The following
tables reflect the reconciliation between the net earnings per share before dilution and the net diluted earnings per share:

Net Income Attributable to Shareholders of the Parent Company
Convertible Bonds: Split Accounting
Convertible Bonds: Redemption Premium after Tax
Convertible Bonds: Financial Costs net of Tax
Net Income before Convertible Bond Financial Costs

2005
93.3
16.6
13.3
5.3
128.5

2004
111.8
7.4
6.5
125.7

(In thousands)

2005

2004

98,874
3,650
14,406
(1,581)
115,349
97,218
95,687

96,443
5,587
14,876
(1,361)
115,545
110,844
94,454

2005
1.11
0.96
0.98

2004
1.09
1.13
1.18

(In millions of Euro)

Number of Shares:
- Issued Shares at period end
- Stock Options not Exercised at period end
- Convertible Bonds
- Treasury Shares
Denominator for Calculation of Net Fully Diluted Earnings per Share at period end
Denominator for Calculation of Net Diluted Earnings per Share at period end
Denominator for Calculation of Net Earnings per Share
(In Euro)

Net Fully Diluted Earnings per Share (1)
Net Diluted Earnings per Share (2)
Net Earnings per Share (3)

(1) The net fully diluted earnings per share systematically comprise the impact of all equity instruments and compound financial instruments. The number of
shares on a fully diluted basis includes the shares that would result from the convertible bond conversion to newly issued shares and from the exercise of
stock options, but excludes the treasury shares. The number of shares on a fully diluted basis for 2004 has been adjusted to take into account the 4-for-1
share split which occurred on May 13, 2005.
(2) The net diluted earnings per share take into account the possible dilutive effects that may be generated by equity instruments (stock options) and
compound financial instruments (convertible bonds OCEANE). During the period, the Group has not issued other financial instrument that may have any
diluted effect on the net earnings per share.
(3) The net earnings per share are calculated based on the average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period, less the treasury shares.

For comparison purposes, the 2004 data per share above-mentioned have been adjusted to take into account the 4-for-1
share split decided by the Combined Shareholders’ Meeting of April 29, 2005. They do not comprise the impact of IAS 32
and IAS 39 whose first-time application was initiated on January 1, 2005.
On March 9 and 23, 2006, Technip carried out the conversion of 289,362 and of 3,288,420 convertible bonds OCEANE to
shares. These 3,577,782 bonds were redeemed for 14,311,128 shares, of which 11,592,066 newly issued shares. See Note
34 – Subsequent Event.
Net income, net diluted earnings per share and net fully diluted earnings per share for discontinued operations are disclosed
in Note 7 – Income / (Loss) from Discontinued Operations.
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Note 9 – Dividends Paid and Proposed

Dividends paid regarding years 2004 and 2003 respectively amounted to €79.5 million and €79.4 million (€0.825 per
share after the 4-for-1 share split for both periods). A €0.92 dividend per share concerning year ended December 31, 2005
– which represents a total payment of €90.9 million – will be proposed to shareholders for approval at the Shareholders’
Meeting of April 19, 2006. Considering that this payment has not been decided yet, nothing has been recorded in the accounts.

Note 10 – Compensation of the Members of the Board of Directors

The amount of directors’ fees paid by Technip to the members of the Board of Directors during 2005 was of €238,700. The
gross amount of compensation and benefits of all kinds paid by Technip to the members of the Board of Directors during
2005 was of €1,076,660.

Note 11 – Property, Plant and Equipment

In accordance with IAS 36, the carrying value of property, plant and equipment is reviewed for impairment whenever events
or internal elements indicate that an asset may be impaired. Over the year 2005, no meaningful event occurred which
might have justified an impairment loss to be recorded in Technip consolidated accounts.
No directly attributable costs have been capitalized and included under the “Property, Plant and Equipment” line item.
The following tables illustrate the cost, the accumulated amortization and depreciation per type of tangible assets:
Land Buildings Vessels Machinery
and
Equipment

(In millions of Euro)

30

Office
Assets
Fixtures
under
and Construction
Furniture

Others

Total

As of January 1, 2004
Cost
14.0
Accumulated Amortization
Accumulated Impairment Losses
Net Book Value
14.0

156.4
639.5
(72.7) (238.6)
83.7 400.9

438.3
(276.0)
162.3

109.8
(78.2)
31.6

29.4
29.4

45.8 1,433.2
(26.9) (692.4)
18.9 740.8

As of December 31, 2004
Cost
14.0
Accumulated Amortization
(1.0)
Accumulated Impairment Losses
Net Book Value
13.0

136.3
695.1
(65.2) (286.6)
71.1 408.5

432.4
(263.0)
169.4

104.2
(81.8)
22.4

15.6
15.6

73.6 1,471.2
(37.1) (734.7)
36.5 736.5

As of December 31, 2005
Cost
10.6
Accumulated Amortization
(1.1)
Accumulated Impairment Losses
Net Book Value
9.5

118.7
715.3
(57.8) (328.6)
60.9 386.7

530.0
(295.6)
234.4

122.9
(93.9)
29.0

15.3
15.3

79.6 1,592.4
(44.1) (821.1)
35.5 771.3
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Changes in net property, plant and equipment during the previous two periods can be analyzed as follows:(In millions of Euro)
(In millions of Euro)

Land Buildings Vessels Machinery
and
Equipment

Value as of January 1,
2004, Net of Accumulated
Amortization
and Impairment
14.0
Additions - Acquisitions
- Internal Developments
Additions - Business Combinations Disposals
Disposals of Subsidiaries
Depreciation Expense for the Year
Impairment Losses
Net Foreign Exchange
Differences
(0.4)
Others
(0.6)
Value as of December 31,
2004, Net of Accumulated
Amortization
and Impairment
13.0
Additions - Acquisitions
- Internal Developments
Additions - Business Combinations Disposals
Disposals of Subsidiaries
(0.1)
Depreciation Expense
for the Year
Impairment Losses
Net Foreign Exchange
Differences
1.2
Attributable to Discontinued
Operations / Assets Held
for Sale
(4.7)
Others
0.1
Value as of December 31,
2005, Net of Accumulated
Amortization
and Impairment
9.5

Office
Assets
Fixtures
under
and Construction
Furniture

Others

Total

740.8

83.7

400.9

162.3

31.6

29.4

18.9

3.1
(0.7)
(9.9)
-

62.0
(0.4)
(51.1)
-

33.5
(7.9)
(32.7)
-

8.4
(0.5)
(17.7)
-

12.0
-

(0.4)
118.6
(1.0) (10.5)
(6.3) (117.7)
-

(1.5)
(3.6)

(4.5)
1.6

(1.8)
16.0

(0.7)
1.3

(1.0)
(24.8)

(0.9)
26.2

(10.8)
16.1

71.1

408.5

169.4

22.4

15.6

36.5

736.5

3.2
(0.3)
(0.3)

31.7
(14.6)
-

88.4
0.1
(0.1)
(0.1)

20.7
0.2
(0.6)
(0.2)

11.7
-

11.3
0.1
3.7
-

167.0
0.4
(11.9)
(0.7)

(6.2)
-

(45.7)
-

(45.6)
-

(17.0)
-

-

3.6

12.0

13.3

1.5

1.8

1.9

35.3

(10.1)
(0.1)

(5.2)

(7.3)
16.3

2.0

(13.8)

(0.2)
(6.1)

(22.3)
(6.8)

60.9

386.7

234.4

29.0

15.3

35.5

771.3
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(11.7) (126.2)
-

Assets are not subjected to capital lease.
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Note 12 – Intangible Assets

The following tables illustrate the cost, the accumulated amortization and depreciation per type of intangible assets:
(In millions of Euro)

As of January 1, 2004
Cost
Accumulated Amortization
Accumulated Impairment Losses
Net Book Value
As of December 31, 2004
Cost
Accumulated Amortization
Accumulated Impairment Losses
Net Book Value
As of December 31, 2005
Cost
Accumulated Amortization
Accumulated Impairment Losses
Net Book Value
(1) Including assets under construction.
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Goodwill

Licenses /
Patents /
Trademarks

Software

Others(1)

Total

2,400.1
2,400.1

93.1
(21.5)
71.6

26.2
(11.6)
14.6

12.5
(11.1)
1.4

2,531.9
(44.2)
2,487.7

2,394.9
2,394.9

92.6
(31.0)
61.6

48.6
(33.7)
14.9

11.4
(10.1)
1.3

2,547.5
(74.8)
2,472.7

2,376.9
2,376.9

95.0
(38.6)
56.4

51.9
(42.1)
9.8

18.1
(9.3)
8.8

2,541.9
(90.0)
2,451.9
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(a) Intangible Assets
Changes in net intangible assets during the previous two periods can be analyzed as follows:
(In millions of Euro)

Goodwill

Value as of January 1, 2004,
Net of Accumulated
Amortization and Impairment
2,400.1
Additions - Acquisitions - Internal Developments
Additions - Business Combinations
Disposals
Disposals of Subsidiaries
Attributable to Discontinued Operations /
Assets Held for Sale
Amortization Charge for the Year
Impairment Losses
Net Foreign Exchange Differences
Others (1)
(5.2)
Value as of December 31,
2004, Net of Accumulated
Amortization and Impairment
2,394.9
Additions - Acquisitions - Internal Developments
Additions - Business Combinations
Disposals
Disposals of Subsidiaries
Attributable to Discontinued Operations /
Assets Held for Sale
(18.3)
Amortization Charge for the Year
Impairment Losses
Net Foreign Exchange Differences
0.3
Others (2)
Value as of December 31,
2005, Net of Accumulated
Amortization and Impairment
2,376.9

Licenses /
Patents /
Trademarks

Software

Others(3)

Total

71.6
-

14.6
7.0
-

1.4
0.3
-

2,487.7
7.3
-

(8.3)
(1.7)
-

(9.1)
(0.1)
2.5

(0.3)
0.2
(0.3)

(17.7)
(1.6)
(3.0)

61.6
-

14.9
2.5
-

1.3
0.6
-

2,472.7
3.1
-

(8.3)
3.1
-

(7.9)
0.3
-

(0.9)
(0.3)
8.1

(18.3)
(17.1)
3.4
8.1

56.4

9.8

8.8

2,451.9

(1) The amount mentioned on the line “Others” of goodwill corresponds to the adjustment on the Coflexip merger surplus on December 31, 2004.
(2) The Group is currently in the process of setting up an integrated software. As of December 31, 2005, remaining related costs have been capitalized as
assets under construction for €7.0 million in the column “Others”.
(3) Including assets under construction.
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(b) Goodwill
The classification of the assets regarding the consolidated affiliate Gulf Marine Fabricators as held for sale, including the
goodwill allocated to the Facilities segment, resulted in a decrease in goodwill by €18.3 million in terms of net value, namely
a €21.0 million gross value less a €2.7 million amortization (see Note 7 – Income / (Loss) from Discontinued Operations).
The goodwill arising from an acquisition is the difference between the purchase price and the share of restated equity, after
allocation to the identifiable assets and liabilities, as long as this procedure is deemed to be appropriate. This goodwill is subject
to impairment tests performed on annual basis or whenever a meaningful event occurs (see Note 1 C. (f) Intangible Assets).
The following table reflects the detail of goodwill as of December 31, 2005 and 2004:
(In millions of Euro)

Goowill - Net Value
SURF (1)
Facilities (1)
KTI/MDEU
Others
Total Goodwill - Net Value

2005

2004

1,948.1
304.6
115.6
8.6
2,376.9

1,948.1
322.9
115.6
8.3
2,394.9

(1) The goodwill relative to Coflexip resulting from both installments has been assigned – after allocation to identifiable items – to two business segments:
SURF and Facilities (see Note 3 – Segment Information).

Both goodwills were subject to impairment tests according to the method described in Note 1 C. (f) Intangible Assets.
Impairment tests performed by the Group are based on the most likely hypotheses using the discounted cash flow method.
Assumptions made in 2005 rely on the business plans covering years 2006 to 2008 for each business segment and approved
by the Board of Directors. Beyond 2008, the growth rate taken into account is 3.0%, of which 1.5% is related to inflation.
The discount rate of cash flows is 8.84% before tax. The tax rate used in the model is 33.1% in 2006, 32% in 2007 and
31% beyond.
As of December 31, 2005, the net book value of goodwill was confirmed by the impairment tests performed. No impairment
loss was recorded in 2004.
In 2005, the disposal of the subsidiary Technip Portugal whose goodwill was fully amortized, generated a decrease in the
gross value of goodwill and its corresponding amortization for €3.1 million. Following the change in consolidation method used
for the affiliate TPL (see Note 13 – Investments in Associates Accounted for Using the Equity Method) and the
reintegration of its goodwill, the gross value of goodwill increased by €1.0 million, as well as its corresponding amortization.

Note 13 – Investments in Associates Accounted for using the Equity Method

As of December 31, 2005, investments in associates accounted for using the equity method relate to two entities on which the
Group exercises significant influence: Nargan and Technip KTI Spa.As of December 31, 2004, two new companies previously fully
consolidated were accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated accounts of the Group: the Italian entities Technip
KTI Spa of which 75% of shares have been sold to employees at the end of November 2004 and TPL, company whose liquidation
is in progress.
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The main financial data of these companies accounted for using the equity method are disclosed hereafter for year ended
December 31, 2005 and 2004 on a 100% basis:
(In millions of Euro)

As of December 31, 2005
Country
Percentage of Interest
Financial Data at 100% in millions of Euro
Total Assets
Total Liabilities (except Equity)
Net Assets
Revenues
Net Income
Carrying Amount of the Investment
(In millions of Euro)

As of December 31, 2004
Country
Percentage of Interest
Financial Data at 100% in millions of Euro
Total Assets
Total Liabilities (except Equity)
Net Assets
Revenues
Net Income / (Loss)
Carrying Amount of the Investment

Nargan

TP KTI Spa

Iran
20%

Italy
25%

75.7
64.6
11.1
65.4
7.2
8.3

300.7
297.4
3.3
63.8
2.3
1.4

Nargan

TP KTI Spa

TPL (1)

Iran
20%

Italy
25%

Italy
100%

68.8
59.9
8.9
30.0
3.7
7.6

280.7
277.3
3.4
72.6
1.7
1.6

11.7
1.1
10.6
0.4
(0.3)
10.7

Total

9.7
Total

19.9

Changes in investments in associates accounted for using the equity method can be analyzed as follows:
(In millions of Euro)

Carrying Amount of Investments as of January 1
Additions (1)
Disposals (1)
Share of Income / (Loss) of Associates Accounted for Using the Equity Method
Paid Dividends
Foreign Exchange Differences
Net Gains / (Losses) from Fair Value Adjustments
Other Reclassifications
Carrying Amount of Investments as of December 31

2005
19.9
(10.7)
1.3
(0.7)
0.3
(0.4)
9.7

2004
6.5
13.5
(1.1)
1.2
(0.2)
19.9

(1) Additions in 2004 and disposals in 2005 are mainly connected with TPL. In 2004, TPL was accounted for using the equity method owing to the liquidation
in progress of this affiliate. As the estimation of the time needed to an effective liquidation was underestimated in 2004, Technip had to reassess the
accounting processing of this entity and to account for it under full consolidation in 2005.
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Note 14 – Other Financial Assets (Non-Current)

As per Note 1 C. (g) Other Financial Assets (Non-Current), other financial assets are posted at their fair value or at their
historical cost if there is no way to evaluate them reliably. In this later case, depreciation is recorded if its recoverable
amount is lower than its historical cost.
As of December 31, 2005, impairment tests performed on net book value of other financial assets (non-current) has not
led the Group to account for an impairment loss. The analysis of this item by nature is presented hereafter:
In millions of Euro

Non-Consolidated Investments
Valuation Allowance
Net Value
Loans related to Investments
Valuation Allowance
Net Value
Security Deposits
Others
Total Other Financial Assets (Non-Current), Net

Fair Value Valuation
2005
2004
4.8
4.3
(1.3)
(2.4)
3.5
1.9
3.0
2.1
(2.8)
(1.6)
0.2
0.5
6.6
0.7
1.3
0.3
11.6
3.4

Cost Valuation
2005
2004
4.8
4.3
(1.3)
(2.4)
3.5
1.9
3.0
2.1
(2.8)
(1.6)
0.2
0.5
6.6
0.7
1.3
0.3
11.6
3.4

Note 15 – Available-for-Sale Financial Assets

For the years 2005 and 2004, no available-for-sale financial asset has been recorded in the Group accounts.

Note 16 – Inventories

In accordance with Note 1 C. (h) Inventories, inventories are recognized at lower of cost and net realizable value. As of
December 31, 2005 and 2004, inventories were subject to an impairment test that has not led the Group to record any impairment loss.
The net book value of inventories as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 breaks down as follows:
(In millions of Euro)

Raw Materials
Work in Progress
Finished Goods and Merchandise
Valuation Allowance
Total Inventories, Net
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2005
58.4
25.2
25.3
(7.9)
101.0

2004
37.1
46.1
13.6
(9.6)
87.2
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Note 17 – Construction Contracts

Long-term ongoing construction contracts are valued and disclosed as per Note 1 C. (b) Construction Contracts.
(In millions of Euro)

Construction Contracts - Amounts Due from Clients
Construction Contracts - Amounts Due to Clients
Advances Received
Total Construction Contracts, Net
Costs and Margins Recognized at the Percentage of Completion
Progress Billings
Losses at Completion
Bid Costs
Total Construction Contracts, Net

2005
585.0
(35.5)
(1,636.9)
(1,087.4)
10,275.8
(11,331.2)
(35.5)
3.5
(1,087.4)

2004
400.6
(33.1)
(915.6)
(548.1)
6,196.6
(6,711.9)
(33.1)
0.3
(548.1)

Note 18 – Trade Receivables

Given the specific nature of Group operations, clients are mainly major oil and gas, petrochemical or oil-related companies.
Following the application of IFRS since January 1, 2004, receivables relating to call up capital have been offset with advances
received. From now on, this line item only represents receivables from completed contracts and miscellaneous invoices
(trade, services, others).
Each customer’s financial situation is periodically reviewed. Provisions for doubtful receivables, which are deemed to be
sufficient at the Group scale, are recorded for all potential uncollectible receivables.
(In millions of Euro)

Receivables on Contracts
Doubtful Accounts
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
Total Trade Receivables, Net

2005
437.1
19.3
(16.4)
440.0

2004
345.2
24.5
(20.7)
349.0

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing. Their maturity are linked to the operating cycle of contracts. Trade receivables
comprise €12.9 million of guarantees as of December 31, 2005.
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Note 19 – Other Current Receivables
(In millions of Euro)

Value Added Tax Receivable
Other Tax Receivables
Advances to Non-Consolidated Subsidiaries
Receivables from Personnel
Dividends to Be Received
Prepaid Expenses
Insurance Indemnities to Be Received
Joint Venture Associates' Current Accounts
Stock Option Exercise
Receivables on Assets
Others
Total Other Receivables, Net

2005
52.0
42.9
13.6
3.0
1.2
67.6
0.1
7.9
33.4
1.1
60.8
283.6

2004
42.2
64.0
10.5
1.7
11.0
81.2
0.1
31.4
219.2
461.3

2005

2004

1,566.3
621.5
2,187.8

694.6
739.4
1,434.0

1,053.8
808.4
77.7
17.4
104.0
126.5
2,187.8

793.0
431.7
87.0
19.1
5.4
97.8
1,434.0

Other current receivables are non-interest bearing.

Note 20 – Cash and Cash Equivalents
(In millions of Euro)

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash at Bank and in Hands
Cash Equivalents - Marketable Securities
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents
Detailed Analysis of Cash and Cash Equivalents by Currency
Euro
U.S. Dollar
Pound Sterling
Norwegian Crown
Japanese Yen
Others
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents
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(In millions of Euro)

Cash Equivalents - Marketable Securities
Historical Cost
Valuation Allowance
Marketable Securities' Market Value at Year-end
Detailed Analysis of Marketable Securities
Mutual Funds
Certificates of Deposits
Fixed Term Deposits
Treasury Shares
Others
Total Marketable Securities

2005

2004

621.5
621.5

739.4
739.4

471.2
50.4
86.0
13.9
621.5

501.8
103.4
67.3
66.9
739.4

A large part of cash and marketable securities are booked or invested in Euros or U.S. Dollar. The Group frequently uses these
currencies within the framework of its commercial relations. Cash and cash equivalents in other currencies correspond to
deposits retained by subsidiaries located in countries where such currencies are the national currency in order to ensure
their liquidity or to amounts received from customers prior to the payment of expenses in these same currencies, or the
payment of dividends.

Note 21 – Shareholders’ Equity

(a) Parent Company’s Common Stock Breakdown and Changes
As of December 31, 2005, Technip common stock consisted of 98,874,172 outstanding authorized shares with a par value
of €0.7625. The changes since December 31, 2003 can be analyzed as follows:
Number of Shares
Outstanding

(In millions of Euro)

Common Stock

23,738,331
331,780
40,543
24,110,654
72,331,962
2,465,664
(34,108)
98,874,172

72.4
1.0
0.1
73.5
1.9
75.4

Common Stock:
Nominal Value of €3.05 until May 13, 2005, then €0.7625

Common Stock as of December 31, 2003
Employee Subscription (1)
Stock Option Exercised (2)
Common Stock as of December 31, 2004
Share Split 4-for-1 (3)
Stock Option Exercised (2)
Cancellation of Treasury Shares
Common Stock as of December 31, 2005

(1) Employee subscription: the shareholders authorized the terms of such capital increase at the Shareholders’ Meeting of July 11, 2003.
(2) These increases result from the exercise of stock options granted to employees as described in Note 21 (g) Executive Stock Option Plans.
(3) On May 13, 2005, Technip’s ordinary shares were split 4-for-1 on the decision of the Combined Shareholders’ Meeting of April 29, 2005.
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(b) Technip Shareholders as of December 31
Oppenheimer Funds Inc
IFP
Lehman Brothers International
Employees
Treasury shares (1)
Others
Total

2005
5.9%
3.2%
4.7%
2.0%
1.6%
82.6%
100.0%

2004
6.0%
3.2%
2.4%
1.4%
87.0%
100.0%

(1) Including 1,580,548 treasury shares as of December 31, 2005.

(c) Treasury Shares
The total value of treasury shares shown as a deduction from equity amounts to €52.4 million as of December 31, 2005,
representing 1,580,548 shares, and €32.4 million as of December 31, 2004.
In 2005, 253,688 additional shares have been allocated to covering share purchase options. For the same period, 34,108 shares
have been cancelled by a reduction of the share capital for €0.8 million.

Treasury Shares
Treasury Shares as of December 31, 2003
Increase
Decrease due to Stock Options Exercised
Treasury Shares as of December 31, 2004
Increase due to Share Split 4-for-1 (1)
Cancellation of Treasury Shares
Increase
Decrease due to Stock Options Exercised
Treasury Shares as of December 31, 2005

Number
of Shares

Treasury Shares

140,953
430,584
(231,295)
340,242
1,020,726
(34,108)
949,652
(695,964)
1,580,548

(9.7)
(44.0)
21.3
(32.4)
0.8
(41.8)
21.0
(52.4)

(In millions of Euro)

(1) On May 13, 2005, Technip’s ordinary shares were split 4-for-1.

(d) Fair Value Reserves
Convertible Bond
As of January 1, 2004
Stock Options
As of December 31, 2004
IAS 32/39 - Net Gains / (Losses) on Cash Flow Hedges (1)
Tax Effect of Net Gains / (Losses) on Cash Flow Hedges
Convertible Bonds - Equity Component (2)
32.8
Others
As of December 31, 2005
32.8
(In millions of Euro)

Hedging Reserve
(100.3)
24.0
(76.3)

Stock Options
5.8
5.8
11.6
5.4
17.0

Total
5.8
5.8
11.6
(100.3)
24.0
32.8
5.4
(26.5)

(1) Revaluation of derivatives under cash flow hedges ((€75.3) million) and of cash accounts allocated to cash flow hedges ((€25.0) million).
(2) Split accounting applied to convertible bonds in accordance with IAS 32 and IAS 39, into a separate debt component and a shareholders’ equity component.
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Convertible Bond OCEANE
In accordance with IAS 32/39 effective from January 1, 2005, convertible bonds are accounted for using the split accounting
method by bifurcating the bond into a separate debt component and a shareholders’ equity component.
Hedging reserve
This hedging reserve records fair value changes on available-for-sale investments. Also recorded here is the portion of the
gain or loss on a hedging instrument in a cash flow hedge that is determined to be an effective hedge.
(e) Distributable Retained Earnings
The distributable retained earnings of the parent company amount to approximately €314.5 million as of December 31, 2005.
(f) Statutory Legal Reserve
Under French Law, companies must allocate each year 5% of their consolidated statutory net profit to their legal reserve
fund before dividends may be paid with respect to that year. Funds are allocated until the amount in the legal reserve is
equal to 10% of the aggregate nominal value of the issued and outstanding share capital. The legal reserve may only be
distributed to shareholders upon liquidation of the Company. The statutory legal reserve was of €9.8 million as of
December 31, 2005.
(g) Executive Stock Option Plans
The 2000 stock option plan was authorized by the Shareholders' Meeting held on April 28, 2000 and implemented by the
Board of Directors on December 14, 2000. These options are valid up to eight years from the date of grant.
The 2002 stock option plan (part A and part B) was authorized by the Shareholders' Meeting held on August 24, 2001 and
implemented by the Management Board on December 9, 2002. These options are valid up to six years from the date of
grant.
The 2002 stock option plan (remaining portion of part B) was authorized by the Shareholders’ Meeting held on June 20, 2002
and implemented by the Board of Directors on May 21, 2003. These options are valid up to six years from the date of grant.
The 2005 stock option plan (part A) was authorized by the Shareholders’ Meeting held on April 29, 2005 and implemented
by the Board of Directors on December 14, 2005. These options are valid up to six years from the date of grant.
After the merger of Technip and Coflexip SA, Technip has taken over the former stock option plans of Coflexip. Following
are the granted stock option plans:
• Stock option plan 9.2 was authorized by the Shareholders’ Meeting held on May 21, 1996 and implemented by the Board
of Directors on March 24, 1997. These options are valid up to ten years from the date of grant.
• Stock option plan 9.3 was authorized by the Shareholders’ Meeting held on May 21, 1996 and implemented by the Board
of Directors on May 18, 1998. These options are valid up to ten years from the date of grant.
• Stock option plan 10 was authorized by the Shareholders’ Meeting held on June 2, 1999 and implemented by the Board
of Directors on December 14, 1999. These options are valid up to ten years from the date of grant.
• Stock option plan 11 was authorized by the Shareholders’ Meeting held on May 30, 2000 and implemented by the Board
of Directors on March 20, 2001. These options are valid up to ten years from the date of grant.
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TECHNIP PLANS

Plan 2000
2° Part

Number of Stock Options
(1)
Options granted as of December 31, 1999
Options granted (purchase)
139,576
Options granted (subscription)
493,028
Options granted as of December 31, 2000
632,604
Options cancelled (subscription)
(3,200)
Options granted as of December 31, 2001
629,404
Options cancelled (subscription)
(13,950)
Options granted (subscription)
Options granted as of December 31, 2002
615,454
Options cancelled (subscription)
(27,200)
Options granted (subscription)
Options granted as of December 31, 2003
588,254
Options exercised (subscription)
Options cancelled (subscription)
(34,000)
Options granted as of December 31, 2004
554,254
Options granted (subscription)
Options exercised (subscription)
(234,274)
Options exercised (purchase)
(139,576)
Options cancelled (purchase)
Options cancelled (subscription)
(14,000)
Options granted as of December 31, 2005
166,404
Maturity Date
Dec. 14,
2008

Plan 2002
Part A

Part B

(2)

(2)
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(3)

Part A

Total

(4)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

234,080 462,920
234,080 462,920
(22,090)
(4,400)
211,990 458,520
(900)
(10,380) (10,350)
201,610 447,270
(69,840) (186,070)
(10,780)
(5,150)
120,990 256,050
Dec. 9,
Dec. 9,
2008
2008

5,200
5,200
5,200
5,200
May 21,
2009

965,213
965,213
Dec. 14,
2011

(1) Options exercisable after 3 years from 12.14.2000
(2) Options exercisable after 3 years from 12.09.2002
(3) Options exercisable after 3 years from 05.21.2003
(4) Options exercisable after 4 years from 12.14.2005 and when meeting certain targets

Each option allows 4 shares, except the 2005 plan part A.

Plan 2005

Remaining
Portion of Part B

139,576
493,028
632,604
(3,200)
629,404
(13,950)
697,000
1,312,454
(53,690)
5,200
1,263,964
(900)
(54,730)
1,208,334
965,213
(490,184)
(139,576)
(29,930)
1,513,857
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COFLEXIP PLANS
Number of Stock Options
Options granted in
Purchase options granted
Subscription options granted
Options as of December 31, 2003
(cumulative figures)
Options exercised (subscription)
Options cancelled (subscription)
Options granted as of December 31, 2004
Options exercised (subscription)
Options exercised (purchase)
Options cancelled (subscription)
Options granted as of December 31, 2005
of which purchase options granted

Plan 9.2

Plan 9.3

Plan 10

Plan 11

Total

1997
200,000

1998
123,400

1999
127,386

2001
34,415
180,000

34,415
630,786

38,687
(10,833)
27,854
(12,497)
15,357
-

97,750
(8,050)
(1,900)
87,800
(44,705)
(2,000)
41,095
-

91,384
(20,760)
(1,334)
69,290
(44,245)
25,045
-

178,415
(1,000)
177,415
(24,785)
(34,415)
(16,915)
101,300
-

406,236
(39,643)
(4,234)
362,359
(126,232)
(34,415)
(18,915)
182,797
-

IFRS 2 applies to stock option plans implemented after November 7, 2002 and whose rights are not acquired as of January 1,
2005. Are therefore only impacted as of December 31, 2005: the subscription plan of 2002 (part A, B and remaining portion
of part B), as well as the plan of 2005. Consequently, the Group has recorded a charge of €5.6 million as of December 31,
2005 (€5.8 million in 2004).
So as to evaluate this plans, and considering the lack of relevant historical information, the Group has used the 6 common
general hypotheses to all options’ valuation models (exercise price, useful life and share price at the grant date, expected
volatility of share price, estimated dividends and risk-free interest rate for the option life).
Regarding the assessment of volatility, the historical measures performed on the stock price show great discrepancies according
to the periods and the maturities chosen. In order to achieve a reliable measure of the future volatility, Technip has decided
to use the approach to comparing measures of historical volatility over periods of 1 year, 2 years, 3 years and 5 years on
one hand and the implicit share volatility on the other hand.
The following table illustrates the assumptions made for the charge computation. The method used by the Group is the Cox
Ross Rubinstein (binomial type).
TECHNIP PLANS
(In Euro)

Part A

Plan 2002
Part B

Share Price at the Grant Date
Exercise Price
Dividend Yield
Turnover Rate
Volatility
Annual Risk Free Interest Rate

72.55
71.95
2.6%
2.0%
45.5%
2.9%
2.9%
3.3%
3.6%
4.5%
Dec. 9,
2008

72.55
71.95
2.6%
2.0%
45.5%
2.9%
2.9%
3.3%
3.6%
4.5%
Dec. 9,
2008

Maturity Dates

6 months
1 year
3 years
5 years
10 years

Remaining
Portion of Part B
74.50
73.98
2.7%
2.0%
46.2%
2.3%
2.2%
2.4%
3.0%
3.8%
May 21,
2009
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Plan 2005
Part A
48.87
48.19
2.0%
5.0%
28.0%
2.6%
2.8%
2.9%
3.1%
3.3%
Dec. 14,
2011
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Note 22 – Financial Debts

(a) Analysis by Maturity
(In millions of Euro)

Non-Current
Convertible Bonds OCEANE (1)
Bond Loan (2)
Bank Borrowings and Credit Lines (3)
Refundable Advances (Non-Current)
Others
Current
Commercial Paper
Bank Overdrafts
Accrued Interest Payable
Refundable Advances (Current)
Capital Lease
Total Financial Debts

2005

2004

650.1
650.0
0.2
5.0
1,305.3

670.9
650.0
82.4
5.4
1,408.7

150.0
39.2
24.2
1.0
(4)
214.4
1,519.7

150.0
15.8
24.7
1.5
192.0
1,600.7

(1) As of December 31, 2005, convertible bonds OCEANE whose redemption date was set on January 1, 2007, present a maturity of one year and one day
and therefore are classified as non-current. Their anticipated call occurred in March 2006 (see Note 23 – Convertible Bonds and Note 34 – Subsequent
Event).
(2) On May 26, 2004, Technip issued a bond loan for an initial amount of €650 million. The redemption date is set on May 26, 2011. The coupon payable on
May 26 of each year amounts to 4.625% per year of the bond nominal value.
(3) On December 28, 2005, Technip Coflexip USA Holding has reimbursed the use of U.S. $109 million (€92.4 million) on a credit line raised by Technip in
2004 and amended in 2005 with a bank consortium, for an authorized total amount of €850.0 million. This credit facility had been used to finance part
of the acquisition of the Aker Maritime ASA Deepwater Division.
(4) The current financial debt of €214.4 million mainly comprises the following financings:
- Commercial papers for €150.0 million (terms from 1 to 3 months);
- Bank overdrafts and other short-term bank facilities for €39.2 million;
- Accrued interests on convertible bonds, bond loan and several bank borrowings for €24.2 million and the short-term part of refundable advances (term
less than one year) for €1.0 million.

(b) Comparison of Carrying Amount and Fair Value of Non-Current Financial Debts
In the following table, the carrying amount of the convertible bonds includes accrued interest expense previously classified
as current for €6.1 million (€18.1 million regarding the bond loan).
(In millions of Euro)

Non-Current
Convertible Bonds OCEANE
Bond Loan
Bank Borrowings and Credit Lines
Refundable Advances (Non-Current)
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Carrying amounts
2005

Fair value
2005

656.2
668.1
0.2
5.0
1,329.5

676.6
702.0
0.2
5.0
1,383.8

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(c) Analysis by Type of Interest Rate
(After possible hedging of interest rates)
2005
1,330.5
189.2
1,519.7

(In millions of Euro)

Fixed rates
Floating rates
Total Financial Debts

2004
1,441.3
159.4
1,600.7

As of December 31, 2004, the fixed-rate debt included U.S. $109.0 million (€80.0 million). This debt was initially issued at
a floating rate and then has been swapped for a fixed rate debt until June 26, 2006. On December 26, 2005, the interest
rate swap contract was settled at the redemption date of the hedged credit facility. As of December 31, 2005, the fixed-rate
debt mainly comprises bond loans.
Over the year 2005, the average rate of the fixed-rate debt stands at 5.27% per year (3.87% without the effects of split
accounting, to be compared with 3.84% in 2004).
Over the same period, the average rate of the overall Group debt (fixed and floating rate) stands at 5.18% per year (3.93%
without the effects of split accounting, to be compared with 3.61% in 2004 after the amortization of the redemption premium relating to the convertible bond loan).
The average rate of debt is calculated by dividing the amount of financial costs for the fiscal year (to the exclusion of bank
fees not expressly related to the debt) by the average outstanding debt for the fiscal year.
(d) Analysis by Currency
2005
1,481.0
0.2
38.5
1,519.7

(In millions of Euro)

Euro
U.S. Dollar
Pound Sterling
Others
Total Financial Debts

2004
1,503.0
80.4
17.3
1,600.7

(e) Schedule of Financial Debts
(In millions of Euro)

2005

As of December 31, 2005
Fixed Rates
Floating Rates
As of December 31, 2004
Fixed Rates
Floating Rates

32.6
159.4
192.0

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011
and beyond

Total

25.2
189.2
214.4

650.6
650.6

0.6
0.6

0.4
0.4

0.3
0.3

653.4 1,330.5
189.2
653.4 1,519.7

3.0
3.0

671.3
671.3

0.6
0.6

80.3
80.3

-

653.5 1,441.3
159.4
653.5 1,600.7

The maturity of 2007 relates to €650.1 million and €670.9 million, respectively as of December 31, 2005 and December 31,
2004, relative to the convertible bond loan OCEANE whose initial redemption date was set on January 1, 2007. Convertible
bonds have been converted in shares or redeemed for cash in March 2006 (see Note 34 – Subsequent Event).
As of December 2005, no interest rate swap has been subscribed. As of December 2004, a swap of U.S. $109.0 million was
meant to fix the rate on the use of the bank credit line with a maturity of 2009. On December 26, 2005 when reimbursing
the credit facility amended with the bank consortium, Technip has sold this interest rate swap in advance.
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(f) Debt Guaranteed by Suretyship or Security with regard to Immovable Property
2005
Without
Guarantee

Total

Guarantee

2004
Without
Guarantee

Total

-

150.0

150.0

-

150.0

150.0

-

40.2

40.2

-

15.8

15.8

-

24.2
214.4
1,305.3

24.2
214.4
1,305.3

1.5
1.5
-

24.7
190.5
1,408.7

26.2
192.0
1,408.7

(In millions of Euro)

Guarantee
Current
Commercial Paper
Bank Overdrafts, Current
Facilities and Others
Short-Term Part
of Long-Term Debts
Current Financial Debt
Non-Current Financial Debt

Since December 31, 2004, €1.5 million of bank and financial debt raised by Technip and its affiliates and covered by security
with regard to immovable property provided by theses companies have been redeemed.

Note 23 – Convertible Bonds

At the end of January 2002, Technip
issued a bond loan with option for
conversion into new shares and/or
exchange for existing shares (OCEANE
offer) for an initial amount of €793.5
million. The redemption date was set
on January 1, 2007 for bonds not
converted into shares before this date
(see Note 34 – Subsequent Event).
The OCEANE offer, which received
the final approval of the COB on
January 22, 2002, has the following
characteristics:
- Issued at a price of €170 (number
of bonds issued: 4,667,647);
- A coupon payable on January 1st of
each year amounts to 1% per year
of the bonds' nominal value;
- A redemption date was set on
January 1, 2007 for bonds not
converted into shares at such date;
- A bond redemption price as of January
1, 2007 of €190.07 in the event of
non-conversion or non-exchange;
- An actuarial rate of yield for the
bondholder of 3.25% per year in the
event of non-conversion or nonexchange.
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Following the 4-for-1 share split on
May 13, 2005, the same grant rate
has been applied to conver tible
bonds, that is 1 bond for 4 Technip’s
ordinary shares.
Proceeds from the bond loan were
used to repay part of the credit facility entered into by Technip to finance
the purchase of Coflexip shares.
Technip repurchased 948,536 convertible bonds in 2002, 2003 and 2004,
and 117,700 convertible bonds over
the year 2005 for an amount of
€20.0 million in 2005, representing a
total nominal amount repurchased of
€181.3 million since the bond issue.
In accordance with the bond loanissuing contract, the 1,066,236
convertible bonds thus redeemed
have been cancelled, reducing the
outstanding nominal amount to
€612.2 million as of December 31,
2005 (to the exclusion of the
redemption premium).
As requested by the IFRS, Technip restated the amount of the convertible
bond loan as of January 1, 2005, to
include the optional conversion com-

ponent of €34.9 million. As per IAS
39, the effective interest rate of the
bond borrowing is 6.24%. On account
of the bond repurchases performed in
2005, the amount of this optional
component decreased by €2.1 million
to stand at €32.8 million at the end
of December 2005.
In accordance with IAS 39, the Group
has reassessed the optional component
of conversion related to convertible
bonds for €32.8 million, which has
been recorded in equity as of
January 1, 2005. Consequently, the
debt component of the convertible
bonds amounts to €638.2 million as
o f Ja nu a r y 1 , 2 0 0 5 . Th e c h a rge
accounted for related to the amortization of the optional component in
2005 stood for €16.6 million.
As of January 31, 2006, 21,600 bonds
representing 86,400 existing shares
were presented for conversion at the
bondholders’ initiative (see Note 34 –
Subsequent Event).
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Note 24 – Pensions and other PostEmployment Benefit Plans

In accordance with laws and usual
practices in each country, Technip
contributes to retirement or post retirement benefit schemes.
The group has assessed its obligations
in employee benefit pension plans
and other long-term benefits such as
jubilees, post retirement medical and
special termination benefits according
to IAS 19. The plan assets are recorded
at fair value.
Benefit obligations are as follows:
Germany
Following plans are proposed in
Germany:
• Two pension plans offer a pension
payable from people who have reached the age of 65 years old
- A differed benefit plan
- An early retirement plan (OAPT)
• A jubilee plan provides a lump sum
payment from one to three month
of salary when employees have reached 25, 40 and 45 year of services.

Brazil
A jubilee plan provides a lump sum
payment from half a month of salary
after 10, 15, 20 and 30 years of services.
The plan provides also to pay a short
journey to Paris after 20 and 30 years
of service.
United Arab Emirates
A cost retirement benefit provides a
capital payment according to the years
of stay in the company: 21 days of
salary by year of service until 5 years
and one month of salary beyond.
France
Following plans are proposed in France:
• A pension plan which offers a capital
payment based on the years of service
and salary at retirement date
• A post medical retirement benefit
• A jubilee plan which provides a lump
sum payment after 20, 30, 35 and
40 years of services (minimum of
years spent in Technip require
• An additional defined contribution
pension plan has been set up from
January 1rst, 2005 dedicated to a
precise and same level class of top
managers. A 6% contribution on
gross salary for these people is paid
by the Company. This contribution
respects the limits required by the Law.

Italy
Following plans are offered in Italy:
• A pension plan which offers a capital
payment based on the years of service
and amount of pay
• An early retirement plan which
provides a capital payment. This
plan will end at December 31, 2006.
Norway
A pension plan offers a guarantee
income from 67 years old on (70% of
final gross salary maximum, social
security included).
Netherlands
The company has a defined contribution
pension plan.
United Kingdom
A pension plan offers a capital payment.
Assessments have been coordinated
by an independent actuarial office to
allow secured and homogeneous
pension and post retirement benefits
calculation.

(a) Net Benefit Expense Recognized in the Income Statement
Pension Plans and Other Post-Employment Benefits
2005
2004
Current Service Cost
8.6
8.1
Financial Cost of Benefit Obligation
7.7
8.1
Expected Return on Plan Assets
(3.8)
(3.5)
Net Actuarial (Gain) / Loss Recognized
1.5
0.3
Past Service Cost
(0.2)
(0.1)
Special Events (Curtailment)
(2.2)
Net Benefit Expense as Recorded in the Income Statement
11.6
12.9
(In millions of Euro)
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(b) Benefit Asset / Liability Recognized in the Balance Sheet
(In millions of Euro)

Defined Benefit Obligation
Fair Value of Plan Assets
Unrecognized Actuarial (Gains) / Losses
Unrecognized Past Service Costs
Asset / (Liability) as recorded in the Balance Sheet

Pension Plans and Other Post-Employment Benefits
2005
2004
(194.6)
(177.3)
77.4
68.8
(117.2)
(108.5)
5.5
(0.6)
(2.5)
(2.8)
(114.2)
(111.9)

Changes in benefit asset / (liability) of pensions plans and other post-employment benefits are presented hereafter:
Pension Plans and Other Post-Employment Benefits
2005
2004
Net Opening Benefit Asset / (Liability)
(111.9)
(109.5)
Exchange Differences on Foreign Plans
(0.2)
0.1
Expenses Charged in the Income Statement
(11.6)
(12.9)
Contributions Paid
9.3
10.4
Disposals of Subsidiaries / Changes in Scope of Consolidation
0.2
Net Closing Benefit Asset / (Liability)
(114.2)
(111.9)
(In millions of Euro)

Out of these €114.2 million of benefit liabilities as of December 31, 2005, a total amount of €112.7 million has been
recorded as provisions for employee benefits and €1.5 million as other current payables.
Following are changes in fair value of plan assets:
Pension Plans

(In millions of Euro)

Opening Fair Value of Plan Assets
Expected Return
Contributions by Employer
Contributions by Employee
Benefits Paid
Actuarial Gains / (Losses)
Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries / Changes in Scope of Consolidation
Exchange Differences on Foreign Plans
Closing Fair Value of Plan Assets

2005
68.8
7.4
3.1
0.3
(2.8)
0.6
77.4

2004
59.3
5.4
7.8
(5.9)
2.2
68.8

Hereafter are detailed the main categories of pensions plans by country in percentage of their total fair value:
Bonds
80%
70%
62%
75%
8%

In %

France
Germany
Norway
Netherlands
Great Britain
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Shares
15%
30%
17%
20%
81%

Real Estate
5%
16%
2%

Cash
5%
5%
9%

Total
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(c) Actuarial Assumptions
The main assumptions made to define the benefit amounts related to pension plans are detailed in the following table:
2005

(In millions of Euro)

Discount Rate
Expected Return on Plan Assets
Future Salary Increase
Future Pension Increase
Healthcare Cost Increase
Inflation Rate

Euroland
4.0%
4.0% to 4.45%
3.0 to 5.0%

Others
4.5 to 10%
5.0% to 7.0%
3.0% to 6.0%

2.0%

2.7% to 5.0%

2004
Euroland
Others
4.5%
From 5% to 10%
5.1%
5.1%
3.0% Inflation rate + 1.5/3.25%

2.0%

From 2.75% to 4%

Note 25 – Provisions

The principles used for the assessment of accrued liabilities, as well as their specific natures, are described in Note 1 C.(l)
Provisions.
Changes in provisions over the year 2005 can be analyzed as follows:
(In millions of Euro)

Non-Current
Employee Benefits (*)
Tax (1)
Litigation
Other Provisions (Non-Current) (2)
Current
Employee Benefits (*)
Contingencies related to Contracts
Restructuring
Tax (1)
Litigation
Reinsurance (3)
Other Provisions (Current) (2)
Total Provisions

As of
January 1,
2005

Increase

Used
Provisions

Unused
Provision
Reversals

Foreign
Exchange
Adjustments

Others(**)

As of
December 31,
2005

111.9
3.4
115.3

11.6
4.6
3.3
19.5

(10.3)
(2.1)
(4.2)
(16.6)

(0.6)
(1.4)
(0.5)
(2.5)

0.8
0.3
1.1

(11.4)
(0.4)
3.0
(1.7)
(10.5)

102.0
0.7
3.0
0.6
106.3

76.5
7.0
2.0
4.6
31.4
121.5
236.8

26.4
4.0
0.4
0.3
5.1
8.3
44.5
64.0

(8.4)
(3.2)
(0.5)
(0.2)
(6.5)
(18.8)
(35.4)

(21.9)
(0.1)
(9.1)
(31.1)
(33.6)

9.1
0.1
1.0
10.2
11.3

10.7
(6.1)
(4.4)
8.8
0.7
(2.6)
7.1
(3.4)

10.7
75.6
3.4
9.2
2.5
9.5
22.5
133.4
239.7

(*) See Note 24 – Pensions and other Post-Employment Benefit Plans.
(**) Mainly including reclassifications of current / non-current items from January 1, 2005 to December 31, 2005.
(1) Tax provisions essentially relate to contingencies on tax adjustments regarding completed or ongoing contracts.
(2) “Other provisions” mainly relate to accrued liabilities that are not directly connected to the operating cycle with maturity greater than 1 year, such as
provisions on administrative litigations above all.
(3) Reinsurance provisions have been recorded at the level of the Group’s insurance captive (Engineering RE AG) as per IFRS 4.
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The following table reflects the maturity of provisions as of December 31, 2005:
As of
December 31,
2005

(In millions of Euro)

Non-Current
Employee Benefits
Tax
Litigation
Other Provisions (Non-Current)
Current
Employee Benefits
Contingencies related to Contracts
Restructuring
Tax
Litigation
Reinsurance
Other Provisions (Current)
Total Provisions

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

Beyond
2010

Not
Allocable

102.0
0.7
3.0
0.6
106.3

-

8.4
0.7
3.0
12.1

8.4
8.4

8.4
8.4

8.4
8.4

65.0
65.0

3.4
0.6
4.0

10.7
75.6
3.4
9.2
2.5
9.5
22.5
133.4
239.7

10.7
62.8
2.9
9.2
7.7
93.3
93.3

4.9
0.5
2.3
5.9
13.6
25.7

0.9
0.9
9.3

0.1
0.3
0.4
8.8

0.3
0.3
8.7

6.5
2.5
9.0
74.0

1.0
0.2
9.5
5.2
15.9
19.9

As mentioned in the Group accounting principles, the criteria of asset / liability classification as “Current” in the balance
sheet rely either on the term of contracts’ operating cycle, or on the maturity of the liability less than one year. Therefore,
current provisions on contingencies related to contracts may have maturities greater than one year because of the
contracts’ operating cycle.

Note 26 – Trade Payables

Trade payables are non-interest bearing. Their maturities are linked to the operating cycle of contracts. Trade payables
amount to €978.1 million in 2005 versus €852.5 million in 2004.

50

A N N UA L

R E P O RT

2 0 0 5

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 27 – Other Current Payables
(In millions of Euro)

Payroll Costs
Social Security Charges
Other Tax Payables
Deferred Income
Ongoing Project Accruals
Rent to Be Paid (1)
Dividends to Be Paid
Fee Accruals
Current Accounts on Ongoing Contracts
Subsidies
Debt Covered by Guarantee
Others
Total Other Current Payables

2005
129.1
29.5
26.9
70.8
227.1
22.9
2.2
0.6
59.8
6.4
8.6
123.2
707.1

2004
109.6
29.4
51.5
31.6
194.2
22.0
1.1
3.3
22.9
13.6
15.6
276.9
771.7

(1) Technip has entered into a 12-year lease for its head office at La Défense (Paris, France) effective March 1, 2003. Under the terms of the lease, Technip
was entitled to take advantage of the first year of occupancy at no charge. In accordance with IAS 17, an annual rental expense for the entire 12-year
lease duration has been determined on the basis of a total lease value. This has led the Group to record a rental charge corresponding to the first year of
occupancy versus a debt in its opening balance sheet as of January 1, 2004.

Maturities are less than one year, except for items connected to ongoing contracts that are part of the contracts’ operating
cycle.

Note 28 – Derivatives

In accordance with Note 1 C. (c) Foreign Currency Transactions and Financial Instruments, financial instruments are valued
and disclosed at their fair value in the balance sheet.
2005

(In millions of Euro)

Derivatives
Forward Foreign Exchange Contracts
Net Value

Assets

Liabilities

3.5

77.1
73.6

These hedging instruments are detailed per nature in Note 33 (b) Market related exposure and financial instruments.

Note 29 – Payroll and Payroll Staff

Technip has a workforce of about 21,000 people, in more than 50 countries, including an average of 4,600 external staff
integrated in operating teams. This workforce only relates to fully consolidated companies. The payroll increase in 2005
compared to 2004 is mainly due to the contracts awarded over the year and therefore, the necessity to strengthen the
Group’s teams.
For the companies accounted for under the proportionate consolidation method, the workforce is not significant.
The payroll expense recorded (excepting stock options) is €1,017.9 million in 2005 and €920.2 million in 2004.
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Note 30 – Related Party Disclosure

(a) Transactions with Related Parties
Entities with Significant Influence over the Group
% of Technip Ordinary Shares
Institut Français du Pétrole
Oppenheimer Funds Inc
Lehman Brothers International

2005

2004

3.2%
5.9%
4.7%

3.2%
6.0%
0.0%

Technip paid the IFP (Institut Français du Pétrole) royalties for an agreement of research cooperation on offshore deepwaters.
It amounted to €3.04 million in 2005 and €2.88 million in 2004.
(b) Salary and Benefits of the Chief Executive Officer
The Compensation of the Chairman of Technip, Daniel Valot, is decided by the Company’s board of Directors based on a
proposal from the Nominating and Compensation Committee.
Mr. Daniel Valot’s total gross compensation paid by the French and foreign affiliates of Technip amounted to 609,000 euros
in 2005. The gross amount of variable compensation paid in 2005 but linked to 2004 results was 464,000 euros. The variable
portion of the salary is based on the previous year fixed salary. It is calculated at 50% on the Group performance based on
the following criteria: income from operations, backlog, earnings per share, gearing and ROCE. The remaining 50% is based
on the individual performance linked to general Group ‘objectives. The 2005 variable portion which will be paid to Mr. Valot
in 2006 amounts 479,590 euros. Mr. Valot has a company car which represents a fringe benefit of 3,660 euros per year.
Mr. Valot does not receive any Director’s fee as member of the Director’s Board in any company and affiliate.
There is no specific pension scheme for the Chairman. He has like other directors of Technip a complementary defined
contribution pension plan. It is calculated as follows: 6% of the annual compensation capped to 8 times the upper limit of
salary deductions for social security contributions.
When Mr. Valot was appointed, he has concluded a non-trading clause without any territoriality limit for 3 years after his
departure. This clause will cease when he reaches 65. This obligation is compensated by a fee equal to 60% of his last three
years of gross compensation.
The annual gross compensation given to the Board members of Technip Group is shown hereunder:
2005
609,000
464,000
1,073,000

(In Euro)

Basic
Variable
Total
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Note 31 – Joint Ventures

The following amounts represent Technip’s accumulated shares of the assets, liabilities, income and expenses relative to all
joint ventures of the Group. These amounts are included in Technip’s balance sheet and income statement:
(In millions of Euro)

Assets
Non-Current Assets
Current Assets
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Net Assets
Income
Expenses
Net Income after Tax

2005

2004

2.1
1,080.2
1,082.3

0.7
336.7
337.4

3.2
1,058.3
1,061.5
20.8
666.2
(640.1)
26.1

8.5
357.3
365.8
(28.4)
628.3
(624.5)
3.8

The net cash and cash equivalents of joint ventures stand at €743 million.
The list of entities structured in joint ventures is the one of affiliates consolidated under the proportionate method excepting
the following companies: Technip South Africa, ProTek Germany, Technip India, Tipiel, Deep Oil Technology, PI Rauma Oy and
Spars International Inc.

Note 32 – Off-Balance Sheet Commitments and Contingencies

The off-balance sheet commitments are presented below. The commitments concerning financial debts are presented in
Note 22 – Financial Debts. There is no material off balance sheet commitment that is not described below.
(In millions of Euro)

Total as of
December 31, 2005

Contractual Commitments
Capital leases
Operating leases
Foreign exchange rate
financial instruments
Interest rate financial instruments

(In millions of Euro)

356.0

48.1

155.7

152.2

2,353.8
2,709.8

1,641.0
1,689.1

712.8
868.5

152.2

Total as of
December 31, 2005

Other Commitments
Parent Company Guarantees
Other Commitments Given
Total Commitments Given
Total Commitments Received

Scheduled Payments Sorted out per Period
Less than 1 year
1 to 5 years
More than 5 years

23,234.9
2,817.0
26,051.9
675.1

Amounts of Commitments per Period
Less than 1 year
1 to 5 years
More than 5 years
4,672.9
852.1
5,525.0
219.1

17,619.9
1,705.4
19,325.3
440.1
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(a) Capital Leases and Operating Leases
The Group rents various equipment, vessels and buildings, mainly under lease contracts that will end during the next ten
years. It is likely that the Group will have to renew or to replace them.
At the end of December 2005, the rental expense amounted to €59.6 million (including rental expense on vessels for €14.6
million). For memory, as of December 31, 2004, the rental expense amounted to €52.1 million, after taking into account
restatements related to the application of IAS 17.
As of December 31, 2005, the Group’s commitments related to operating leases break down as follows:
(In millions of Euro)
Operating Leases
As of December 31,
2006
48.1
2007
41.5
2008
40.4
2009
38.6
2010
35.2
2011 and beyond
152.2
Total Current Net Value of Capital and Operating Leases
356.0
In 2003, Technip entered into a new lease contract related to a new office building located in Paris-La Défense, which is the
Group's new headquarters. This lease relates to the period from March 1, 2003 to February 27, 2015. As of December 31,
2005, the lease amounts to €26.1 million after taking into account the changes in the construction index and the restatements connected to the application of IAS 17. The lease payment remains constant per period of 36 months except for
changes in the construction index.
In 2005 and 2004, the Group did not enter into any new significant leasing contract.
(b) Bank and Commercial Guarantees
Commitments given and received are summarized hereafter:
(In millions of Euro)

Parent Company Guarantees
Other Commitments Given
Total Commitments Given
Total Commitments Received

2005
23,234.9
2,817.0
26,051.9
675.1

2004
13,789.9
1,418.6
15,208.5
539.4

Parent company guarantees given by the parent company to clients cover the due and proper performance of the specified
construction contracts for which the average expiration period until the release of the commitment guarantees is about
5 years. Regarding joint ventures, the amounts disclosed in the parent company guarantees, which stand at €14,280.1
million, also include the contract part allocated to the Group’s partners in joint venture and are not reduced according to
the projects’ percentage of completion. They are not reduced from the amount of parent company received from Technip’s
partners within these joint ventures, whereas Technip issues parent company guarantees in their favor.
The parent company guarantees issued by Technip for contracts out of joint venture’s framework amounts to €8,954.8
million as of December 31, 2005.
The following table illustrates the breakdown of these €14,280.1 million of parent company guarantees issued by Technip
within joint ventures’ contracts, according to the Group’s percentage of ownership in these joint ventures, as of December 31,
2005.
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Total Parent Company Guarantees Issued within Joint Ventures
(In millions of Euro)

TOTAL
14,280.1

Allocation as per % of Technip's Ownership in Joint Ventures
Less or equal to 25%
Greater than 25%
Greater than 40%
Greater than 75%
and less or equal to 40%
and less or equal to 75%
and less than 100%
2,927.7
9,401.3
1,951.1
-

Other commitments given mainly
relate to guarantees or counter-guarantees given by banks and insurance
companies to various customers
in connection with ongoing contracts,
in order to secure due and proper
performance of the contracts or
following the payment of retention
guarantees and advance billings.
Commitments received mainly relate
to similar guarantees obtained from
suppliers or subcontractors in connection with ongoing contracts.
(c) Contingencies: Exceptional
Events and Litigation
The Company is subject to various
legal proceedings and claims arising in
the normal course of its business. In
the management opinion, the probable
outcomes of these actions will not
materially affect and has not materially affect in a recent past the
consolidated financial position, results
of operations or, the net assets of the
Company and its subsidiaries.
Provisions related to any litigation are
recorded, when necessary, under the
“Contingencies related to Contracts”
line item, disclosed in Note 25 –
Provisions or in the costs of ongoing
contracts.
SEAMEC Litigation
In may 2005, the proceedings opposing Technip to minority shareholders
of SEAMEC, a subsidiary listed in
India, was finally resolved in favor of
Technip. Technip won its appeal to the
Supreme Court of India on the merits
of the matter, allowing the release of
the bank guarantees and extinguishing every financial risk.

The main current litigation consists in
the following:
ITP Litigation
On December 21, 2001, a French company filed a complaint with the Tribunal
de Commerce (Commercial Court) of
Versailles against Coflexip, Coflexip
Stena Offshore Ltd. and Coflexip Stena
Offshore International (respectively
renamed Technip France, Technip
Offshore UK Ltd. and Technip Offshore
International) seeking damages based
on alleged breaches of several confidentiality agreements. This company has
also brought an action before the courts
of Scotland and of in the U.S. for infringement of a patent related to “pipe in
pipe” technologies. Because the patent of
this company has been declared invalid
by the EPO (European Patent Office) in
February 2004 the Court of Appeal in
Edinburgh cancelled the decision at first
instance considering that the EPO decision should be effective in the British
territory.This decision was subject to an
appeal before the House of Lords no
later than February 19, 2005. This company having failed to file an appeal before
the required date, the Scottish proceeding is now closed. In parallel, a first
instance decision in the French proceeding is expected in the first six months
of 2006.Technip believes that these allegations are unfounded and that its
potential exposure is not material.
Pending Investigation
Technip is a shareholder of 25% of
TSKJ, a joint venture company, which is
carrying out the construction of a natural gas liquefaction complex in Nigeria
for Nigeria LNG Limited (NLNG), which
is owned by the Nigerian National
Petroleum Corporation, Shell Gas B.V.,
Cleag Limited (an affiliate of Total) and
Agip International B.V. (an affiliate of

ENI SpA). The companies Kellog
Brown & Root (a subsidiary of the
American group, Halliburton Company),
Snamprogetti Netherlands BV (a subsidiary of the Italian Group, ENI), JGC
Corporation (Japan) and Technip each
hold 25% of the capital of TSKJ.
In its annual report for the 2005
financial year, Halliburton Company
indicated that it is subject to an
investigation from the United States
Securities and Exchange Commission
(the “SEC”) and the United States
Department of Justice in relation to
payments made in connection with
the construction by TSKJ of the natural gas liquefaction complex located
at Bonny Island in Rivers State,
Nigeria for NLNG.
Halliburton Company also reported
that this formal investigation was
relating to payments made by TSKJ
under several agency agreements and
that the SEC has issued a subpoena to
the former Chairman of Kellog Brown
& Root, to certain current and former
Kellog Brown & Root employees and
to at least one subcontractor of
Kellog Brown & Root.
During the summer of 2004, Technip
was asked by the SEC to voluntarily
provide information related to the
implementation of this GNL complex.
In October 2005, Technip was provided with a copy of an order of investigation relating to this matter originally issued by the SEC on May 25,
2004. Technip is cooperating fully
with the SEC and the DoJand has
engaged a US independent law firm
to conduct an internal investigation
of Technip’s possible involvement in
this matter. Technip has instructed
this law firm to supply the SEC with

A N N UA L

R E P O RT

2 0 0 5

55

the information collected in the internal investigation.

amount of €793.5 million (see
Note 23 – Convertible Bonds).

Furthermore, certain current and former managers of Technip have been
heard as witnesses by a French state
judge in relation to an investigation
opened against unidentified parties
and which relates to the same joint
venture company TSKJ.

Thus, Technip has extended the
average maturity of its debt of
January 2002 by replacing a debt
amortized biannually from June 30,
2002 to December 31, 2006 by a
redeemable bond issue at a single
date as of January 1, 2007, in the
absence of conversion in consideration for a reduced financial cost
in cash.

Note 33 – Market Related Exposure
and Financial Instruments

(a) Liquidity Risk
A - Technip group financing is carried
out within the scope of a group
policy implemented by the Chief
Financial and Control Department.
B - Cash management is centralized
at the head office and coordinated
through the financial centers located in the Group's main operating
subsidiaries.
The SNC Technip Eurocash (general
partnership) is acting as a cash
pooling entity for the Group’s main
entities in respect of the various
legislation and regulations in force
locally. Thus, the SNC Technip
Eurocash entered into cash pooling
agreements with the Group’s
subsidiaries in order to pool the
surplus cash, to meet their needs
by pooling the Group’s financial
resources except when economic
and financial conditions lead to
giving priority to a local debt.
Technip Eurocash's management
committee is made up of representatives of the Group entities that are
members of the SNC.This committee meets several times per year.
C - At the end of January 2002,Technip
took advantage of favorable
market conditions in order to issue
a bond loan with an option for
c o nv e r s i o n i n t o n e w s h a r e s
and/or exchange for existing shares
(the OCEANE offer) for a nominal
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The redemptions of convertible
bonds in 2002 and in 2003 were
mainly refinanced by a bank credit
(expiry date: December 30, 2007).
Technip treasury and the partial
use of its bond (see paragraph D)
allowed to cancel and to retire the
credit facility in 2004, and to
make other repurchases in 2004
and 2005.
D - In May 2004, Technip took advantage of favorable market conditions to issue a bond loan for an
amount of €650 million (see Note
22 – Financial Debts). It extended
the average maturity of its debt.
E - As of December 31, 2005, the Group
has various non-used financing sources that allow it to finance its needs:
1/ An authorized €850 million
credit facility, which was signed in
2004 and amended in 2005 by
Technip (single redemption date:
June 20, 2010). This credit line is
not guaranteed by security with
regard to immovable property
granted on the Group’s assets. This
credit line comes with the usual
commitments from Technip and
the affiliates entitled to borrow,
excluding all financial ratios.
The amendment signed in June
2005 mainly related to the credit
maturity extension to June 2010
and to the decrease in financial
conditions.

2/ Two credit facilities granted to
Technip, for an amount of €125
million each, usable in Euros or in U.S.
dollars.These expiry dates are respectively May 26, 2010 and June 27,
2010. They have the same commitments as the credit above described.
3/ Various unused credit facilities
amounting to €35.7 million. The
credit agreements with respect to
these various financing arrangements do not include an early
payment clause in case of deterioration of the borrower’s rating.
These credit agreements include a
variable interest rate clause in case
they are used.
As of December 31, 2005, the
amount of credit facilities confirmed and available is €1,136 million
of whic h 1,100 are available
beyond December 31, 2006. The
outstanding commercial papers
for the Group issued at the same
date amount to €150 million for
terms of 1 to 3 months within the
scope of the program declared to
the “Banque de France” for a maximum amount of €600 million.
F - The amounts due for the longterm debt with respect to 2006
and 2007 stand at €675.8 million,
including €24.3 million of accrued
interest on long-term debts in
2006 and € 650.1 million on
convertible bond loan in 2007. In
the absence of conversion into
shares, the conver tible bond
redemption is due for the first
working day following January 1,
2007 (see Note 22 – Financial
Debts and Note 34 – Subsequent
Event).
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(b) Currency Risk
As indicated in Note 1 C. (c) Foreign Currency Transactions and Financial Instruments, Technip uses financial instruments
to manage its exposure to currency risks incurred in the normal course of its business. The Group does not use financial
instruments for trading or speculative purposes. The exchange hedging contracts are divided up between several counter
parties who are selected after due analysis.
The primary hedging instruments used to manage Technip’s exposure to currency risks are as follows:
2005
2006

Fair
Value

Nominal
Value

2004
Nominal
Value

53.0

86.4

0.4

139.4

233.9

543.8
116.0
712.8

1,009.2
545.4
1,641.0

(77.7)
3.7
(73.6)

1,553.0
661.4
2,353.8

710.2
343.0
1,287.1

(In millions of Euro)

Maturity
2007 and Beyond
Hedging Instruments
Buy Foreign Currency, Sell National Currency
(Forwards and Swaps)
Sell Foreign Currency, Buy National Currency
(Forwards, Swaps and Options)
Buy / Sell Foreign Currencies

(c) Interest Rate Risk
The table hereafter presents the maturity of the financial assets and the financial debts of Technip as at December 31, 2005.
The schedule of maturity corresponds to the date of the revision of the interest rates. It does not show the amount of interest
rate swaps carried out for the debt anymore, the last swap being early closed on December 26, 2005.
(In millions of Euro)

Fixed Rate
Convertible Bonds
(including Accrued Interest Payable)
Bond Loan
(including Accrued Interest Payable)
Bank Borrowings and Credit Lines
(including Accrued Interest Payable)
Refundable Advances
Floating Rate
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Commercial Papers
Bank Overdrafts

Call Money Rate
within 1 year
and Floating Rate

1 to 5 years

Over 5 years

Total

6.1

650.1

-

656.2

18.1

-

650.0

668.1

0.2
0.9
25.3

0.1
1.6
651.8

3.4
653.4

0.3
5.9
1,330.5

(2,187.8)
150.0
39.2
(1,998.6)
(1,973.3)

651.8

653.4

(2,187.8)
150.0
39.2
(1,998.6)
(668.1)
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Analysis of the sensitivity of the
situation to the change in interest
rates:
In as much as the net indebtedness
before and after management within
1 year and floating rate is negative,
Technip is not exposed to interest rate
risk on its debt in terms of financial
charges.
The Group treasury is invested in
short-term securities so as to insure
its liquidity. Financial gains are subject
to changes in currency exchange
rates.
Method of monitoring the interest
rate risk:
Technip regularly analyzes its exposure
to interest rate risk. This activity is
the responsibility of the Treasury
Department and the Deputy Financial
Director in charge of the financing
and the treasury of the Group, who, in
turn reports to Finances and Control
Chief Executive Officer. The Treasury
Department at head office consists of
13 people.
Interest rate hedging transactions and
methods of hedging are described
below.
The Group does not use financial
instruments for speculative purposes.

58

A N N UA L

R E P O RT

2 0 0 5

As of December 31, 2005, Technip has
not entered into any interest rate
swaps. The outstanding fixed-rate
debt – whose residual maturity is
greater than one year – amounts to
€1,305.3 million, mainly including
the outstanding amount of €1,300.1
million related to bond borrowings.
(d) Credit Risk
A significant portion of the Group’s
activity is concentrated with a limited
number of clients since the worldwide
market is dominated by a small number of major oil and gas companies.
Consequently, the Group regularly
performs credit risk analyses before
entering into contracts and has set up
procedures for monitoring payments
made by customers.
Over the year 2005 and to date, the
Group has not observed significant
payment defaults by its clients.

Note 34 – Subsequent Events

Convertible Bonds
As of January 31, 2006, 21,600 bonds
representing 86,400 existing shares
were presented for conversion on
bondholders’ initiative.
On the Board of Directors’ decision on
February 22, 2006, the Group announced its decision to call its convertible
bonds for early redemption on March
23, 2006 based on a price of €187.06
per bond. The accruals of interests have
ceased as from this date. Bondholders
had the ability to exercise their option
to receive 4 Technip shares for each
convertible bond until March 14, 2006.

On March 9 and 23, 2006, Technip has
redeemed 289,362 and 3,288,420
bonds. These 3,577,782 bonds have
been converted into 14,311,128 shares, of which 11,592,066 newly issued
shares. The remaining 2,029 bonds
have been redeemed based on a price
of €187.06 euros (including the
accrued interest), representing a cash
outflow of €0.4 million.
On March 20, 2006, Technip has
acquired additional 1,300,000 shares
through the exercise of call options, in
order to purchase the same number
of Technip shares at the price of
€47.52 euros per share, representing
a cash outflow of €61.8 million.
Assets Held For Sale
With effect from February 1, 2006,
Technip signed an agreement with
Gulf Island Fabrication. Gulf Island
Fabrication acquired the assets of Gulf
Marine Fabricators, Technip’s affiliate
located in Corpus Christi, Texas, U.S.A.
Assets held for sale stand at €42.9
million as of December 31, 2005,
including €18.3 million of goodwill
allocated to the Facilities segment.
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Note 35 – Main Consolidated Companies and Equity Associates

Consolidated affiliates close their accounts as of December 31, excepting the following entities: Technip KT India, Technip
India, and Nargan with a closing date on March 31 and Technip South Africa on June 30. These previous subsidiaries perform
a complete and audited closing on December 31.
The following tables summarize the main consolidated companies included in the consolidation scope of Technip as of
December 31, 2005, their location and their percentage of control:
Fully Consolidated Companies
Technip
Technip France
Technip Eurocash
Technip Italy
TPL-Tecnologie Progetti Lavori Spa
TPG U.K.
Technip TPS
Technip Iberia
S.C.I. CB3 Défense
Technip Overseas
Technip Benelux NV
Technip Capital
ABAY Engineering
Technip Far East
Technip International AG
TTIL SNC (MIDOR)
Technip KT India
Technip Upstream Management Inc. /
Technip Upstream Services Inc. /
Technip Upstream Houston Inc.
Technip U.S.A.
Technip Benelux BV
Technip Americas
Technip Holding Benelux BV
Technip Germany
Technip Seiffert
Technip Singapore
Technip Middle East
Technip Engenharia
Citex
Eurobatch
SNPE Ingénierie Défense
Seal Engineering
Cofri
Clecel
Technipnet BV
Technip Nouvelle-Calédonie
Engineering Re
Technip Bolivar
Technip Oil & Gas BV

Country
France
France
France
Italy
Italy
United Kingdom
France
Spain
France
Panama
Belgium
Belgium
Belgium
Malaysia
Switzerland
France
India

December 31, 2005
% Control
Consolidating company
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

U.S.A.

100%

U.S.A.
Netherlands
U.S.A.
Netherlands
Germany
Germany
Singapore
United Arab Emirates
Brazil
France
France
France
France
France
France
Netherlands
New Caledonia
Switzerland
Venezuela
Netherlands

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
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Fully Consolidated Companies
Technip-Coflexip Engineering Consultant (Shanghaï)
Technipetrol Hellas S.A.
Technip Marine (M) Sdn. Bhd.
PT Technip Indonesia
Technip BioPharm
Technip CIS
Technip Tianchen
Technip Engineering (Thailand)
TPG (M)
Technip Angola
Technip Saudi Arabia
Inversiones Dinsa / DITECH
Technip Offshore International
Flexi France
Middle East Projects International (Technip MEPI ex-Cofleximmo)
Technip Marine
Angoflex
Coflexip Développement
Technip Offshore N.V.
Technip Offshore Contracting BV
Technip Offshore Holdings Ltd.
Technip Offshore U.K. Ltd.
Technip Ships One Ltd.
Technip Ships Three Ltd.
Technip-Coflexip U.K. Holdings Ltd.
Coflexip U.K. Ltd.
Perry Slingsby Systems Ltd.
DUCO Ltd.
Genesis Oil and Gas Consultants Ltd.
Technip Offshore Norge AS
Technip-Coflexip Norge AS
Coflexip Stena Offshore AS
Technip-Coflexip U.S.A. Holdings Inc.
R.J. Brown Deepwater Inc.
DUCO Inc.
Coflexip Maritime Inc.
Technip Offshore Inc.
Technip Offshore Moorings Inc.
Genesis Oil and Gas Consultants Inc.
Gulf Marine Fabricators Inc.
Perry Slingsby Systems Inc.
Technip Offshore Canada Limited
Stena Offshore Jersey Ltd.
Coflexip Stena Offshore Mauritius Ltd.
Technip Offshore Nigeria Ltd.
Angoflex Ltda
Technip Maritime Overseas Ltd. (TMOL)
Flexservice N.V.
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Country
China
Greece
Malaysia
Indonesia
U.S.A.
Russia
China
Thailand
Malaysia
Angola
Saudi Arabia
Venezuela
France
France
France
France
France
France
Netherlands
Netherlands
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Norway
Norway
Norway
U.S.A.
U.S.A.
U.S.A.
U.S.A.
U.S.A.
U.S.A.
U.S.A.
U.S.A.
U.S.A.
Canada
Jersey
Mauritius
Nigeria
Angola
Bahamas
Dutch Antilles

December 31, 2005
% Control
100%
99%
90.40%
90%
85%
70%
60%
49%
44.10%
60%
40%
20%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
70%
100%
100%
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Fully Consolidated Companies
Sunflex Offshore N.V.
Brasflex Tubos Flexiveis Ltda
Brasflex Overseas Inc.
TPVI Ltd. (Hovensa)
Sea Oil Marine Services Inc.
Flexibras Tubos Flexiveis Ltda
Technip Oceania Pty Ltd.
Technip CSO Australia Pty Ltd.
Technip CSO Oceania Pty Ltd.
Technip CSO Oil and Gas Pty Ltd.
Genesis Oil and Gas Consultants Pty Ltd.
South East Asia Marine Engineering & Construction Ltd.
Technip Offshore Finland OY
Coflexip Singapore Pte Ltd.
Consolidated Companies
Under Proportionate Method
TSS Dalia SNC
Technip South Africa (Pty) Ltd.
Bechtel Technip Goro LLC
BRI-Technip (Q-CHEM)
CTME FZCO (Qatargaz)
SPF-TKP Omifpro SNC / SP-TKP Fertilizer
ProTek Germany GmbH (ex Technip Anlagenbau)
Technip India
UCI FZC (Amenam)
Dalia Floater Angola
Tipiel
Technip Zachry Saipem LNG LP (Freeport)
CTEP FZCO (Qatargaz II)
Consorcio Contrina SNC/CC(S)V
Saibos Akogep SNC
TSKJ / TSKJ II / LNG (Madecos)
FSTP PTE Ltd. (P51/P52)
FSTP Brasil Ltda (P51/P52)
Yemgas FZCO
Yemen Coordination Services
CTEP FZCO (Rasgaz III)
Deep Oil Technology Inc.
Spars International Inc.
PI Rauma OY
Consolidated Companies
Under Equity Method
Technip KTI SpA
Nargan

Country
Dutch Antilles
Brazil
Virgin Islands
Virgin Islands, U.S.A.
Cayman Islands, British Antilles
Brazil
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
India
Finland
Singapore
Country
France
South Africa
U.S.A.
Qatar
United Arab Emirates
France / Italy
Germany
India
United Arab Emirates
France
Colombia
U.S.A.
United Arab Emirates
France / Venezuela
France
Portugal
Singapore
Brazil
United Arab Emirates
France
United Arab Emirates
U.S.A.
U.S.A.
Finland
Country
Italy
Iran

December 31, 2005
% Control
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
78.20%
100%
100%
December 31, 2005
% Control
55%
51%
50%
50%
50%
50%
50%
50%
50%
55%
44.10%
43%
40%
34.40%
30%
25%
25%
25%
33.33%
33.33%
40%
50%
50%
50%
December 31, 2005
% Control
25%
20%
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6. TRANSITION TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Information Released on October 31, 2005)
The following release relates to the 2004 financial information regarding the transition to IFRS. The analyses performed
by Technip while closing the consolidated accounts under IFRS as of December 31, 2005 led the Group to make insignificant
reclassifications on this information. See Note 1 A. (a) of the Consolidated Financial Statements as of December 31, 2005.

6.1 FRAMEWORK FOR
PUBLICATION.
As all European companies listed on
public security markets, Technip will
have to prepare its 2005 consolidated
accounts in accordance with the IFRS
(International Financial Reporting
Standards) framework.
The consolidated accounts of Technip
for the fiscal year 2005 will be released
under IAS/IFRS framework as endorsed
by the European Union. The first Group
accounts released in compliance with
IFRS will be disclosed for the fiscal year
of 2005 together with comparative
2004 statements under the same standards, except for the IAS 32 and 39.
Those two latter rules were applied on
January 1, 2005.
Pursuant to the AMF (French Securities
Regulator) recommendation regarding
the disclosure of financial information
during this transition period, Technip
has prepared financial information for
the 2004 financial year, which begins
by outlining the expected quantifiable
impact of IFRS adoption on:
• Reconciliation of the consolidated
equity statement as at transition date
(January 1, 2004)
• Reconciliation of the consolidated
profit and loss statement as at
December 31, 2004
• Reconciliation of the consolidated
balance sheet statement as at
December 31, 2004
Technip has based the preparation of
the 2004 financial information on the
IFRS and interpretations that it considers
should be applied in the preparation
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of its comparative consolidated
financial statements as of December 31,
2005. The bases used to produce the
2004 financial statements, as detailed
in the notes of this document, are
as follows:
• The IFRS and interpretations which
application is mandatory for the
financial year ended December 31,
2005, as they are known at this date;
• The principles resulting from Technip
anticipated resolution of some technical questions and projects currently
under discussion by the IASB and
IFRIC, which could be applicable in
the publication of its consolidated
financial statements for 2005 financial
year;
• The options and exemptions that the
Group has applied and that will be
used very likely in the preparation of
its first IFRS consolidated financial
statements for the 2005 financial year.
Knowing that some principles mentioned above may be subject to change
before the end of 2005, it is possible
that the opening balance sheet as of
January 1, 2004 here presented, will
differ from the one actually used as the
basis for the 2005 financial statements.
The Audit Committee of the Board of
Directors of Technip has reviewed the
information. In their special report
included in this current publication,
the statutory auditors have expressed
a positive assurance regarding the
information shown in this document.

6.2 ORGANIZATION OF
THE IFRS STANDARDS
TRANSITION PROJECT
In order to meet the implementation
deadlines in the best possible conditions,
Technip has taken a certain number of
steps whose main characteristics are
presented below:
a) Stage 1: Key differences between IFRS
and French accounting standards
have been identified through a study
launched within the Group in 2003.
Summary findings have been submitted to Technip’s Audit Committee.
b) Stage 2: The main steps leading to
the preparation of the IFRS opening
balance sheet as of January 1, 2004
are listed below:
- During 2004, the Group’s finance
division finalized its IFRS accounting options and submitted
scenarios in successive Audit
Committee meetings to assess
the impact on equity of IFRS as at
January 1, 2004.
- Subsidiaries were informed of the
IFRS accounting options chosen
by the Group as well as the main
impacts they would have. They
were required to identify and
report the estimated impacts
that IFRS would have on their
accounts.The Group then compiled
those changes in a re-written
accounting principles manual that
was sent to all subsidiaries and
reviewed by statutory auditors.
- On February 2, 2005, Technip
issued a press release which provided preliminary unaudited estimates about the Group’s opening
balance sheet under IFRS as of
January 1, 2004 as well as the
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accounts.
- Opening balance sheet and shareholders’ equity reconciliations as of
January 1, 2004 under IFRS were
made public on April 14, 2005.
c) Stage 3: Presentation of 2004 Group
consolidated accounts and 2005
quarterly accounts under IFRS:
- Our first quarter 2005 un-audited results were compiled and
published pursuant to IFRS and
were compared to the 2004 first
quarter figures, which were restated according to IFRS. That restatement was not audited either.
- The current publication includes the
restated 2004 financial statements,
which are compliant with IFRS.

6.3 INTRODUCTION
TO THE NORMS
AND INTERPRETATIONS
APPLIED FOR THESE FIRST
FINANCIAL INFORMATION
UNDER IFRS
(a) Presentation of the Standards
within Technip’s Context
Technip has prepared the 2004 financial statements pursuant to IFRS interpretations and norms that the Group
believes are to be applied to get comparative figures for the 2005 consolidated accounts. This 2004 financial
information mentioned in the previous notes result from:
• The IFRS framework and interpretations, which application is mandatory
as of December 31, 2005, as known
at date;
• The technical matters and ongoing
projects currently discussed by the
IASB (International Accounting
Standards Board) and the IFRIC
(International Financial Reporting
Interpretation Committee), which
have been foreseen by the Group and
which could be applied for the release
of 2005 consolidated accounts;

• As mentioned in paragraph 6.3) (b) a),
the options taken and the exemptions
used by the Group for its first IFRS
consolidated accounts in 2005;
• As mentioned in paragraph 6.3) (b) b),
the option taken by the Group to
apply the IAS 32 and 39 only on
January 1, 2005, as allowed by the
regulators.
(b) First-Time Adopter’s Options
a) Main Options Chosen under IFRS 1
As from January 1, 2004, the IFRS have
been applied retroactively. The IFRS 1
regulation governs the first time adoption of IFRS and offers options to the
first time adopter. In this context,
Technip elected for some exemptions
permitted by the IFRS1, as follow:
• Business combinations (IFRS 3):
Technip has decided not to restate
business combinations prior to
January 1, 2004.
• Fair value or revaluation as a deemed
cost (IAS 16): Technip has decided
not to record the fair value or revaluation of its assets as a deemed
cost. On the other hand, Technip has
analyzed and occasionally revised
the depreciation periods and residual
values of its main assets.
• Employee benefits (IAS 19): Technip
has decided to book against shareholders’ equity unrecorded actuarial
variances at the IFRS transition date
and to subsequently apply the “corridor” method to any actuarial variances generated thereafter.
• Cumulative translation adjustments
(IFRS 1): as of January 1, 2004,Technip
has decided to assume that the
amount of the cumulative translation adjustments for all its activities
abroad was nil.
• Share based payments (IFRS 2):
Technip has applied IFRS retroactively
to all stock options attributed before
January 1, 2004, including the ones
granted after November 7, 2002.
• Technip has taken the option to
apply IFRS 4 to insurance contracts
as of January 1, 2004. The application
of this standard does not impact
Technip’s accounts as of January 1,

2004 and December 31, 2004.
• For the other standards, the restatement of assets and liabilities as of
January 1, 2004 was performed
retrospectively as though these
standards had always been applied.
b) IAS 32/39
Technip has decided to apply IAS
32/39 starting January 1, 2005. The
main estimated impacts of these standards on 2005 Group accounts are
described below:
• Accounting for convertible bond
OCEANE in accordance with the
split accounting method (splitting
the bond into a separate debt and
a shareholders’ equity component),
which results in an increase in shareholders’ equity estimated at about
€35 million as of January 1, 2005.
This accounting treatment should
generate an additional annual financial expense of around €17 million
in both 2005 and 2006, without any
cash impact.
• Marking to market financial instruments (mainly the Group’s foreign
exchange risk hedging contracts) and
recording incurred currency translation adjustments in the balance sheet
and profit and loss statement.
(c) Main Changes in Technip
Accounting Principles
Following are the main differences for
Technip in terms of accounting regulations and principles between the IFRS
and the French framework:
a) Presentation of Financial
Statements (IAS 1)
The accounts under French standards
are presented in IFRS format to highlight the distinction between current
and non-current assets and liabilities,
according to their maturity.
The main restatement relative to IAS 1
as applied to Technip consolidated
accounts is the cancellation of deferred expenses. All residual deferred
expenses as of December 31, 2003 are
therefore directly cancelled and offset
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against shareholders’ equity in the
opening balance sheet as of January 1,
2004, with the exception of deferred
expenses and the reimbursement
premium related to the convertible
bonds issue which is treated in a
specific way as of January 1, 2005
pursuant to IAS 32 on compound
financial instruments.
b) Construction Contracts (IAS 11)
The application of IAS 11 to Technip’s
accounts entails the following adjustments:
Overhead expenses have been reallocated so that the costs of “functional”
activities are no longer attributable to
contract costs (as opposed to “operating” activities which directly contribute added value to contracts). These
functional costs are therefore expensed entirely during the period they are
incurred.
Bid costs on contracts are capitalized
on a contract-by-contract basis when
there is a strong probability that the
contract will be awarded. In the opposite case, these costs are expensed
entirely during the period they are
incurred.
Provisions for future costs on contracts
delivered, as booked in the previous
fo r m a t o f Fr e n c h c o n s o l i d a t e d
accounts, are restated as “Accrued
Expenses” upon provisional acceptance
(or at another contractual milestone
signifying the delivery of the
contract).
Margins on certain minor contracts
previously recorded in accordance
with the completed method are henceforth processed in accordance with
the percentage of completion method.
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Furthermore, in accordance with articles 41 to 43 of IAS 11, balance sheet
assets and liabilities must present the
“Due from Clients” and “Due to
Clients” amounts.
When applicable, balance sheet liabilities must mention “Advance Payments
Received from Clients” under each
contract on a contract-by-contract
basis for all construction contracts in
progress at the closing date. This can
be summarized as follows:
Any surplus amount collected in
excess of sales, as per contract terms
and conditions, corresponds to the
“Advance Payments Received from
Clients” item.
The difference between:
(i) The total costs incurred together
with the recognized gross margin
under the Group’s accounting methods
(less provisions for foreseeable losses
on contract when applicable), and
(ii) The progress billings under the
contract terms limited to work performed as measured by the revenue
recognized under the Group’s accounting methods is the “Due from
Clients” item or “Due to Clients”
depending on whether the difference
is positive or negative.
c) Property, Plant & Equipment (IAS 16)
Application of IAS 16 on Technip
accounts has resulted in the following
reviews and adjustments:
• The values used as a basis of calculation for depreciation amounts have
been reviewed and where necessary
written off, if a residual value remained at the end of their useful life.
• Analysis of asset use periods has led
in some cases to reviewing the depreciation schedules according to the
useful lives of the main components.

In accordance with French accounting
standards, the Group’s consolidated
accounts include a “Provision for Dry
Docking” to cover inspection, major
revision and replacements costs and
expenses. This provision corresponds to
the maintenance expenses it plans to
incur on it vessels.
In accordance with IFRS, dry docking
expenses are analyzed as specific vessel
components. They must therefore be
capitalized and give rise to depreciation
over a period defined by the period
between two dry docking inspections
(between 3 and 5 years).
This new method has led the Group to
reverse from January 1, 2004 all dry
docking provisions as recorded in its
consolidated balance sheet as at
December 31, 2003.
d) Leases (IAS 17)
Technip has entered into a 12-year
lease for its head office at La Défense
(Paris, France) effective March 1, 2003.
Under the terms of the lease, Technip
was entitled to take advantage of the
first year of occupancy at no charge.
In the consolidated accounts under
French GAAP, no rental expense was
booked for the first year of occupancy.
Under IFRS, an annual rental expense
for the entire 12-year lease duration
has been determined on the basis
of a total lease value. This has led
the Group to record a rental charge
corresponding to the first year of
occupancy in its opening balance
sheet as of January 1, 2004.
e) Employee Benefits (IAS 19)
As permitted under French accounting practices, Technip did not book
“Employee Benefits” obligations in its
consolidated balance sheet. Instead
these were disclosed according to the
2003 R-01 CNC recommendation as
“Off Balance Sheet Items”.
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Under IFRS, retirement plans and
company benefits granted to the
Group’s workforce must give rise to
actuarial valuations in accordance
with a shared and harmonized process,
especially in terms of the valuation
assumptions and methods. Moreover,
hedging assets must be booked at
their fair value.
Technip appointed an independent
actuary to exhaustively analyze the
Group’s social liabilities and to value

these commitments in compliance
with IAS 19. This project’s report, issued
at the end of March 2005, assessed the
impact of IAS 19 on the opening balance sheet as of January 1, 2004.
Consequently, the Group recorded in
its opening balance sheet as of
January 1, 2004 the total actuarial
gains and losses, which were not
booked at the transition date.

f) Current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Activities (IFRS 5)
Under IFRS 5, the assets and liabilities
related to companies or activities
in the process of being sold must be
presented on distinct lines of the
consolidated balance sheet. This standard requires valuation at the lowest
current book value and disposal value,
less sale costs, while the write-off of
the transferred assets is also suspended.
This rule has no impact either on the
opening balance as of January 1,
2004, or on the closing balance as of
December 31, 2004.
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6.4 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF JANUARY 1, 2004
(a) Shareholders’ Equity Reconciliation Table: French GAAP to IFRS
French
GAAP
12/31/2003

(In millions of Euro)

Notes

Consolidated Shareholders’ Equity
Common Stock
72.4
Paid-in-Surplus
1,250.4
Treasury Shares
(9.7)
Foreign Currency
Translation Reserve
(1.9)
Retained Earnings
646.5
Net Income / (Loss)
(19.7)
Shareholders’ Equity
1,938.0
Minority Interests
9.2

IAS 1

IAS 11

IAS
2/16/37

IAS 17

IAS 19

Other
Standards
(incl. IAS 12)

Total
Restatements

IFRS
01/01/2004

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(g)

-

-

-

-

-

(0.1)
-

(0.1)
-

72.4
1,250.3
(9.7)

(13.7)
(13.7)
-

(13.3)
(13.3)
-

23.8
23.8
-

(20.3)
(20.3)
-

(29.3)
(29.3)
-

1.9
0.5
2.3
0.3

1.9
(52.3)
(50.5)
0.3

594.2
(19.7)
1,887.5
9.5

(b) Balance Sheet Reconciliation Table: French GAAP to IFRS
French
GAAP
12/31/2003

(In millions of Euro)

IAS 1

IAS 11

IAS
2/16/37

IAS 17

IAS 19

IFRS 5

Other
Standards
(incl. IAS 12)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

2,497.0
738.5
2.1
8.4
120.1
3,366.1

(0.8)
(3.0)
20.9
17.1

-

0.1
20.3
20.4

-

13.9
(3.3)
10.6

(4.0)
(18.1)
(0.5)
131.0
108.4

73.6

-

(5.3)

(2.7)

-

-

- (6,014.7)
(33.5)
(89.7)
(89.7) (6,053.5)
(72.6) (6,053.5)

(2.7)
17.7

-

Notes

Non-Current Assets
Intangible Assets, Net
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net
Equity Affiliates
Other Financial Assets
Deferred Tax Assets
Assets Held for Sale
Non-Current Assets
Current Assets
Inventories, Net
Construction Contracts Amounts Due from Clients
Advances to Suppliers
Accounts Receivable, Net
Current Income Tax
Other Current Assets, Net
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS
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6,368.2
244.6
755.6
39.8
267.8
892.4
8,642.0
12,008.1

Total
Restatements

IFRS
01/01/2004

(4.6)
0.1
4.4
(0.2)
10.0
9.7

(9.3)
2.3
4.4
(3.7)
44.8
127.7
166.2

2,487.7
740.8
6.5
4.7
164.9
127.7
3,532.3

(0.7)

-

(8.7)

64.9

- (36.4)
- (40.8)
(6.4)
- (24.1)
- (108.4)
10.6
-

(2.3)
0.1
46.3
(42.0)
2.1
11.8

(6,051.1)
(2.3)
(74.2)
46.3
(138.1)
(24.1)
(6,252.2)
(6,086.0)

317.1
242.3
681.4
86.1
129.7
868.3
2,389.8
5,922.1
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(In millions of Euro)

French
GAAP
12/31/2003

IAS 1

IAS 11

IAS
2/16/37

IAS 17

IAS 19

IFRS 5

Other
Standards
(incl. IAS 12)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

72.4
1,250.4
(9.7)
(1.9)
646.5
(19.7)
1,938.0
9.2

(13.7)
(13.7)
-

(13.3)
(13.3)
-

23.8
23.8
-

(20.3)
(20.3)
-

(29.3)
(29.3)
-

-

800.0
187.7
101.2
162.5
1,251.4

(58.9)
(58.9)

0.1
0.1

(6.1)
(6.1)

-

39.9
39.9

226.3
222.9
7,047.8
783.1

(98.9)
- (6,039.7)
-

-

-

111.3
418.1
8,809.5

16.1
82.2
- (6,040.3)

-

12,008.1

(72.6) (6,053.5)

17.7

Notes

Shareholders’ Equity
Common Stock
Paid-in-Surplus
Treasury Shares
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
Retained Earnings
Net Income / (Loss)
Minority Interests
Non-Current Liabilities
Convertible Bond
Other Financial Liabilities
Provisions
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Liabilities Held for Sale
Non–Current Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Short-Term Debt
Provisions
Advances Received
Accounts Payable
Construction Contracts Amounts Due to Clients
Current Income Tax
Other Current Liabilities
Current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Total
Restatements

IFRS
01/01/2004

(0.1)
1.9
0.5
2.3
0.3

(0.1)
1.9
(52.3)
(50.5)
0.3

72.4
1,250.3
(9.7)
594.2
(19.7)
1,887.5
9.5

(14.9)
109.4
94.5

(1.8)
(0.1)
7.7
5.8

(58.9)
(1.8)
18.9
7.7
109.4
75.3

741.1
185.9
120.1
170.2
109.4
1,326.7

-

(6.6)
(32.4)
(36.1)

1.9
0.2
(0.8)
0.1

1.9
(105.3)
(6,072.9)
(36.0)

228.2
117.6
974.9
747.1

20.3
20.3

-

(19.4)
(94.5)

2.0
3.4

16.1
85.1
(6,111.1)

16.1
111.3
503.2
2,698.4

-

10.6

-

11.8

(6,086.0)

5,922.1
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(c) Notes on the Main
Restatements
a) IAS 1: the impact on the opening
shareholders’ equity amounts to
(€13.7) million and includes the
cancellation of deferred expenses
for (€4.2) million net of tax as well
as the cancellation of foreign
exchange unrealized gains for
(€9.5) million net of tax.
Under the assets of the balance sheet,
cancellation of other receivables totaling (€89.7) million relates to:
• The reclassification of the redemption premium and issuance costs
related to the convertible bond issue
entered under the assets for respective amounts of €51.6 million and
€7.3 million, less the convertible
bond issue entered under the liabilities;
• The cancellation of cumulative
translation adjustments in the
assets for a total of €9.5 million;
• The cancellation of the amount of
deferred tax asset on the reclassification of costs incurred to acquire
Coflexip net of tax into the value of
securities for €16.8 million;
• The cancellation of deferred expenses,
net of tax, €4.5 million.
The balance sheet liabilities include
expenses related to the convertible
bond issue for (€58.9) million, corresponding to (€51.6) million under
the redemption premium net of
write-offs recorded in the assets and
outstanding expenses to be allocated
to the issuance costs for (€ 7.3)
million.
b) IAS 11: the impact on the opening
shareholders’ equity amounts to
(€13.3) million and includes the
following restatements on construction contracts:
• Reallocation under overhead expenses
previously allocated to building
contracts for a total of (€ 9.9)
million;
• Allocation to bid costs previously
recorded under contract costs for
(€3.8) million;
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• Margin recognition according to
the p e rc e n t a ge o f c o m p l e t i o n
method on certain minor contracts
previously accounted for under the
completed method, i.e. a positive
impact of €0.4 million.
Regarding the presentation of the
consolidated balance sheet, the items
related to assets on construction
contracts (including the margin and
any foreseeable losses) are offset with
progress payments on contracts under
the liabilities as previously described.
This results in reclassifying €6,014.7
million under the assets and €6,023.6
million under the liabilities.
Moreover, “Provisions for Future
Costs” on delivered contracts have
been reclassified under “Accrued
Expenses” for €70.4 million.
c) IAS 2, 16 & 37: The impact on the
opening shareholders’ equity of IAS
16, IAS 2 and IAS 37 amounts to
€ 23.8 million of which € 12.2
million correspond to the writeback of provisions for “dry docking”
for €6.1 million on one hand, and
the capitalization of “dry docking”
expenses for €6.1 million on the
other hand. The increase in net
value of fixed assets comes from
the revaluation of factories and
vessels, i.e. €11.7 million.
Moreover, the effects identified pursuant to IAS 2 regarding inventories
have been presented with the IAS 16
incidences for the sake of simplification.
These adjustments relate to the
reclassification of certain spare parts
from inventory to fixed assets accounts
for a gross value of € 2.7 million
together with an additional
depreciation amount of €0.2 million.
As a result, the net book value of
spare parts therefore amount to
€2.5 million.
d) IAS 17: The impact on the opening
shareholders’ equity, i.e. €20.3
million before income tax, cor-

responds to the adjustment on the
Technip building rent for the first
year of occupancy as previously
described. This adjustment results
in the recognition of a debt of
€20.3 million against shareholders’
equity. The corresponding income
tax impact is presented under the
IAS 12 heading “Income Tax” for
€7.2 million.
e) IAS 19: Adjustments corresponding
to the valuation of employee
benefits and the booking of total
actuarial gains and losses not
recognized at the transition date
have entailed recording a net tax
impact of (€29.3) million on the
opening shareholders’ equity. This
results in the consolidated balance
sheet in:
• Recording additional provisions for
employee benefits, net of hedging
assets, for € 39.9 million under
liabilities;
• Booking a deferred tax asset of €13.9
million as well as deducting from
“Assets Held for Sale” the reversal of
provisions for employee benefits
(€3.3 million) associated to companies being sold off under assets.
f) IFRS 5: under this standard the
balance sheet must distinctly present the assets and liabilities related
to companies being held for sale as
of January 1, 2004. None of these
reclassifications impacts the opening
shareholder’s equity.
This mainly concerns the shareholdings in EHR, IG Spa and KTI Spa for
75%, which were disposed of in 2004.
This heading also contains office buildings (located in Boulogne and
Westhill) for €13.1 million. These
assets, deducted at their net values
and reclassified from “Property, Plant
and Equipment” to “Assets Held for
Sale”, were disposed of during 2004.
The balance of property, plant and
equipment undergoing reclassification
and totaling €5.0 million relates to
the previously mentioned companies.
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g) Other standards, in particular
IAS 12: the main aim is to reflect
the income tax impact of other
standards and certain reclassifications in the balance sheet:
The IAS 12 impact on shareholders’
equity is an increase of €2.3 million
mainly corresponding to the tax
effects calculated on additional
adjustment, except for the ones related
to social liabilities, which are presented
net of taxes (see e)). The tax impact
of other standards relates to the
following IFRS adjustments:
• Recognition of a deferred tax asset
of €7.2 million on the additional
rental charge booked on the Technip
building (see d).
• Recognition of a deferred tax asset
on adjustments related to construction contracts for €4.4 million.
• Cancellation of a negative deferred
tax asset of (€1.6) million as a result
of the capitalization of dry docking
expenses.

• Recognition of a deferred tax liability
of €7.7 million on the adjustment
on Property, Plant and Equipment
(see c)).
• The reclassification of cumulative
translation adjustments within shareholders’ equity (€1.9) million.
• Inclusion of the goodwill amount in
the value of securities accounted for
under the equity method. (IAS 28
“Accounting for investments in associates”). The goodwill amounts recognized following the acquisition of
securities accounted for under the
equity method were previously
booked as intangible assets under
French GAAP. This adjustment applies
to Nargan securities, whic h in
this specific instance underwent a
revaluation of €4.4 million.
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6.5 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2004
(a) Shareholders’ Equity Reconciliation Table: French GAAP to IFRS
(In millions of Euro)

French
GAAP
12/31/2004

Notes

Consolidated Shareholders’ Equity
Common Stock
73.5
Paid-in-Surplus
1,275.6
Treasury Shares
(32.4)
Foreign Currency
Translation Reserve
(25.0)
Retained Earnings
492.6
Net Income / (Loss)
4.7
Shareholders’ Equity
1,789.0
Minority Interests
10.4

IAS 1

IAS 11

IAS
2/16/37

IAS 17

IAS 19

IFRS 2

IFRS 3

Other
Total
IFRS
Standards Restatements 12/31/2004
(incl. IAS 12)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

(h)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

73.5
1,275.6
(32.4)

(13.7)
(5.9)
(19.6)
-

(13.3)
(9.5)
(22.8)
-

23.8
0.1
23.9
-

(20.3)
(1.7)
(22.0)
-

(29.3)
2.5
(26.8)
-

5.6
(5.8)
(0.2)
-

116.6
116.6
-

(9.3)
12.0
10.8
13.5
(0.6)

(9.3)
(35.2)
107.1
62.6
(0.6)

(34.3)
457.4
111.8
1,851.6
9.8

(b) Balance Sheet Reconciliation Table: French GAAP to IFRS
(In millions of Euro)

French
GAAP
12/31/2004

IAS 1

IAS 11

IAS
2/16/37

IAS 17

IAS 19

IFRS 2

IFRS 3

(*)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

(h)

(0.7)
(3.1)
14.4
10.6

-

(0.3)
22.5
22.2

-

12.7
12.7

-

116.6
116.6

(6.8)
(0.9)
6.4
0.7
(40.7)
(41.3)

108.8
21.6
6.4
(2.4)
(13.6)
120.8

2,472.7
736.5
19.9
3.4
66.6
3,299.1

-

(8.3)

(2.7)

-

-

-

-

-

(11.0)

87.2

-

-

-

-

-

(0.1)

(2.7)
19.5

-

12.7

-

116.6

27.4
0.4
27.7
(13.6)

(6,192.8)
(0.1)
(245.8)
27.6
(54.3)
(6,476.4)
(6,355.6)

400.6
249.3
349.0
137.1
461.3
1,434.0
3,118.5
6,417.6

Notes

Non-Current Assets
Intangible Assets, Net
2,363.9
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net
714.9
Equity Affiliates
13.5
Other Financial Assets
5.8
Deferred Tax Assets
80.2
Assets Held for Sale
Non-Current Assets
3,178.3
Current Assets
Inventories, Net
98.2
Construction Contracts Amounts Due from Clients
6,593.4
Advances to Suppliers
249.4
Accounts Receivable, Net
594.8
Current Income Tax
109.5
Other Current Assets, Net
515.6
Cash and Cash Equivalents
1,434.0
Current Assets
9,594.9
TOTAL ASSETS
12,773.2

0.2
(62.7)
(62.5)
(51.9)

(6,192.8)
(245.8)
8.0
(6,438.9)
(6,438.9)

Other
Total
IFRS
Standards Restatements 12/31/2004
(incl. IAS 12)

* The breakdown of current and non-current assets appears in the “French GAAP” column to comply with the IFRS balance sheet format.
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(In millions of Euro)

Notes

Shareholders’ Equity
Common Stock
Paid-in-Surplus
Treasury Shares
Foreign Currency
Translation Reserve
Retained Earnings
Net Income / (Loss)
Minority Interests
Non-Current Liabilities
Convertible Bond
Other Financial Liabilities
Provisions
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Liabilities Held for Sale
Non–Current Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Short-Term Debt
Provisions
Advances Received
Accounts Payable
Construction Contracts Amounts due to Clients
Current Income Tax
Other Current Liabilities
Current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

French
GAAP
12/31/2004

IAS 1

IAS 11

IAS
2/16/37

IAS 17

IAS 19

IFRS 2

IFRS 3

Other
Total
IFRS
Standards Restatements 12/31/2004
(incl. IAS 12)

(*)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

(h)

73.5
1,275.6
(32.4)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

73.5
1,275.6
(32.4)

(25.0)
492.6
4.7
1,789.0
10.4

(13.7)
(5.9)
(19.6)
-

(13.3)
(9.5)
(22.8)
-

23.8
0.1
23.9
-

(20.3)
(1.7)
(22.0)
-

(29.3)
2.5
(26.8)
-

5.6
(5.8)
(0.2)
-

116.6
116.6
-

(9.3)
12.0
10.8
13.5
(0.6)

(9.3)
(35.2)
107.1
62.6
(0.6)

(34.3)
457.4
111.8
1,851.6
9.8

706.9
735.5
78.9
144.8
1,666.1

(36.0)
2.3
(33.7)

1.2
1.2

(4.5)
(4.5)

-

39.5
39.5

-

-

0.2
(29.3)
(29.1)

670.9
737.8
115.3
115.5
1,639.5
192.0
121.5
915.6
852.5

194.4
243.8
7,353.6
852.5

(2.3)
- (122.3)
- (6,438.0)
-

-

-

-

-

-

(0.1)
-

(36.0)
2.3
36.4
(29.3)
(26.6)
(2.4)
(122.3)
(6,438.0)
-

27.6
635.8
9,307.7

33.1
3.7
109.9
1.4 (6,417.3)

0.1
0.1

22.0
22.0

-

0.2
0.2

-

2.7
2.6

33.1
2.7
135.9
(6,391.0)

33.1
30.3
771.7
2,916.7

12,773.2

(51.9) (6,438.9)

19.5

-

12.7

-

116.6

(13.6)

(6,355.6)

6,417.6

* The breakdown of current and non-current liabilities appears in the “French GAAP” column to comply with the IFRS balance sheet format.
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(c) Income Statement Reconciliation Table: French GAAP to IFRS
French
GAAP
12/31/2004

IAS 1

(*)

Revenues
5,141.0
Cost of Sales
(4,472.4)
Gross Margin
668.6
Depreciation and Amortization
other than Goodwill
(116.2)
Other Operating Income
Research and Development Expenses
(30.2)
Selling Costs
(96.8)
Administrative Costs
(166.9)
Other Operating Expenses
(21.2)
Goodwill Amortization
(117.3)
Income / (Loss) from Operations
120.0
Financial Expenses
(70.6)
Financial Income
16.3
Share of Income / (Loss)
of Associates Accounted
for using the Equity Method
1.2
Income / (Loss) before Tax
66.9
Income Tax Expense
(65.0)
Income / (Loss)
from Discontinued Operations
5.2
Net Income / (Loss) for the Year
7.1
Attributable to:
Shareholders of the Parent Company
4.7
Minority Interests
2.4

(In millions of Euro)

Notes

IAS 11

IAS
2/16/37

IAS 17

IAS 19

IFRS 2

IFRS 3

Other
Total
IFRS
Standards Restatements 12/31/2004
(incl. IAS 12)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

(h)

(88.2)
(88.2)

(0.2)
(4.1)
(4.3)

(12.8)
(12.8)

-

(0.3)
(0.3)

-

-

0.1
0.1

(0.1)
(105.4)
(105.5)

5,140.9
(4,577.8)
563.1

103.3
4.8
(13.9)
(4.6)
1.4
(7.3)
-

(1.7)
(2.3)
(1.0)
(0.2)
(9.5)
-

12.9
0.1
-

(1.7)
(1.7)
-

5.0
4.7
(4.6)
-

(5.8)
(5.8)
-

116.6
116.6
-

0.1
(0.2)
-

116.2
3.1
(2.3)
(16.6)
(5.6)
116.6
105.9
(12.1)
-

3.1
(30.2)
(99.1)
(183.5)
(26.8)
(0.7)
225.9
(82.7)
16.3

(5.9)
-

(9.5)
-

0.1
-

(1.7)
-

0.1
(0.9)

(5.8)
-

116.6
-

(0.1)
11.7

93.8
10.8

1.2
160.7
(54.2)

(5.9)

(9.5)

0.1

(1.7)

3.3
2.5

(5.8)

116.6

(0.8)
10.8

2.5
107.1

7.7
114.2

(5.9)
-

(9.5)
-

0.1
-

(1.7)
-

2.5
-

(5.8)
-

116.6
-

10.8
-

107.1
-

111.8
2.4

* The non operating charge (16.1 million euros) disclosed in “French GAAP” has been reclassified in the “French GAAP” column as follows to comply with the
IFRS format:
- 5.2 million euros in Income/Loss from discontinued operations,
- (21.3) million euros in Income/Loss from operations.
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(d) Notes on the Main
Restatements
a) IAS 1: the impact on the opening
balance shareholders’ equity
amounts to (€13.7) million. The
impact on the profit and loss
result amounts to (€5.9) million
and correspond to the following
restatements:
• Cancellation of the unrealized
exchange losses posted on the
balance sheet (€0.6) million;
• Cancellation of deferred expenses
(€2.7) million of which (€2.0) million
are related to the reimbursement
premium and issuance cost related
to the convertible bond less the
depreciations posted in 2004 as per
French GAAP, which were reclassified to equity accounts as of January
1, 2004 for €1.1 million;
• The restatement of the exchange losses recognized by the Offshore activity in French GAAP (€3.7) million.
On the asset side of the balance
sheet, the unrealized exchange difference included in “Other Financial
Assets” was cancelled for (€ 3.1)
million via the equity accounts. That
amount is related to the cancellation
of the unrealized exchange difference
incurred by the offshore division by
year-end 2003.
There is an additional amount of
deferred tax asset for €14.4 million
coming from a reclassification of
deferred tax related to Coflexip acquisition costs €16.8 million partially
offset by a decrease of deferred tax
assets of (€2.4) million attached to
the restatement of the unrealized
exchange differences.
On the line item “Other Current
Assets” an amount of (€62.7) million
has been cancelled. The main components are:
• The transfer from the asset side of
the balance sheet of the reimbursement premium and issuance cost
related to the convertible bond
OCEANE - respectively for (€32.1)

million and (€3.9) million – to the
account “Convertible Bond” on the
liability side;
• The cancellation of the unrealized
exchange losses for an amount of
(€13.3) million;
• The reclassification of deferred tax
asset related to Coflexip acquisition
costs for an amount of (€ 16.8)
million.
On the liability side of the balance
sheet, the related costs to the
convertible bond OCEANE have been
transferred for (€36.0) million. Broken
down, that amount corresponds to
the reimbursement premium for
(€32.1) million and to the issuance
cost for (€3.9) million. Under the
“Other Current Liabilities” line item,
the adjustment of (€3.7) million
represents the restatement of the
exchange difference recognized by the
Offshore activity in French GAAP.
As the option has been taken to show
the profit and loss statement by
function, the amortization line item
disappeared. The amount of amortization €116.2 million incurred by the
running of the operation has been
split among the cost of sales and the
general and administrative costs.
b) IAS11: The impacts on the retained
earning and the result accounts
amount respectively to (€13.3)
million and (€9.5) million. Those
amounts include the following
restatements related to the construction contracts:
• Overhead expenses related to functional activities, €3.4 million have
been reallocated, as they are no
longer attributable to contract costs;
• Bid costs on contracts are not capitalized any more, if there is not a
strong probability that the contract
will be awarded to Technip. Those
costs are expenses when incurred
(€12.9) million.
Regarding the lay out of the balance
sheet and the posting of the activities

related to construction contracts, the
French asset and liability accounts
have been offset and relocated to
comply with IFRS. From now on, the
booking of client payments, of invoicing and work in progress are done
through the accounts “Construction
contract – Due from Clients” on the
asset side and “Construction Contract
Due to Clients” on the liability side of
the balance sheet. Therefore those
restatements led to a total reclassification of €6,438.9 million on the
asset side, of which €6,192.8 million
related to the account “Construction
Contract – Due from Clients” and
€ 245.8 million under the “Trade
Receivables” line item. The counterpart
account for those reclassifications
is mainly “Construction Contract –
Due to Clients” for an amount of
€6,438.0 million.
Furthermore, the provisions for future
costs on contracts delivered have
been reclassified to the “Other
Current Liabilities” line item for an
amount of €79.9 million.
c) IAS 2, 16 & 37: The impact on the
retained earning account amounts
to €23.8 million of which €6.1
million corresponds to a release of
provision related to the dry docking
operations and €6.1 million coming
from the capitalization of dry
docking costs.
The impact on 2004 net income
amounts to €0.1 million and corresponds to the following restatements:
• Additional amortization on spare
parts which have been capitalized to
comply with IFRS: (€1.0) million
(see information below);
• Cancellation of the release of provision
related to the dry docking operations.
Under French GAAP, this release was
posted through a profit and loss
account: (€1.7) million;
• Additional amortization incurred by
the change of the useful life of fixed
assets located in the Trait factory:
(€0.6) million;
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• Cancellation of the dry docking
expenses incurred in the year as
they are capitalized. The impact has
been partially offset by the related
amortization. The net impact is
€6.8 million, and
• Additional amortization incurred by
the change of the useful life of ships:
(€3.4) million.
The increase of the net book value of
the tangible assets mainly comes
from the change of the useful life and
the residual value of the factory
industrial equipments and the ships,
i.e. €11.7 million.
Besides, due to the definitions given
by the IAS 2 and IAS 16, some spare
parts must not be considered as
inventory but as fixed assets.
Therefore a reclassification for €2.7
million has been posted, decreasing
the inventory line item and increasing
the fixed assets line item.
d) IAS 17: The impact on the retained
earning account amounts to
€20.3 million before income tax;
it corresponds to the adjustment
on the Technip building rent for
the first year of occupancy as previously described (see paragraph
3.d). This adjustment results in the
recognition of a debt of €20.3
million against shareholders’ equity.
The corresponding income tax
impact is presented under the IAS
12 heading “Income Tax” for €7.2
million. The impact on the 2004
result is an additional charge of
(€1.7) million partially offset by
the deferred tax effect of €0.6
million (that latter amount is
included in the column “h”).
Therefore, the cumulative effect of
those restatements amounts to a
liability of €22.0 million on the
closing balance.
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e) IAS 19: Adjustments corresponding
to the valuation of employee
benefits and the booking of total
actuarial gains and losses not
recognized at the transition date
have entailed recording a net tax
impact of (€29.3) million on the
opening shareholders’ equity. The
impact on the 2004 result amounts
to a profit of €2.5 million after tax
that comes from:
• A charge after tax of (€0.8) million
corresponding to the difference between the Group actuary calculation
done as per IAS 19 and the recognized
debts shown on the local books by
the subsidiaries.
• The profit of €3.3 million incurred
by the release of provision attached
to the subsidiaries sold in the course
of the year 2004. That amount is
now shown under the “Discontinued
Operations” line item in the profit
and loss account.
On the consolidated balance sheet,
those restatements lead to show:
• On the liability side, an additional
provision for employee benefits, of
€39.5 million;
• On the asset side a deferred tax
asset of €12.7 million.
f) IFRS 2: the adjustment required by
this standard on subscription
options leads to a recognition of an
additional charge of (€5.8) million
on the 2004 profit and loss
account, with an effect on the
retained earning of €5.6 million.
So, the net impact on the equity
accounts at the closing date
amounts to (€0.2) million. There
is no tax effect, as this charge is
not deductible.
g) IFRS 3: as requested by this stand a rd , i m p a i r m e n t t e s t s we re
performed in 2004. The results of
those tests show that no deprecia-

tion has to be booked. As a result,
the amortization of €116.6 million,
recorded in 2004 as per French
GAAP, has been reversed versus
the intangible assets concerned.
h) Other standards, in particular IAS
12: the main aim is to reflect the
income tax impact of other standards and certain reclassifications
in the balance sheet.
The IAS 12 impact on shareholders’
equity is an increase of €2.3 million
mainly corresponding to the tax effects
calculated on additional adjustments,
except for the ones related to social
liabilities, which are presented net of
taxes (see e)). The impact of the 2004
result amounts to €10.8 million and
corresponds to the income tax impact
of other standards.
The main reclassifications are related
to:
• As per IAS 12, the offset between
deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities for (€23.9) million;
• As per IAS 28, inclusion of the goodwill amount in the value of securities
accounted for under the equity
method. The total restatement
amounts to € 6.4 million at the
closing date.
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7. STATUTORY AUDITORS’ REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
This is a free translation into English of the Statutory Auditors’ report issued in the French language and is provided solely for
the convenience of English speaking readers. The Statutory Auditors’ report includes information specifically required by French
law in all audit reports, whether qualified or not. This information is presented below the opinion on the consolidated financial
statements and includes an explanatory paragraph discussing the auditors’ assessments of certain significant accounting and
auditing matters. These assessments were considered for the purpose of issuing an audit opinion on the consolidated financial
statements taken as a whole and not to provide separate assurance on individual account captions or on information taken
outside of the consolidated financial statements. The report also includes information relating to the specific verification of
information in the management report.
This report should be read in conjunction with, and construed in accordance with, French law and professional auditing standards
applicable in France.

Technip SA

Statutory Auditors’ report on the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended December 31, 2005
(Free translation of a French language original)
To the Shareholders,
Following our appointment as Statutory Auditors by your Annual Shareholders' Meeting, we have audited the accompanying
consolidated financial statements of Technip SA for the year ended December 31, 2005.
The consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors. Our role is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audit. These financial statements have been prepared for the first time in accordance
with IFRSs as adopted by the EU. They include comparative information restated in accordance with the same standards in
respect of financial year 2004, except for IAS 32 and IAS 39 which have been applied as from January 1, 2005 in accordance
with the option made available by IFRS 1.
I - Opinion on the consolidated financial statements
We conducted our audit in accordance with professional standards applicable in France. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by the management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statements presentation. We believe that our audit provides
a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the assets and liabilities and of the financial
position of the Group as at December 31, 2005, and of the results of its operations for the year then ended in accordance
with IFRSs as adopted by the EU.
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II - Justification of our assessments
In accordance with the requirements of article L.823-9 of the French Commercial Law (Code de commerce) relating to the
justification of our assessments, we bring to your attention the following matters:
• As indicated in notes 1.C.a and 1.C.b to the consolidated financial statements, Technip uses significant accounting estimates
to determine the margin at completion for each contract, in particular on the basis of the most recent available data.
Within the scope of our assessment of the significant estimates used to prepare the financial statements, we reviewed
the processes set up by the Company in this respect, assessed the data and assumptions used as a basis for these estimates,
and compared the accounting estimates of the previous periods with the corresponding actual figures.
• As indicated in notes 1.C.a and 1.C.d to the consolidated financial statements, Technip carries out impairment tests for
goodwill by using the discounted future cash flow method, as determined on the basis of strategic plans drawn up by
the Company and approved by the Management. Within the scope of our assessment of the significant estimates used to
prepare the financial statements, we reviewed the assumptions adopted, the calculations made by the Company and the
consistency of the methods used, and we ensured that note 12 provides adequate information in this regard.
• Technip SA accounts for retirement indemnities and related commitments as described in notes 1.C.l and 24 to the
consolidated financial statements. Most of these commitments have been valued by an external actuary. Within the scope of
our assessment of the significant estimates used to prepare the financial statements, we reviewed the data and assumptions
used by these actuaries and their conclusions, and ensured that note 24 provides adequate information in this regard.
We carried out an assessment of the reasonableness of these estimates. As mentioned in Note 1.C, as forecasts are inherently
uncertain, actual figures may sometimes vary significantly.
These assessments were made in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, and
therefore contributed to the opinion we formed which is expressed in the first part of this report.
III - Specific verification
In accordance with professional standards applicable in France, we have also verified the information given in the Group’s
management report. We have no matters to report as to its fair presentation and its consistency with the consolidated
financial statements.

Neuilly sur Seine, April 3, 2006
The Statutory Auditors
Members of the Compagnie Régionale de Versailles
Barbier, Frinault & Autres
Gilles Puissochet
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Part II

PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2005
1. PRELIMINARY NOTE
The statutory financial statements of
the parent company Technip hereafter
summarized disclose the main points
of the financial statement and the
operating results.
The main activity of Technip consists
in holding interests in affiliates,
receiving dividends, centralizing and
reinvoicing both management fees
and other organizational costs, such as
insurance, information systems costs
and financing costs and guarantees.

Following are the key events in 2005:
• The 4-for-1 share split and consequently, the multiplication by 4 of the
number of shares on the decision of
the Combined Shareholders’ Meeting
of April 29, 2005.
• The reclassification of a part of the
special reserve on long-term profits
in ordinary reserve for €200 million,
with an additional tax expense
amounting to 2.5% of the total
transfer.
• The disposal of the affiliate Technip
Portugal for €1.8 million, resulting
in a €3.7 million net loss before
reversal of the investment depreciation for €2.9 million accrued over
the previous years.

• Technip has maintained its repurchasing program on OCEANE convertible
bonds issued in January 2002. The
total nominal amount repurchased
on this bond loan decreased from
€632.2 million as of January 1, 2005
to €612.2 million as of December
31, 2005. The redemption premium
standed at € 72.3 million as of
December 31, 2005, versus €74.7
million as of December 31, 2004.
The complete version of the parent
company financial statements is available at the Company's headquarters.
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2. CONDENSED BALANCE SHEET AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2005
(before Allocation of Net Income)
(In millions of Euro)

ASSETS
Fixed Assets
Other Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Total Assets
(In millions of Euro)

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' Equity (excluding Net Income)
Net Income
Provisions
Financial Debts
Other Current Liabilities
Total Equity and Liabilities

Note

2005

2004

2003

6.1

3,304.3
230.8
20.9
3,556.0

3,173.9
230.2
2.3
3,406.4

3,161.8
331.0
13.0
3,505.8

Note

2005

2004

2003

6.3
6.4

1,829.1
105.7
17.8
1,561.4
42.0
3,556.0

1,697.8
104.2
23.7
1,550.5
30.2
3,406.4

1,792.1
8.3
49.8
1,611.3
44.3
3,505.8

6.2

3. CONDENSED INCOME STATEMENT AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2005
Note

(In millions of Euro)

Operating Income / (Loss)
Financial Income
Extraordinary Income / (Loss)
Income Tax and Employee Profit Sharing
Net Income
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6.6
6.7
6.8

2005
(5.1)
90.0
(6.4)
27.2
105.7

2004
30.9
54.1
(1.5)
20.7
104.2

2003
1.1
13.1
(0.1)
(5.8)
8.3

PARENT COMPANY
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4. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(In millions of Euro)

12.31.2005
(12 months)

12.31.2004
(12 months)

12.31.2003
(12 months)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Income
Amortization and Depreciation (Gross Change)
Increase / (Decrease) in Provisions
Dividends from Treasury Shares
Net (Gains) / Losses on Disposals of Assets
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATIONS
Changes in Working Capital
1) NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

105.7
36.4 (1)
(32.2)
3.7
113.6
(37.9)
75.7

104.2
27.6
(33.0)
(2.6)
96.2
31.1
127.3

8.3
33.1
100.3 (1)
0.2
0.2
142.1
(142.4) (12)
(0.3)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
(Purchases) / Disposals of Intangible Assets
(Purchases) / Disposals of Property, Plant and Equipment
(Purchases) / Disposals of Investments
2) NET CASH GENERATED FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(0.6)
(6.7)
0.8
(6.5)

(3.1)
(2.2)
(1.5)
(6.8)

(12.2)
6.6
(5.6)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase / (Decrease) in Short-Term Debt (Affiliates)
Changes in Treasury Shares
Increase / (Decrease) in Short-Term Debt
(Current Account Technip Eurocash)
Increase / (Decrease) in Long-Term Debt Credit Facility
Increase / (Decrease) in Long-Term Debt Bond Loan
Capital Increase and Issuance Premium
Capital Decrease and Issuance Premium
Dividends Paid
Exit Tax on Allocation of Retained Earnings on Long-Term Profits
3) NET CASH GENERATED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(75.8) (3)
(16.9) (2)

27.5 (7)
-

36.0
(0.6)
(20.0) (4)
63.8 (5)
(32.1) (6)
(5.0)
(50.6)

(568.6) (8)
(51.4) (9)
564.8 (8)
27.3(10)
(0.9)
(129.8) (6)
(131.1)

1) - 2) - 3) - NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH EQ.
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT AS OF JANUARY,1
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT AS OF DECEMBER, 31

18.6
2.2
20.8

(10.6)
12.8
2.2

1.0
11.8
12.8

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT
Cash and Marketable Securities
Short-Term Credit Lines

20.9
(0.1)

2.3
(0.1)

13.0
(0.2)

TOTAL

20.8

2.2

12.8

3.0
55.9
68.8 (13)
(42.7) (14)
(1.0)
(77.1)
6.9

(1) Including the amortization of expenses on CSO acquisition costs regarding the 2nd installment for €16 million and on issuing fees related to OCEANE
convertible bonds for €2 million and the redemption premium on OCEANE for €13.3 million.
(2) In 2005, following the reclassification of treasury shares under investments in 2004, treasury shares are disclosed on a separate line.
(3) Including a loan of U.S. $90 million (€76.4 million) to TECHNIP COFLEXIP USA HOLDING.
(4) Repurchase of 117,700 bonds on the first quarter of 2005.
(5) Issue of 2,465,664 shares through stock options exercised.
(6) Payment of the 2004 interim dividend for €47 million and remaining balance of €32 million in 2005.
(7) Including early redemption of three loans by SCI CB3 for €24 million.
(8) Issue of a bond loan in May 2004 for €650 million to reduce debts towards Technip Eurocash and repurchase of 489,742 convertible bonds in 2004.
(9) Installment A: €36 million and installment B: €36 million.
(10) Including employee subscription to capital increase (nominal €1 million and issuing premium €23 million).
(11) Including provision on investments for SCI CB3: €86 million.
(12) Including share of income in SCI CB3 for 2003: € 73 million.
(13) Installment A: €34 million and installment B: €34 million.
(14) Repurchase of 293,141 bonds in 2003
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5. NOTES ON ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
Accounting policies used by Technip in
preparing the financial statements
c o n fo r m t o ge n e ra l ly a c c e p t e d
accounting principles in France.
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In application of CRC 2004-06 regulation as of January 1, 2005, on the
definition, accounting and valuation
of assets, Technip has recognized the
full remaining part of expenses to be
amortized as charges of the period,
excepting the ones relating to issuing
fees that may be amortized over the
loan term.
In 2005, this accounting principle
generated an additional expense
before recording the tax impact of
approximately €7.1 million, of which
€6.9 million relate to CSO acquisition
costs on the second installment.

FOREIGN CURRENCY
TRANSACTIONS

Transactions in foreign currencies
related to financial revenues or
expenses are recorded in accordance
with current accounting policies.
At year-end, receivables and liabilities
are translated at the exchange rates
prevailing at balance sheet date and
any differences are recorded as unrealized exchange gains or losses.
If a potential loss is identified when
converting receivables and payables
at the closing exchange rate, a provision
for exchange risk is booked for the
same amount.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR
PROVISIONS ON AFFILIATES

Provisions on investments and related
receivables are recognized whenever
the gross carrying value of the investment is higher than the share held in
the shareholders' equity, which has
been adjusted in order to take into
account certain commitments entered
into by the parent company and the
prospects for development of the
subsidiary.
For the major subsidiaries, these
p ro spects are assessed on the basis
of forecasts of future cash flows, based
on the most likely scenarios adopted
by management.
All provisions for contingencies related
to subsidiaries are fully recorded
under financial expenses whether they
cover write-down of investments in
affiliated companies, related receivables
or the booking of additional provisions
for contingencies.
In financial result, waiver of debts
granted to subsidiaries, to the extent
covered by provisions, are offset by
the reversal of the relevant provision.
TREASURY SHARES

As of January 1, 2004, treasury shares
held by the Company have been
reclassified under other investments for
the net book value, according to the
n°98-D note from the CUCNC. As of
December 31, 2003, these shares
were recorded under marketable
securities.

At year-end, if the market value of
Technip share (computed on the basis
of the average closing prices for the
last month) is less than the gross
carrying amount of treasury shares at
the acquisition date, a provision for
depreciation is recognized for the
difference detected.
INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Intangible assets include softwares,
which are amortized over a period of
3 to 5 years, and software development
costs, when they fulfill the criteria of
eligibility as provided by the PCG.
Property, plant and equipment mainly
relate to a building located in Lyon
(land, building and fixture) and to the
Adria Tower (facilities and fixtures).
The straight-line amortization lifetimes
represent the useful lives estimated to
be likely by the Company:
Buildings: 25 years
Office fixtures and furniture:
8 to 10 years
EDP equipment: 3 years (gradual)
TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables are valued at their
nominal value. A provision for doubtful
accounts is recorded when receivables
are highly expected to be uncollectible.

PARENT COMPANY
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
6.1 – FIXED ASSETS
(In millions of Euro)

Gross

Amortization
& Depreciation

Net

12.31.2004
Intangible Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Investments
Total Fixed Assets as of December 31, 2004

4.7
20.1
3,313.8
3,338.6

1.8
6.1
156.8
164.7

2.9
14.0
3,157.0
3,173.9

13.0
19.0
3,410.2
3,442.2

2.9
8.2
126.8
137.9

10.1
10.8
3,283.4
3,304.3

12.31.2005
Intangible Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Investments
Total Fixed Assets as of December 31, 2005

The main changes on intangible assets relate to capitalized expenses on ERP integrated system for €7.7 million.
The main movements on financial investments relate to:
• The purchase of additional 5% relative to Technip Italy for €1.8 million;
• The purchase of additional 5% relative to TPL for € 0.8 million;
• The disposal of Technip Portugal for €(5.5) million;
• The reversal of the entire provision for investment depreciation relative to Technip Americas for €26.8 million and to
Technip Portugal for €2.9 million;
• The grant of a U.S. $90 million loan (€76.5 million) to Technip Coflexip USA Holding.

6.2 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(In millions of Euro)

Mutual Funds
Shares
Treasury Shares
Provisions
Premium on Options
Cash at Bank and in Hands
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

12.31.2005
4.6
16.3
20.9

12.31.2004
0.5
1.8
2.3

12.31.2003
1.1
9.7
1.9
0.3
13.0

As of December 31, 2004, treasury shares were reclassified under investments.
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6.3 – PROVISIONS
At year-end 2005, provisions mainly relate to miscellaneous expense items for €5.5 million, to foreign exchange losses for
€11.4 million and various contingencies for €0.4 million.

6.4 – FINANCIAL DEBTS
On the one hand, financial debts relate to the bond loan issued to finance the offer on Coflexip for an amount of €684.5
million (including the redemption premium for €72.3 million in gross value) and the bond loan issued in May 2004 for
€650.0 million (including the redemption premium for €1.9 million in gross value). On the other hand, these debts comprise
current accounts with Technip Eurocash SNC for €201.5 million.

6.5 – COMPENSATION PAID TO THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The amount of directors’ fees paid by Technip to members of the Board of Directors in 2005 was of €238,700. The gross
amount of compensation and benefits of all kinds paid by Technip to the members of the Board of Directors in 2005 was
of €1,076,660.
No loan has been granted to the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer over the year.

6.6 – FINANCIAL INCOME
Net financial income breaks down as follows :
(In millions of Euro)

Dividends from Investments
Net Balance of Financial Income and Expenses
Losses on Financial Assets, Net of Provisions
Net Balance of Provisions Related to Investments and Marketable Securities
Amortization of Aquisition Fees (1)
Amortization of Issuance Fees on OCEANE Convertible Bonds
Amortization of the OCEANE Redemption Premium
Reversal / (Allowance) of Provisions for Foreign Exchange Risk
Interests on OCEANE Bond Loan
Interests on Bond Loan
Financial Income / (Expenses)

12.31.2005
123.7
28.0
(16.2)
(2.0)
(13.6)
6.0
(6.1)
(29.8)
90.0

12.31.2004
119.8
(11.9)
0.9
2.7
(9.2)
(3.4)
(11.5)
(8.6)
(6.3)
(18.4)
54.1

(1) The increase in amortization relative to acquisition fees in 2005 comes from the application of CRC 2004-06 regulation (see Note 5 on Accounting
Principles).

The increase in financial income between 2004 and 2005 is mainly due to the following items:
• The reversal of provisions for investment depreciation of Technip Americas (€26.8 million) and Technip Portugal
(€2.9 million);
• The amortization of remaining expenses relative to the acquisition costs of CSO (€16 million in 2005 versus €9.2 million
in 2004);
• Interests on bond loan of €29.8 million in 2005 over a 12-month period versus €18.4 million in 2004 over a 7-month
period (however partially offset by the reduction in the financial charges relative to the debts towards the cash pooling).
Dividends from investments include, firstly, the revenues from subsidiaries and investments presented in Note 7 Subsidiaries and Investments and, secondly, the income of companies devoted to the performance of a contract not referred
to in the table of subsidiaries and investments.
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6.7 – EXTRAORDINARY INCOME / (LOSS)
Extraordinary income / (loss) essentially includes the net loss on investment disposal of Technip Portugal for €3.7 million
and the difference between taxable and accounting amortization for €1.5 million.

6.8 – INCOME TAX
Technip is the leading company of a consolidated tax group. Due to the non-taxation of dividends (parent company and
subsidiaries’ regime), Technip's tax income was negative. This tax deficit was set off against the tax income or loss of the
other companies within the consolidated tax group.
The final impact on income statement is as follows:
Technip (Sub-Group): €32.7 million
Technip (Leading Company): (€5.7) million
Other Affiliates: €0.2 million

6.9 – DISTRIBUTABLE RETAINED EARNINGS
Distributable retained earnings of Technip amounts to €314.5 million, after assessing the due income taxes as of December 31,
2005.
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7. SUBSIDIARIES AND INVESTMENTS
Common
Stock
Companies

Reserves
and Retained
Earnings
before
Allocation

Percentage
of
Ownership
(%)

Share Book-Value
Gross

Net

A-Detailed Informations Concerning
Investments for which Gross-Value
Exceeds 1% of the Reporting
Company's Common Stock
(or which are Considered as
Significant within the Group)
1/- Subsidiaries (more than 50%
of Common Stocks Held by TECHNIP)
TECHNIP FRANCE
EUR
6-8 Allée de l'Arche - Faubourg de l'Arche
92973 PARIS LA DEFENSE CEDEX
France

TECHNIP OFFSHORE INTERNATIONAL
6-8 Allée de l'Arche - Faubourg de l'Arche
92973 PARIS LA DEFENSE CEDEX
France
TECHNIP ITALY
68, Viale Castello della Magliana
00148 ROME
Italy

TPL - TECNOLOGIE PROGETTI LAVORI
75, Viale Castello della Magliana
00148 ROME
Italy
TECHNIP JAPAN K.K.
Level 28
Shinagawa Intercity Tower A
2-15-1, Konan, Minato-Ku
Tokyo 108-6028
Japan
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22,548,292

23,624,076

77.61%

42,238,744

42,238,744

EUR

6,300,934

815,013,735

100.00%

2,867,000,000

2,867,000,000

EUR

25,800,000

57,946,175

100.00%

22,102,689

22,102,689

EUR

9,030,000

1,607,701

100.00%

7,848,126

7,848,126

JPY
EUR

10,000,000
71,994

100.00%

72,233

72,233
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Outstanding
Loans
and
Advances
by Technip

Bonds Posted
and
Guarantees
given
by Technip

Revenues
of the
Last
Fiscal Year

Net Income
of the
Last
Fiscal Year

Dividends
Received
by
Technip

314,355,621
& parent company guarantees for
KEMAPCO / DAROU / EPC NANHAI /
DALIA / SIMIAN SAPPHI / EAST AREA /
BP ANGOLA / DOLPHIN ENERGY /
QATAR LIQUIFIED GAS

1,945,615,416

40,859,415

39,948,173

0

44,137,323

59,703,643

375,229,694

354,541

0

291,347

58,823

0

17,094,260
& parent company guarantees for
QVC / HAWIYAH SULPHUR /
ULG-LSGO / SULPHUR RECOVERY /
TAKREER / ABQAIQ / HARADH /
SABIC / QATIF / ORYX GTL / GASCO /
TERMOLI / RIYADH / QATAR GTL

Comments

1,071,994
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Common
Stock
Companies
TECHNIP TPS
24, Boulevard de l'Hôpital
75005 PARIS
France
TECHNIP IBERIA
Gran Via Carlos III - 97 J
08028 BARCELONE
Spain
S.C.I. CB3 DEFENSE
6-8 Allée de l'Arche - Faubourg de l'Arche
92973 PARIS LA DEFENSE CEDEX
France
TECHNIP CAPITAL
4, rue de Genève
EVERE
B-1140 BRUXELLES
Belgium
TECHNIP AMERICAS
1990 Post Oak Blvd, suite 200
77056 - 3846 HOUSTON , TEXAS
USA
TECHNIP INTERNATIONAL AG
Industriestrasse 13 C , Postfach 4339
CH 6304 ZOUG - SUISSE
Swiss
TECHNIP EUROCASH
6-8 Allée de l'Arche - Faubourg de l'Arche
92973 PARIS LA DEFENSE CEDEX
France
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EUR

914,694

Reserves
and Retained
Earnings
before
Allocation
181,834

Percentage
of
Ownership
(%)

Share Book-Value

EUR

588,223

243,593

99.99%

848,519

848,519

EUR

430,668

73,176

100.00%

86,147,570

0

EUR

19,286,116

(469,626)

100.00%

19,325,971

19,053,000

USD
EUR

58,000,010
49,165,050

(22,214,372)
(18,830,526)

100.00%
53,054,445

53,054,445

CHF
EUR

5,000,000
3,215,227

2,501,069
1,608,301

99.84%
3,081,820

3,081,820

EUR

300,000

0

60.00%

180,000

180,000

Gross

Net

99.94%

152,358

152,358
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Outstanding
Loans
and
Advances
by Technip

25,260,660

Bonds Posted
and
Guarantees
given
by Technip

Revenues
of the
Last
Fiscal Year

Net Income
of the
Last
Fiscal Year

Dividends
Received
by
Technip

5,677,888

1,074,929

1,980,000

4,261,715

60,892,159

1,055,746

2,199,780

19,208

39,695

(339,667)

0

237,000

0

0
0

6,888,356
5,544,038

0

(265,787)
(171,638)

0

Comments

(323,931)
(209,186)

943,364

0

1,190,468
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Common
Stock
Companies
TECHNIP TIANCHEN
521 Jing Jin Road
Tianjin 300400
China
TECHNIP C.I.S
20, rue Galernaya
190 000 SAINT PETERSBOURG
Russia
TECHNIP FAR EAST
Suite 13.03 - 13th floor
Menera Tan & Tan
KUALA LUMPUR
Malaysia
COFRI
16, Rue Henri Régnault
92973 PARIS LA DEFENSE CEDEX
France
TTIL SNC
6-8 Allée de l'Arche - Faubourg de l'Arche
92973 PARIS LA DEFENSE CEDEX
France
TECHNIP HOLDING BENELUX BV
Bredewater 26
2700 CA ZOETERMEER
Netherlands
TECHNIP GERMANY
Theodorstrasse. 90
D-40472 DUSSELDORF
Germany
TPG UK
1st floor, Sheraton house
Lower Road
CHORLEYWODD, Herts, WD3 5LH
United Kingdom
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CNY
EUR

6,630,296
696,430

RUB
EUR

1,900
56

MYR
EUR

Reserves
and Retained
Earnings
before
Allocation
22,938,758
2,409,432

Percentage
of
Ownership
(%)

Share Book-Value
Gross

Net

319,533

319,533

706,907

0

31,671

31,671

60.00%

(19,647,392)
(579,227)

70.00%

2,000,000
448,591

1,690,028
379,066

100.00%

EUR

670,776

47,904

99.99%

718,325

718,325

EUR

38,112

8,775,579

60.00%

22,867

22,867

EUR

9,089,080

95,631

100.00%

26,659,065

26,659,065

EUR

12,800,000

3,920,558

100.00%

100,231,017

62,431,017

GBP
EUR

5,000
7,296

452,094
659,702

90.00%
7,877

7,877
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Outstanding
Loans
and
Advances
by Technip

Bonds Posted
and
Guarantees
given
by Technip

1,181,966
& parent company guarantees for
CARIGALI TRITON
669,286
& parent company guarantees for
DALIA

4,819,000

Revenues
of the
Last
Fiscal Year

Net Income
of the
Last
Fiscal Year

Dividends
Received
by
Technip

82,498,145
8,110,971

(5,061,677)
(497,649)

0

108,178,756
3,078,002

6,781,456
192,952

0

134,057,712
28,487,883

(9,271,706)
(1,970,280)

0

7,457,024

1,020,773

0

N.C.

256,427

N.C.

8,963,762

8,007,340

1,005,000

110,634,062

(3,877,115)

3,920,059

0
0

(1,805)
(2,641)

Comments

& parent company guarantees for
AMENAM
35,627,542
& parent company guarantees for
YEMEN LNG / JAIRAH UAE /
DOLPHIN ENERGY
10,296

0
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Common
Stock
Companies
TECHNIP OVERSEAS
2nd floor, Swiss Bank BLDG
East 53rd street, MARBELLA
Republic of Panama
EUROBATCH
6-8 Allée de l'Arche - Faubourg de l'Arche
92973 PARIS LA DEFENSE CEDEX
France
SNPE INGENIERIE DEFENSE
6-8 Allée de l'Arche - Faubourg de l'Arche
92973 PARIS LA DEFENSE CEDEX
France
CITEX
Immeuble la Soie BP 48
69513 VAUX EN VELIN CEDEX
France
SEAL ENGINEERING
Centre Atria - 5, boulevard de Prague
30000 NIMES
France
PT TECHNIP INDONESIA
18th Floor, Manara Bank Danamon
Jl. Prof. Dr. Satrio Kav. E4 No.6
MEGA KUNINGAN JAKARTA 12950
Indonesia
TECHNIP NOUVELLE-CALEDONIE
Immeuble Carcopino
3000 NOUMEA CEDEX
New-Caledonia
ENGINEERING RE
Basteiplatz, 7
8001 - ZURICH
Swiss
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Reserves
and Retained
Earnings
before
Allocation
7,682,635
6,512,363

Percentage
of
Ownership
(%)

Share Book-Value
Gross

Net

10,465

10,465

99.76%

0

0

USD
EUR

10,000
8,477

EUR

38,112

EUR

38,112

5,379

99.96%

38,097

38,097

EUR

304,898

75,216

99.97%

1,219,592

1,219,592

EUR

70,000

285,429

99.76%

884,204

884,204

USD
EUR

1,100,000
932,440

38,829
32,914

60.00%
659,123

659,123

XPF
EUR

5,000,000
41,900

41,900

41,900

CHF
EUR

2,100,000
1,353,965

1,677,326

1,677,326

(658,448)

(13,147,000)
(110,172)

586,200
377,950

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%
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Outstanding
Loans
and
Advances
by Technip

900,000

Bonds Posted
and
Guarantees
given
by Technip

& parent company guarantees for
OGD II
160,930

9 495 082
& parent company guarantees for
CONOCO INDONESIA

150,000

1,067,212

Revenues
of the
Last
Fiscal Year

Net Income
of the
Last
Fiscal Year

Dividends
Received
by
Technip

N.C.
N.C.

N.C.
N.C.

N.C.

0

(437,835)

Comments

Données
au 31/12/2004

0

1,812,571

113,396

104,958

11,737,878

239,925

150,000

3,149,964

581,791

450,000

50,131,901
40,348,256

5,381,254
4,331,059

0

0
0

2,563,000
21,478

0

9,662,043
6,239,494

714,000
461,082

0
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Common
Stock
Companies
2/- Investments (10 to 50% of Common
Stock Held by TECHNIP
TPG (M)
MYR
2nd Floor, Wisma Inai
EUR
241, Jalan Tun Razak
50400 KUALA LUMPUR
Malaysia

INVERSIONES DINSA
Calle 1 con Calle 2 - Apartado 61248
La Urbina - CARACAS 10650
Venezuela
TSKJ SERVICOS DE ENGENHARIA LDA
&
LNG SERVICOS E GESTAO DE PROJECTOS
Avenida Arriaga n°77 - 4th floor
9000 FUNCHAL
Portugal
CONSORCIO CONTRINA SNC
6-8 Allée de l'Arche - Faubourg de l'Arche
92973 PARIS LA DEFENSE CEDEX
France
TECHNIP SAUDI ARABIA LTD
P.O. Box 60159
RIYADH 11545
Saudi Arabia
SPF - TKP OMIFPRO SNC
6-8 Allée de l'Arche - Faubourg de l'Arche
92973 PARIS LA DEFENSE CEDEX
France
SP - TKP FERTILIZER Srl
Viale de Gasperi 16
20097 SAN DONATO MILANESE
Italy
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Reserves
and Retained
Earnings
before
Allocation

Percentage
of
Ownership
(%)

Share Book-Value
Gross

Net

1,228,587

1,228,587

196,751

196,751

1,000,000
224,296

21,885,529
4,908,830

30.00%

VEB
EUR

1,808,954,000
714,107

46,946,073
18,533

20.00%

EUR
EUR

5,000
5,000

15,361,616

25.00%
25.00%

511
560

511
560

EUR

7,622

2,059,237

28.00%

2,134

2,134

SAR
EUR

5,000,000
1,130,097

2,500,000
565,048

40.00%
448,962

448,962

EUR

50,000

6,904,467

50.00%

25,000

25,000

EUR

50,000

5,563,621

50.00%

25,000

25,000
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Outstanding
Loans
and
Advances
by Technip

Bonds Posted
and
Guarantees
given
by Technip

838,470

37,575,332
& parent company guarantees for
EPMI UMBRELLA / LDPE 8991 /
OSBL-UCC / VIETNAM PVC / EPIC /
PVC KERTEH / CHUNXIAO GAS /
CARIGALI TRITON / PETRONAS

Revenues
of the
Last
Fiscal Year

Net Income
of the
Last
Fiscal Year

Dividends
Received
by
Technip

515,441,792
109,533,763

296,383
62,983

0

0
0

(27,753,339)
(10,645)

0

30,237,978
.& parent company guarantees for
TSKJ-NLNG TRAIN 4, 5 et 6

N.C.

N.C.

N.C.
N.C

& parent company guarantees for
SINCOR

N.C.

N.C.

N.C.

264,904,983
56,854,859

1,777,756
381,548

N.C.

N.C.

N.C.

15,790,600

3,762,187

0

28,388,494
& parent company guarantees for
HARADH / ABQAIQ /
SABIC / QATIF / RIYADH / KEMYA
20,285,458
& parent company guarantees for
OMAN INDIA FERTILIZER

Comments

694,635
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Common
Stock
Companies
NARGAN
202, Taleghani Avenue
TEHERAN
IRAN
TECHNIP ENGENHARIA
Rua Assuncao, 112
Botafogo
RIO DE JANEIRO
Brazil
T-CNIP DE MEXICO

IRR 12,000,000,000
EUR
1,113,896

BRL
EUR

10,729,241
3,913,496

MXP
EUR

50,000
3,989

Reserves
and Retained
Earnings
before
Allocation
27,685,979
2,570

34,712,519
12,661,409

Percentage
of
Ownership
(%)

Share Book-Value
Gross

Net

7,316,548

7,316,548

340,939

0

1,814

1,814

438,825
374,830

762
83,982

20.00%

10.90%

50.00%
50.00%

B- Other Subsidiaries and Investments
1/- Subsidiaries
a) French Subsidiaries :
b) Foreign Subsidiaries :
2/- Investments
a) French Investments :
b) Foreign Investments :
TOTAL :
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Outstanding
Loans
and
Advances
by Technip

Bonds Posted
and
Guarantees
given
by Technip

18,786,498
& parent company guarantees for
SEMI SUBMERS / PNBV P51 /
PNBV P52

2,573,707

3,228,684

Revenues
of the
Last
Fiscal Year

Net Income
of the
Last
Fiscal Year

Dividends
Received
by
Technip

726,837,752
65,357

80,049,238
7,198

418,581

162,474,409
53,927,506

(142,171,894)
(47,188,820)

Comments

0

33,096
1,004,1320

397,269
36,021,395
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8. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA ON THE LAST FIVE YEARS
(In millions of Euro)

NATURE OF INFORMATION
I - YEAR-END FINANCIAL STATEMENT
A) - Called-up Common Stock
Uncalled Common Stock
B) - Outstanding Shares (a)
C) - Outstanding Subshares
D) - Convertible Bonds

12.31.2001

12.31.2002

12.31.2003

12.31.2004

81.5
26,713,448
-

71.4
23,408,004
4,501,994

72.4
23,738,331
4,208,853

73.5
24,110,654
3,719,111

18.7

22.7

42.0

101.6

103.8

102.6
0.5

125.9
-22.4

144.0
5.8

78.1
-20.7

82.6
-27.2

95.7
79.7

105.8
77.1

8.3
82.3

104.2
78.4

105.7
79.6

II - OVERALL OPERATING INCOME
A) - Revenues before Tax
B) - Income before Tax,
Amortization and Depreciation
C) - Income Tax
D) - Income after Tax,
Amortization and Depreciation
E) - Dividends Paid

12.31.2005

75.4
98,874,172 (b)
3,601,411

III - OPERATING INCOME PER SHARE (in Euro)
A) - Net Income
before Amortization and Depreciation
B) - Net Income after Tax,
Amortization and Depreciation
C) - Dividends Paid per Share

3.8

6.3

5.8

4.1

1.1 (b)

3.6
3.3

4.5
3.3

0.3
3.3

4.3
3.3

1.1 (b)
0.8 (b)

IV - PAYROLL
A) - Number of Employees
B) - Wages and Salaries

9
4.4

9
4.9

9
4.1

9
5.5

9
6.7

(a) Do not include the stock options (subscription or purchase) from ongoing plans. Technip treasury shares representing 1,580,548 shares as of December 31,
2005, are classified under investments.
(b) On decision of the Combined Shareholders’ Meeting on April 29, 2005, the nominal share price was divided by 4 and the number of shares issued
mutlipied by four.
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9. STATUTORY AUDITORS’ REPORT
This is a free translation into English of the Statutory Auditors’ report issued in the French language and is provided solely for
the convenience of English speaking readers. The Statutory Auditors’ report includes information specifically required by French law
in all audit reports, whether qualified or not, and this is presented below the opinion on the financial statements. This information
includes an explanatory paragraph discussing the auditors’ assessments of certain significant accounting and auditing matters.
These assessments were considered for the purpose of issuing an audit opinion on the financial statements taken as a whole
and not to provide separate assurance on individual account captions or on information taken outside of the financial
statements.This report also includes information relating to the specific verification of information in the Group management
report.
This report should be read in conjunction with, and construed in accordance with, French law and professional auditing standards
applicable in France.

Technip SA
Statutory Auditors’ Report on the Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2005
(Free translation of a French language original)
In compliance with the assignment entrusted to us by your Annual Shareholders' Meeting, we hereby report to you, for the
year ended December 31, 2005, on:
- the audit of the accompanying financial statements of Technip SA*;
- the justification of our assessments;
- the specific verifications and information required by law.
These financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors. Our role is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit.
I - Opinion on the Financial Statements
We conducted our audit in accordance with professional standards applicable in France. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by the management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statements presentation. We believe that our audit provides
a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company, as of
December 31, 2005, and of the results of its operations for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting rules
and principles applicable in France.
Without qualifying our opinion, we draw your attention to note 4.2** to the financial statements, which set out the consequences on the financial statements of a change in accounting method resulting from the application, as of January 1, 2005,
of standard CRC 2004-06 on assets.
II - Justification of our Assessments
In accordance with the requirements of article L.823-9 of the French Commercial Law (Code de Commerce) relating to the
justification of our assessments, we bring to your attention the following matters:
As part of our assessment of the accounting principles and methods applied by the Company, we obtained assurance about
the appropriateness of the afore-mentioned changes in accounting methods and of the description thereof provided in the
notes to the financial statements.
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As indicated in the note to the financial statements entitled “Accounting treatment of provisions regarding subsidiaries”,
investments in subsidiaries were valued taking into account the share of adjusted equity they represent as well as the future
profitability outlook.
Within the scope of our assessment of the significant estimates used to draw up the financial statements, we reviewed the
assumptions used for forecasting future financial flows on which these estimates were based and the corresponding figures,
for the most significant subsidiaries.
We carried out an assessment of the reasonableness of these estimates. As forecasts are inherently uncertain, actual figures
may sometimes vary significantly.
The assessments were thus made in the context of the performance of our audit of the financial statements, taken as a
whole, and therefore contributed to the formation of our audit opinion expressed in the first part of this report.
III - Specific Verifications and Information
We have also performed the specific verifications required by law in accordance with professional standards applicable in
France.
We have no matters to report regarding the fair presentation and the conformity with the financial statements of the
information given in the management report of the Board of Directors, and in the documents addressed to the shareholders
with respect to the financial position and the financial statements.
In accordance with French law, we have ensured that the required information concerning the purchase of investments and
controlling interests and the names of the principal shareholders have been properly disclosed in the Board of Directors’
report.

Neuilly sur Seine, April 3, 2006
The Statutory Auditors
Members of the Compagnie Régionale de Versailles
Barbier, Frinault & Autres
Gilles Puissochet

PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit
Louis-Pierre Schneider

* The complete French version of the parent company financial statements is available at the Company's Headquarters.
** Note 4.2 of the complete version of the financial statements mentioned in the Statutory Auditors' report corresponds to the note on accounting
principles in the condensed version of these financial statements.
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10. STATUTORY AUDITORS’S SPECIAL REPORT
This is a free translation into English of the Statutory Auditors’ special report on certain related party transactions issued in the French
language and is provided solely for the convenience of English speaking readers. This report includes information specifically
required by French law. This report on certain related party transactions should be read in conjunction with, and construed in
accordance with, French law and professional auditing standards applicable in France.

Technip SA
Special report of the Statutory Auditors on certain related party transactions
For the year ended December 31, 2005
(Free translation from a French language original)
To the Shareholders,
In our capacity as Statutory Auditors of Technip SA, we hereby present our report on certain related party transactions.

Related Party Transactions Authorized during the Year
In accordance with Article L. 225-40 of the French Commercial Code (Code de Commerce), we have been advised of the
following agreement which was authorized by the Board of Directors.
Our responsibility does not include identifying any undisclosed agreements. We are required to report to shareholders,
based on the information provided, the main terms and conditions of the agreements that have been disclosed to us,
without commenting on their relevance or substance. Under the provisions of Article 92 of the March 23, 1967 Decree, it
is the responsibility of shareholders to determine whether the agreements are appropriate and should be approved.
We carried out our work in accordance with the professional standards applicable in France. These standards require that
we perform procedures to verify that the information given to us agrees with the underlying documents.
In its meeting of November 16, 2005, the Board of Directors approved the commitment entered into by Technip SA with
Daniel Valot, the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, as part of the implementation of a defined contribution supplementary pension plan.
The contributions payable by Technip SA in relation to this plan are equal to 6% of the total remuneration for the year,
within the limit of 8 ceilings as defined by the French Social Security. In 2005, the contribution paid by Technip SA in relation
to Daniel Valot’s supplementary pension plan amounted to €14,492.

Neuilly sur Seine, April 3, 2006
The Statutory Auditors
Members of the Compagnie Régionale de Versailles
Barbier, Frinault & Autres
Gilles Puissochet

PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit
Louis-Pierre Schneider
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